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Key consolidated financial data for the last five years

Preliminary comments:

in 2018, Vivendi appited two new accounting standards:

e IFRS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers. in accordance with fFRS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 revenugs, thereby enstring comparability of the data refative to each period of 2018 and 2017 contained in this
report. The data presented below with respect to fiscal years 2074 to 2016 are historical and therefore are unrestated, and

s IFAS 3 ~ Financia! Instruments. in accordance with IFRS 9. Vivendi applied this change of accounting standard to the 2018
Statement of Farnings and Statement of Comprehensive Income and restated its opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2018,
thergfore, the dara relative to prier years contained in this report is rot comparable.

For a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2018.

In addition, Vivendi deconsaiidated GVT, SER and Maroc Telecom group as from May 28, 2015, November 27, 2014 and May 14, 2014,
respectively, i.e., the date of their effective sale by Vivendi. In compliance with iFAS 5, these businesses have been reported as discontinued
operations for the relevant periods as set out in the table of selected key consolidated financial data below in respect of data reflected in the
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Fiows.

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Consolidated data
Aevenues 13,932 12,518 10,819 10,762 10,089
Income from aperations (a) 1,439 1,098 853 1,081 1,108
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA} (a) 1,288 969 724 942 993
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 1,182 1,018 887 521 545
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 127 1,218 1,256 1932 4,744

of which earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 127 1.218 1,238 599 {290}
Adjusted net income {a) 1,157 1,300 755 697 628
Net Cash Position/{Financial Net Debt) {a) 176 {2,340) 1231 YAV 4,681
Total equity 17,534 17,886 19612 21,086 22,988

of which Vivendi SA shareowners' equity 17,313 17,644 19,383 20,854 72,606
Cash tlow from operations (CFFQ) (a} 1,128 989 7 892 843
Cash flow trom operations after imerest and income tax paid [CRAIT) (@) 822 1,348 34 (69) a1
Pinancial investments (694) 13,685) {4,084} 13,927 {1,244
Financial divestments 2,303 4/ 194 9013 17,807
Dividends paid by Vivendi SA to its shareholders 568 439 2588 (b 2,727 (b 1,348 [}
Purchases/{sales) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares - 203 1623 497 32
Per share data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,2635 1,262.7 12728 13615 13458
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic 0.0 087 099 1.42 352
Adjusted net income per share 092 104 0.58 .51 0.46
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period {excluding treasury shares) 1,268.0 1,256.7 1,255 13423 13516
Equity per share, attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1365 14.04 1539 1554 16.73
Dividends per share paid 0.45 0.40 2.00 (b} 200 (b} 1.00 (c)

in millions of euros, number of shares in miilions, data per share in euros.

a  The non-GAAP measures of Income from operations, EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), Cash flow
from operations (CFFO} and Cash fiow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT} shauid be considered in addition to,
and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes. or as described in this Financial Report. Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicators of the
group’s operating and financial performance. Each of these indicators is defined in the appropriate section of this Financial Report. In
addition, it should be noted that other companies may have definitions and calculatians for these indicators that differ from those used
by Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability.

b With respect to fiscal year 2015, Vivendi paid an ordinary dividend of €3 per share, i.e., an aggregate dividend payment of
£3.957 million. This amount included €3%,363 million paid in 2015 (first interim dividend of €1 per share) and €2,588 million paid in 2016
{1,318 million for the second interim dividend of €1 per share and €1,270 million representing the batance of €1 per share). In addition,
in 2015, Vivendi paid a dividend with respect to fiscal year 2014 of €1 per share, i.e., €1,364 million.

¢. On June 30, 2014, Vivendi SA paid an ordinary dividend of €1 per share to its sharehoiders from additional paid-in capital, treated as &
return of capital distribution to shargholders.
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Nota:

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) 809/2004 (Article 28), which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of securities
listed cn a reguiated market within the European Union (implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the “Prospectus Regulation™), the following items are
incorporated by reference into this report:

o the 2017 Financial Report, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, prepared under IFRS and the
related statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements, presented on pages 188 to 317 of the Document de Référence
No. D.18-0128, which was filed on March 13, 2018 with the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) and on pages 188 to 317 of the
English translation of the Document de Référance No. D.18-0126; and

+ the 2016 Financial Repon, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, prepared under IFRS and the
reiated statutory auditars’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements, presented on pages 182 to 299 of the Dacument de Référence
No. D.17-0170, which was filed on March 14, 2017 with the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) and on pages 182 to 299 of the
English translation of the Document de Aéférence No. D.17-0170.
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I- 2018 Financial Report

Preliminary commeats:

On Fetruary 11, 2018, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018. Upon the recommendation of the Audit Commitiee, which met on February 17, 2013, the Supervisory Board, at its
meeting held on February 14, 2018, reviewed the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 7018, as praviously approved by the Management Board on February 11, 2019,

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 have been audited and certified by the statutory auditors
without gualified opinion. The statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements.

1 Earnings analysis: group and business segments

Preliminary comnients:

Change of accounting standards
In 2018, Vivendi applied two new accounting standards.

e IFRS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with IFRS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 revenues, thersby ensuring comparability of the data relative to sach period of 2018 and 2017 contained in this
report; and

o RS 8 — Fmancial instruments: in accordance with [FRS 9, Vivendi applied this change of accounting standard to the 2018
Statement of Earnings, therefore, the data relative to 2017 contained fn this report is not comparable.

For a detailed description, piease refer to Notes 1 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Non-GAAP measures

“Income from operations”, "EBITA™ and “adjusted net income”, all non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as a
substitute for, other GAAF measuras of operating and financiaf performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
related Notes, or as described in this Financial Report Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicators for the group’s operating and
financial performance.

Vivendi Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management and planning purposes
because they exclude most non-recurring and non-operating items from the measurement of the business segmeants’ performances. Under
Vivendi's definition:
» the difference betwseen EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, the
impaimment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, the income from equity affiliates
- operational, as well as other charges and income related to transactions with shareowners,
« income from operations is calculated as FBITA, as presented In the Adjusted Statement of farnings, before share-based
compensation costs and special items, due to thesr unusual nature and particular significance, and
s adjusted net income includes the feflowing items: EBITA, income from equity affifiates, interest (corresponding to interest expense
on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents), income from investments (including dividends and
interest received from unconsolidated companies) and taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items. It does not include
the following items: amortization of intangible assets acquired through busingss combinations and related to equity affiliates,
impairment lnssas on goadwill and other intangible assets acquired through business cambinations, other charges and incoms
related to transactions with shareowners, other financial charges and incoms, earnings from discontinued aperations, provisions for
income taxes and adjustments attributable to non-controiling intarests. non-recurring tax items (in particufar the changes in deferred
tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s Tax Group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems and the reversal of tax liabifities
related to risks extinguished over the peripd).

Mareover, it should be nated that ather companies may have definitions and calculations for these non-GAAP measures that differ from
those vsed by Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability.
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1.1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

REVENUES
Cost of revenues

Selling, general and administrative expenses exctuding emortization of intangible assets acquired

through business cambinations

Income from operations*

Restructuring charges

Other operating charges and income

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)*

Amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Reversal of reserve reiated to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States

Income from equity affiliates - operational
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND INCOME TAXES {EBIT}
income from equity affiliates - non-operationat

Interest
Income from investments
Other financial charges and income

Earnings before provision for income taxes

Pravision for income taxes

Earnings from continuing operations

Earnings from discontinued operaticns

Earnings

Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENDI SA SHAREOWNERS

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic (in euros}
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted (in euras)

Adjusted net income*
Adjusted net income per share - basic {in euros)*
Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in euros}*

in millions of euros, except per share amounts.

* non-GAAP measuras.

Thursday February 14, 2019

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017 % Changs
13.932 12518 +11.3%
{7.618) {7.302)
(4,875} {4,118)
1,439 1,098 +31.0%
(115} {88)
136} {41
1,288 969 +33.0%
(113) 124)
. 27
7 145
1,182 1.018 +16.1%
122 .
(47) (53]
20 29
(763} (100)
{790} {124)
514 8% - 42.8%
(357) 355
157 1,249 - 87.4%
157 1,249 - 87.4%
{30) {33)
127 1216 - 89.6%
0.10 097
0.10 0.94
1,157 1,300 -11.1%
0.92 1.04
0.91 1.00
Vivendi / /
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1.2 Analysis of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

121 Revenues

In 2018, Vivendi's revenues amounted to £13,93Z million, compared to €12,518 millien in 2017, an increase of £1,414 million (+11.3%),
notably as a result of the consolidation of Havas (+£1,108 million). At constant currency and perimeter’, Vivendi's revenues increased by
4.9% compared to 2017. For the second year in a row, Universal Music Group's revenues increased by 10.0%" and Canal+ Group’s revenues
were stable.

For the second half of 2018, at constant currency and perimeter, Vivendi's revenues increased by 5.7% compared to the second half of 2017,
an improvement compared to the first half of 2018 (+3.9% compared to the first half of 2017), mainly driven by Universal Music Group
(+12.8% for the second half, compared to +6.8% for the first half).

For the fourth quarter of 2018, at censtant currency and perimeter, Vivendi's revenue growth was +5.6% compared to the fourth quarter of
2017, as opposed to +3.3% for the first quarter of 2018, +4.6% for the second quarter, and +5.7% for the third guarter {for quarterly revenues
by business segment, please refar ta the appendix to the Financiai Repart).

For a detailed analysis of revenues by business segment, please refer te Section 1.3 below.
1.22 Operating results

Cost of revenues amounted ta £7,618 million, compared to £7.302 millian in 2017, an increase of €316 million.

Selling, general and administrative expenses excluding amortization of intangible assets acquited through business
combinations amaunted to €4,875 miilion, compared to €4,118 million in 2017, an increase of €757 million.

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses. Dapreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations, ameunted to €340 million {compared to €337 million in 2017), and notably related to Canal+ Group's set-top boxes, as well as
Studiocanal’s catalogs, films and television programs.

Income from operations amounted to €1,439 million, compared to €1,098 million in 2017, an increase of £341 million (+31.0%), notably
resulting from the consolidation of Havas {+€123 million). At constant currency and perimeter, income from operations increased by
€260 million (+22.7%} driven by the growth of Universal Music Graup (+£177 million} and Canal+ Group (+£78 miflion), which continues its
recovery in France.

EBITA amounted to £1,288 million, compared to £369 miltion in 2017, an increase of €319 million (+33.0%), notably resulting from the
consolidation of Havas (+€104 million). At constant currency and perimeter, EBITA increased by £240 million (+24.7%), driven by the growth
of Universal Music Group (+£168 million} and Canal+ Group (+£98 million), which continues its recovery in France. In additicn, EBITA
included:

» restructuring charges of €115 million, compared to €88 million in 2017, primarily incurred by Havas {€30 million, compared to
€15 million for the second half of 2017), Universal Music Group (€29 million, compared to €17 million in 2017), Canal+ Group
{€28 million, compared to €49 miliion in 2017) and Cerporate (€19 million, compared to £1 million in 2017); and

« other operating charges and income excluded from income from operations, which was a net charge of €36 million, compared to
a net charge of €41 million in 2017. They notably included a -€22 million charge relating to share-based compensation plans in 2018,
compared to -£31 miltion in 2017,

For a detailed analysis of income from operations and EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 1.3 below.
EBIT amounted to €1,182 million, compared to £1,018 miffien in 2017, an increase of €164 million. it included the follawing:

« amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €113 miilion, compared to
£124 millien in 2017, a €11 million imgrovemert;

« the reversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigaticn in the United States, which represented a net profit of
€27 mitlion for the first half of 2017. As a reminder, an April 8, 2017, Vivendi announced that it had entered into an agreement {0
settle the remaining claims still in dispute with certain class plaintiffs for $26 million, which together with the judgments previously
entered, resolved the entire litigation far an aggregate amount of $78 million; and

" Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the acquisition of Havas (July 3, 2017), the acquisition of Paylogic by Vivendi Village Aprit 16, 2018) and the sale of Radionomy by
Vivend Village (August 17, 2017).
< At constant currency and perimeter, compared o 2017,
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« income from equity affiliates — operational, which was a profit of €7 million, compared to a profit of €146 million in 2017 This
decrease of £139 million resulted from the reclassification in 2018 of Vivendi's share of Telegom Italia’s net earnings (€122 million)
in “income from equity affiliates - non-cperational”, to account for the decrease of Vivendi's influence over Telecom Italia in 2018
{please refer below and to Note 11.2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018}, In 2017, this
amount primarily included Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia's net earnings, calculated based on the financial information publicly
disclosed by Telecom ltatia, which represented a profit of €144 million.

1.2.3 Income from equity affiliates - nan-operational

Income from equity affiliates - non-operational amounted to a profit of £122 million, compared to nil in 2017. In 2018, this amount
related to Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia’s net earnings, calculated hased on the financial information publicly disclosed by Telecom
[talia®. tn 2017, the share of Telecom ltalia's net earnings (€144 million} was recorded as “inceme from equity affiliates - operational” (please
reter above and to Note 11.2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

1.24 Financial results

In 2018, interest was an expense of €47 million (compared to €53 million in 2017). In this amount:
= interest expense on borrowings amounted to €64 million, compared to €68 million in 2017. This change notably reflected the
decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 1.39% {compared to 1.60% in 2017), partially offset by the increase in the
average outstanding borrowings to €4.6 biliion (compared to €4.3 billior in 2017}, and
e interest income earned on the investment of cash surpluses amounted to €17 million, compared to €15 millian in 2017. This change
reflected the increase in the average interest rate on cash investments to 0.50% (compared to 0.40% in 2017), partially offset by the
decrease in the average outstanding cash investments to £3.4 billion (compared to €3.7 billion in 2017).

income from investments amounted to £20 million, compared to £29 million in 2017. This amount mainly included dividends received from
Telefonica of €11 million (compared to £20 million in 2017), as well as the interest from the bonds issued by Banijay Group Holding and Lov
Banijay and subscribed to by Vivendi for €6 million {compared to €7 million in 2017).

Other financia! charges and income were a net charge of €763 million, comparad to a net charge of €100 million in 2017. In 2018, other
financial charges included the write-down of the value of the Telecom [talia shares accounted for under the equity methed, for
£€1,086 miltion. Notwithstanding Vivendi's expected improvement of Telecom ltalia’s outlook, Vivendi wrote-down the value of its interest in
Telecom Italia accounted for under the equity method notably to take into account the uncertainty affecting Telecom ltalia’s governance,
which increases the non-execution risks associated with the company's industrial plan given Vivendi's lower power to participate in Telecom
[talia’s financial and operating policy decisions, and to take into account the changes in Tetecom ltalia’s competitive and regulatory
enviranment. Other financial income included the revaluation between January 1 and December 31, 2018 of the interests in Spotify and
Tencent Music for an aggregate amount of €312 million, as well as in Ubisoft for €53 million, reported to profit or loss in accordance with
the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1, 2018.

In 2018, Vivendi realized a capital gain of €1,213 million on the sale of its interest in Ubisoft. OF this amount, only the portion corresponding
to the revaluation of such interest in 2018 (€53 million) was recorded in the Statement of Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2018, in
accordance with the new IFRS 9 accounting standard, applicable since January 1, 2018. The remaining portion of the capital gain
{€1,160 million) related to the revaluation of such interest up until December 31, 2017, was recorded in “charges and income directly
recognized in equity” as of December 31, 2017, in accordance with the fermer IAS 38 accounting standard, and reclassified as retained
eamnings as of January 1, 2018 as a result of the first-time application of [FRS 9. Under IAS 39, which was applicable up until December 31,
2017, it would have been reported to profit or loss.

1.25 Provision for income taxes

In 2018, provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €253 million, compared to a net income of
€195 million in 2017, representing an unfavorable change of €448 million. In 2017, the tax net income reported to adjusted net income
notably included {i} a current tax income of €409 million recorded following the litigation relating to the Consolidated Globaf Profit Tax
System of 2011, where Vivendi SA secured a favorable settiement, and (i) the current tax income of €25 million, cerrespending to
moratorium interest, relating to the refund to Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries of the amounts paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributions,
following the decision of the French Constitutional Council dated October 6, 2017, where it was ruled that this tax contribution was
unconstitutional {please refer to Note & to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2018},

On November 8, 2018 {Financial Statements for the first ning months of 2018} and o March 6, 2018 {Financial Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2017): please refer
to Note 11.2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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Excluding these two non-recurring favorable impacts, provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income in 2017 wouid have been a
net charge of £23% million, compared t¢ a net charge of €253 million in 2038, i.e., an unfavorable change of €14 millioa. This change mainly
reflacted the increase in the tax charges of Universal Music Group and Canal+ Group, partially offset by the increase in current tax savings
from Vivendi's Tax Graup System in france. in 2018, the growth in Universal Music Groug's taxable income it the United States resulted in a
federal tax charge of €48 million, which refiected the impact of the tax reform applicable from January 1, 2018. In 2017, the federal tax
charge was nil, 1aking into account the current tax savings resu'ting from the utilization of the tax losses carried forward in the United States
{€96 million). The growth in Canal+ Group’s taxable income primarily resulted from the recovery of its businesses in France. The increase in
current tax savings from Vivendi's Tax Group System in France in 2018 {£168 million, compared to €86 million in 2017) notably resuited fram
the integration of Havas and its subsidiaries as from January 1, 2018.

In 2018, the effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income amounted to 20.1%, compared to 25.3% in 2017 restated from the two
non-recurring favorable impacts. This decrease of approximately 5 points in the effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income mainly
reflected the increase in 2018 of the current tax savings from Vivendi's Tax Group System in France, as well as the decrease in the federal
tax rate in the United States, while unutilized tax losses generated by businesses under development were almost stable.

in 2018, provision for income taxes reported to net income was a net charge of £357 million, compared to a net income of €355 million
in 2017. In 2017, the tax net income reported to net income notably included (i} a current tax income of €403 miltion recorded following the
litigation relating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011, where Vivendi SA secured a favorable settlement, as well as {ii} a
current tax income of €243 millien cerresponding ta the refund to Vivendi SA (€207 million principal and €24 million moratorium interest} and
to its subsidiaries (€11 million principal and €1 million moratorium interest] of the amounts paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributions,
folfowing the decision of the French Constitutional Council dated Octeber 6, 2017, where it was ruled that this tax contribution was
unconstitutional {please refer to Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

Excluding the two non-recurring favorable impacts, the provision for income taxes veported to net income in 2017 would have been a net
charge of €297 million, compared to a net charge of £357 million in 2018, i.e., an unfavorable change of €60 miliion. In addition to the
explanatary reasons for the increase in the tax charge reported to adjusted net income, in 2018, this increase in the tax charge reparted ta
net income included, the deferred tax charge relating to the revaluation through profit or loss of the interests in Spetify and Tencent Music
for an aggregate amount of -€72 million, in accordance with the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1. 2018, In 2017,
provision far income taxes aiso included a net deferred tax income of £79 million following the thange of the corporate federal tax rate
applicable in the United States since January 1, 2018. This also included a deferred tax charge of -€119 million corresponding to the write-
off of deferred tax assets related to losses carried forward by Havas, primarily in France. In addition, the deferred tax savings relating to
Vivend: SA's Tax Group System were almost stable (a charge of €2 million in 2018, compared to an income of €3 million in 2017).

1.26 Non-controlling interests

In 2018, earnings attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €30 million, compared to €33 million in 2017. They mainly
inciuded the nan-canirotling interests of ne+ in Poland, Canal+ International and VTV in Vietnam.

1.2.7 Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

in 2018, earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to a profit of £127 million {or €0.10 per share - basic), compared to
£1,216 million in 2017 (or £0.87 per share - basic), & decrease of £1,089 million {-89.6%). In 2018, the increase in EBIT (+£164 million} and the
revaluation between January 1 and December 31, 2018 of the interests in Spctify, Tencent Music and Ubisoft for an aggregate amount of
+E365 million, were offset by the write-down of the Telecom Italia shares accounted for under the equity method {-€1,066 miltion} and the
increase in provision for income taxes {-€712 millian). In 2017, the tax net income reported te adjusted net income notably included a currant
tax income of €409 million recorded following the litigation relating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011, where Vivendi SA
secured a favorable settlement. This also included the current tax income of €243 million (including €25 million of moratorium interest}
relating to the refund received by Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries of the amounts paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributions. Excluding
these two non-recurring favorable tax impacts, the net income would have been a profit of €564 million in 2017
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128 Adjusted net income

{in millions of euros)

Revenues

Income from operations

EBITA

income from equity affiliates - operational

Income from equity affiliates - non-operational
Interest

Income from investments

Adjusted earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Adjusted net income before non-controlling interests
Nan-controlling interests

Adjusted net income

Thursday February 14, 2019

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017 % Lhange
13,932 12518 +113%
1.439 1,008 +31.0%
1.288 969 +33.0%
7 205
182 )
471 (53)
20 29
TA50 T +26.1%
(253] 195
197 1,305
(40} (45
1457 1,300 “11.1%

In 2018, adjusted net income was a profit of £1,157 million (or €0.92 per share - basic), compared to €1,300 miifion in 2017 (or €1.34 per
share - basic), a decrease of €143 million {-11.1%). The growth in EBITA (+£319 miltion). resulting from the consolidation of Havas and the
perfermance of Universa! Music Group and Canal+ Group, was offset by the correlative increase of provision for income taxes (-€448 millien).
In 2017, the tax net income reported to adjusted net income notably included a current tax income of €409 million recorded following the
litigation relating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011, where Vivendi SA secured a favorable settlement. This also included
the current tax incoms of €25 million corresponding to moratorium interest relating to the refund received by Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries
of the amounts paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributicns. Excluding these two non-recurring favorable tax impacts, the adjusted net
income would have been a profit of €866 million in 2017, compared to a profit of €1,157 million in 2018, i.e., an increase of €291 million

{+33.6%).

Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euras) 2018 207
Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners {a) 127 1.216
Adjustments

Amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 113 124
Amartization of intangible assets related to ecuity affiiates 60 59
Reversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States {3} - {27
Other financial charges and income 783 100
Provision for income taxes on adjustments 104 {160
Impact of adjustments on non-controlling interests {10} {12)
Adjusted net income 1,157 1,300

a Asreported inthe Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Adjusted net income per share

Adjusted net income (in millions of euros)

Number of shares {in millions}

Weightad average number of shares outstanding (b}

Patential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation
Adjusted weighted average number of shares

Adjusted net income per share {in euros}

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
1,157 1,157 1,300 1,254 fa)
1,263.5 1,2635 1,252.7 12527
- 5.1 - 43
1,263.5 1,268.6 1,252.7 1,257.5
0.92 0N 1.04 1.00

a. Corresponded only to the impact for Vivendi of Telecom lalia’s dilutive instruments, calculated based on the financial information
publicly disclosed by Telecom ltalia with a three-month reporting lag (please refer to Note 11.Z to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

b, Netof the weighted average number of treasury shares (38.5 million shares in 2018, compared to 37.5 million in 2017).
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1.3 Analysis of revenues and operating results by business segment

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
% Change at constant currency

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change constant currency  and perimeter [a)
Revenues

Universal Music Group 6,023 5673 +68.2% +10.0% +10.0%
Canal+ Group 5,166 5,198 -06% -0.3% 0.3%
Havas 2.319 1.21 na na na
Gameloft 293 320 8.3% 5.1% 5.1%
Vivendi Village 123 108 +12.6% +13.1% +11.5%
New Initiatives 66 51 +30.5% +305% +30.5%
Elimination of intersegment transactions {58) (44}

Total Vivendi 13,932 12518 +11.3% +14.1% +4.9%
Income from operations

Universal Music Group 946 798 +18.4% +22.1% +22.1%
Canal+ Group 429 348 +23.1% +22.4% +22 4%
Havas 258 i35 nag na na
Gameloft 4 10 -60.4% -56.4% -56.4%
Vivendi Village {9} (6}

New Initiatives (79 {87

Corporate {110) 101}

Total Vivendi 1,439 1,098 +31.0% +33.9% +22.7%
EBITA

Universal Music Group 902 761 +18.4% +22.1% +22.1%
Canal+ Group 400 300 +33.6% +32.8% +32.8%
Havas 215 M na na na
Gameloft i 4 -55.8% -41.9% -419%
Vivendi Village 19) i18}

New Initiatives {83} {92}

Corporate (123) (97}

Total Vivendi 1.288 969 +33.0% +36.1% +24.7%

na: not applicable,

a. Constant perimeter reflects the inpacts of the acquisition of Havas (July 3, 2017}, the acquisition of Paylogic by Vivendi Village
[April 16, 2018) and the sale of Radionomy by Vivendi Village (August 17, 2017),
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Universal Music Group {UMG)

Thursday February 14, 2019

Year ended Dacember 31,

% Change at

% Change at constant
constart currency and
{in millions of euros) 2018 2017 % Changg urrency perimeter
Recorded music 48728 4,569 +5.9% +9.8% +9.8%
Subscriptions and streaming 2586 1,871 +31.7% +37.3% +37.3%
Other digital safes fa) 479 565 -30.0% -26.6% 266%
Physical sales 949 1,156 -17.9% -16.1% -161%
License and other 804 747 +7.5% +107% +10.7%
Music publishing 941 8b4 +10.3% +14.5% +145%
Merchandising and other 273 283 -35% -1.5% -1.5%
Elimination of intersegment transactions (19} (23)
Revenues 6,023 5,673 +62% +10.0% +10.0%
Income from operations 946 798 +18.4% +221% +22.1%
fncome from operations margin 15.7% 14.1% +1.6pts
Restructuring charges 29) (17
Income/{charges) related to share-based compensation plans 14) (9)
Other special items excluded from income from operations (11 nn
EBITA o2 761 +18.4% +22.1% +22.1%
EBITA margin 15.0% 13.4% +1.6 pts
Recorded music revenues by geographic area
North America 2,224 2,090 +6.4% +115% +115%
Europe 1,580 1,513 +4.4% +5.5% +0.5%
Asia 618 563 +8.8% +13.0% +13.0%
Latin America 153 155 -1.5% +145% +14.5%
Rest of the world 253 238 +6.2% +11.3% +11.3%
4828 4,559 +5.9% +9.8% +9.8%
a. Mainly included download sales.
Recorded music best sellers, in value (Source: MusicMart)
Year ended December 31, 2018 Year ended December 31, 2G17
Artist Title Artist Title
Drake Scorpion Taylor Swift Reputation
Post Malane Beerbongs & Bentleys Kendrick Lamar DANIN
Lady Gaga and Bradley Cooper A Star is Born Drake Morsg Life
The Beatles The Beatles {White Album) The Weeknd Starhoy
XXXTentacion 7 Luis Fonsi Despacite & Mis Grandes Exitos
Migos Culture If Various Artists Moana
Imagine Dragans Evolve Imagine Dragcns Evolve
Ariana Grande Sweetener The Beatles Sgt. Pepper's
Kendrick Lamar Black Panther: The Album Post Maione Stoney
Post Malone Stoney Sam Smith The Thriti OFf It All
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in 2018, Universal Music Group's (UMG) revenues amounted to €68,023 million, up 10.0% at constart currency and perimeter compared to
2017 (+6.2% on an actual basis).

Recorded music revenues grew by 9.8% at constant currency and perimeter thanks to the growth in subscription and streaming revenues
(+37.3%), driven by the increase in subscribers and a stronger market share, which more than offset the continued decling in both download
{-23.5%) and physical (-18.1%) sales

Recorded music best sellers for the year included releases from Orake, Post Malone, The Beatles and XXXTentacion, as wefi as the
soundtrack release from A Star is Born.

Globally, UMG had every one of the top five tracks, the top four artists and the top three albums on Spotify in 2018. Additionally, UMG
artists occupied the top five positions and 14 of the top 20 positions an Apple Music’s Global Top 100 Songs 2018.

Music publishing revenues grew by 14.5% at constant cumency and perimeter, also driven by increased subscription and streaming
revenues, as well as higher revenues generated from performance rights and synchronization.

Merchandising and other revenues decreased by 1.5% at constant currency and perimeter, due to lower touring activity.

Driven by the growth in revenues, UMG’s income from operations amounted to €946 miliion, up 22.1% at constant currency and perimeter
compared to 2017 +18.4% on an actual basis}, and UMG's EBITA amounted to £902 million, up 22.1% at constant currency and perimeter
compared to 2017 (+18.4% on an actual basis}.

in 2018, several of the world’s most iconic artists signed or re-signed with UMG, including ground-breaking deals with Taylor Swift, The
Rolling Stones and Sir Elton John, demonstrating that UMG is the preferred partner for artists for all stages and virtually every aspect of
their careers.
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1.3.3 Canal+ Group
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Year ended Uecember 31,

% Change at

% Change at

constant constant currency

{in millions of eures) 2018 2017 % Change CUrrency and perimeter
TV in Mainfand France (a} 3137 3.24% -3.4% -3.4% -34%
International TV 1,567 1,482 +5.7% +6.8% +68%
Studiocanal 467 467 1.2% -0.6% -06%
Revenues 5,166 5198 0.6% 0.3% -0.3%
Income from operations 425 349 +23.1% +22.4% +2.4%
Income from operations margin 8.3% 57% +1 6pts
Inzome/(charges) related to share-based compensation plans 3) {6}
(Other special items excluded from income from operations 2 &
EBITA before restructuring charges 428 329 +22.6% +21.8% +21.8%
Restructuring charges (28) 149)
EBITA 400 300 +33.6% +32.8% +32.8%
EBITA margin 77% 58% +1.9pts
Pay-TV subscribers (in thousangds)
Self-distributed individual subscribers in Mainland France 4,733 4,950 217
Canal customers vig wholesale partnerships (b} 3,093 3117 -24
International individual subscribers 7831 6,948 +883

Africa 4,110 3,458 +652

FPoland 21594 2171 +23

Overseas 563 230 +53

Vigtnam 864 789 +95

Myanmar (Burma) 60 - +60
Total Canal+ Group individval subscribers 15,657 15,015 +642
Collective subscribers 591 579 +17
Total Canal+ Group subscribers 16,248 15,594 +654
Mainland Francs Pay-TV
Churn rate {over a 12-month rolling period) (c) 13.6% 15.8% 22 pts
Net ARPU Premium {in euros) (d} 443 455 -€0.7
Net ARPU {in euros) () 454 457 €03

a  Corresponds to pay-TV and free-to-air channels (C8, CStar and CNews) in mainland France.

b Includes the strategic partnership agreements with Free, Orange and Bouygues Telecom. Certain subscribers may aiso have subscribed

to a Canal+ offer.

¢ Chum rate by individual subscriber with commitment over a 12-month period, excluding customers via wholesale partnerships and these

benefiting from a LDA {{iberté d"Annulen option.

d.  Net ARPU {Average revenue per user) per individual Premium subscriber with and without commitment, excluding wholesale

partnerships.

e. Net ARPU per individual subscriber with commitment, excluding wholesale partnerships.
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in 2018, Canal+ Group's revenues amounted to €5,166 million, almost stable campared to 2017 (-0.3% at constant currency and perimater).

At the end of December 2018, Canal+ Group's averall subscriber portfolio {individual and collective subseribers in France and internationally)
stood at 16.2 million, compared t¢ 15.6 million at the end of December 2017, representing net growth of 654,000 subscribers.

Revenues from television operations in mainland France decreased slightly (-3.4% at constant currency and perimeter) due to the decline in
the individual subscriber biase (7.8 miliion, compared to 8.1 million at the end of December 2017}, despite a positive change in the churn rate,
which decreased by 2.2 points over the year to 13.6%. This decline was due in particular to the drop in Canalplay's subscriber base and the
termination of the Canalsat offer in favor of the new Canal offers and subscriptions via wholesaie partnerships with telecom operators.

However, the Canal+ channel's individual subscriber base recorded a net year-on-year increase in subscribers of 251,000. including collective
subscriptions, the total subscriber portfolio in mainiand France reached 8.3 million.

Internationat operations delivered a strong increase in revenues of 6.8% at constant currency and perimeter, primarily due to the very strong
growth in the individual subscriber base (+883,000 year-on-year) to which all the territories contributed, without exception.

Studiocanal’s revenues amounted to €467 miflion, a slight year-on-year decrease (-0.6% at constant currency and perimeter) due to an
unfavorable 2017 comparable basis {particutarly with the worldwide success of Paddington 2) and despite significant growth in TV
operations and increased catalog revenues.

In France, Studiocaral was the second largest French film distributor in 2018 with more than 10 million theater tickets sold, thanks in
particular to the success of Sink or Swim (4.3 million tickets sold), Mia and the White Lien (1.4 million tickets sold), and /n Safe Hands
(0.8 million tickets sold) during the fourth quarter.

In 2018, Canal+ Group's profitability increased sharply compared to 2017. Income from operations amounted to €429 million, compared to
€349 million in 2017 (+22.4% &t constant currency and perimeter).

EBITA before restructuring charges amounted to €428 million, up nearly €80 millicn year-on-year. EBITA after restructuring charges
amaounted to €400 million, compared to €300 million in 2057 {+32.8% at constant currency and perimeter). This strong EBITA growth was
notably due to the cost savings plan initiated in 2018, the significant improvement in mainland France and sustained international
development.

On November 8, 2018, Canal+ Group announced the renewal of its agreement with the French cinema, extending until the end of 2022 a
histaric partnership of more than 30 years. This agreement was a prerequisite for the signing on Oecember 217, 2018 of the new media
release chronology which protects and strengthens the unique position of Canal+ which can now offer new movies to its subscribers as earty
as 6 months after their theatrical release.

In the fourth quarter of 2018, Canal+ Group also strengthened its sports offer. especially around footbali, with the acquisition of the
broadcasting rights in France for the English Premier League and in Poland for the Ekstraklasa. Canal+ Group is proud to have waon the
exclusive rights in France for the Premier League, the most widely broadcast football league in the world. Canal+ will offer the 380 Premier
League matches on its channels and on myCANAL The agreement cavers three seasons (201972020, 2020/2021 and 2021/2(22} and will
start in August 2019.

In addition, the acguisition of Moto GP's rights for the first time illustrates the group's desire to diversify its sports offer, in line with recent
developments in boxing and women's footbail.

A new globat distribution agreement entered into on November 14, 2018 with the TF1 Group allows ali TF1 Group channels and related non-
linear services to be integrated into the Canal offers. The group had entered into a similar agreement with M6 Group in earty 2018.
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134 Havas

As a reminder, since July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consolicated Havas.

Year ended December 31, 12-month pro forma data
% Change at
constant currency

{in millions of euros} 2018 2017 (a) 2017 % Change and perimeter
Revenues 2319 1,211 2374 -23% +0.5%
Net revenues (b) 1% 1151 2,259 -28% +0.1%
Income from operations 258 135 254 +18% -
income from operations/net revenves 11.8% 11.7% 11.2% +0.6 pts

income/{charges) related to share-based compensation plans {12) 3l {10)

Other special items excluded from income fram operations {1 {6) 8)

EBITA hefore restructuring charges 245 126 236 +3.8% +1.9%
Restructuring charges {30) {15} {24)

EBITA 215 m 212 +1.7% 0.7%
FBITA/net revenues 58% 96% 94% +0.4 pts

Net revenues by geographic area

Europe 1,109 575 1123 -1.2% -14%
Of which France 438 2726 452 3.1% -34%
United Kingdom 261 123 242 +8.1% +4.8%

North America 766 3M 789 -2.9% +1.3%
Asia Pacific and Africa 192 i 0 -4.9% -
Latin America 128 4 146 -12.7% +5.8%
2,195 1,151 2,259 -2.8% +0.1%

a.  Corresponds to the financial data consolidated by Vivendi since July 3, 2017

b.  Net reverues correspond to Havas's revenues less the pass-through costs rebilled to customers {please refer to Note 1.3.4.3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Reflecting an excellent fourth quarter 2018, Havas's revenues amounted to €893 millicn, up 6.5% at constant currency and perimeter.
Organic net revenue growth was 4.8% compared to the fourth quarter of 2017 (+6.7% excluding the impact of Arnold}.

In 2018, Havas's revenues amounted o €2,319 million, up 0.5% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2017 (pro forma). Net
revenues amountad to €2,195 million {compared to €2,259 million in 2017 pro forma), up 0.1% organically (+1.9% excluding the impact of
Amold) and down 2.8% on an actual basis mainly due to negative currency effects.

With an organic growth of 2.7% ir the second half of 2018, compared to -2.9% in the first half of 2018, Havas confirmed the net sequential
improvement in organic net revenue growth. All its businesses (creative, health and wellress and media) contributed to this uptusn.

in 2018, Havas increased its profitability. Havas's income from operations reached €258 million, compared to €254 miltion in 2017 (pro
forma), a +0.6-point increase in the income from operations/net revenues margin to 11.8%. EBITA amounted to €215 million, compared to
€212 million in 2017, representing an increase of +0.4 peints in the EBITA/net revenues margin. EBITA before restructuring charges was up
3.8% compared to 2017 (+1.9% organically).

The North American agencies performed very well in the fourth quarter of 2018, thanks to Havas Media, Havas Health & You, Havas Edge
and Abarnathy/AMD.

Business in Furope continued to show progress at the end of the year, supported once again by robust performances in France and in the
United Kingdem. In France, BETC, Havas Paris and Ekino/Fullsix agencies were the major contributors. The United Kingdom confirmed its
recovery driven by the excellent performance from the media businesses, and the continued dynamism of the healthcare communications
business at Havas Lynx and the creative business at Havas London. Italy continued to show steady growth, while performances from the
other European countries remained mixed.

Latin America confirmed its recovery, driven by the media businesses.
Asia-Pacific returned a slightly negative perfermance, penalized by Australia, while China and India both reported sustained growth.

Havas pursued its pelicy of targeted acquisitions, completing several acquisitions in 2018:
s Catchi, the leading digital conversien rate aptimization {(CRO) specizlist across Australia and New Zealand;
s Deekeling Arndt Advisors (DAA), a leading German communications consultancy providing communicative support and political
flanking of equity market transactions, reputation management and crisis communications;
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+ Etoile Rouge, a communications agency dedicated to luxury and lifestyle brands in France;
« MRC consultancy, a UK-based specialist in healthcare market access; and
o Republica, the leading independent multicultural marketing agency in the United States, based in Miami, Florida.

In addition, on December 14, 2018, Havas Group entered into an agreement to acquire a 51% interest in the largest Baltics-based
communications group, formed by the merger of Estonian-owned Idea Group and Lithuanian-owned Publicum Group. The new combined
entity wili operate under the name Havas Baltics and will represent the Havas Group in Estonia, Lithuania and Latvia.

Major awards won by Havas

In the fourth quarter of 2018, the Palau Piedge campaign, created by Australian agency Host/Havas for the Palau Legacy Project, continued to
garner awards, notably at the D&AD Impact Awasds and at the LIAA. In 2018, it became one of the most awarded campaigns waorldwide.
Havas Group's agencies won 6 awards at the LIAA. At the Clio Health Awards, Havas Lynx took 5 awards, BETC Brazil was awarded 1 Gold
and Havas Republica, one of the agencies acquired by Havas in 2018, carried off 1 Silver and 1 Bronze.

Several Havas agencies did weil at the Epica Awards, taking home a total of 23 awards. At the Cristal Festival, Host/Havas was awarded the
Grand Prix in the Promo & Activation category, other agencies scocped a total of 35 awards and Havas was, once again, named Advertising
Network of the Year. Adweek named Rosapark its International Agency of the Year.

Major account wins over the fourth quarter of 2013
» Healthcare communications: Havas Health & You: Novartis Genentech, AbbVie, Chemocentryx and Sage Therapeutics;
» (Creative: Adidas, Henkel, Nestle, Savencia, Amway; and
« Media: Puma, Reckitt, Correos, Caisse des dépits, Gameloft.

135 Gameloft

Year ended December 31,
% Changeat % Change at
constant  constant currency

{in mittians of euras) 2018 2017 % Change currency and perimeter
Revenues 293 320 -8.3% -5.1% -5.1%
Income from operations ) 10 -60.4% -56.4% -56.4%
Restructuring charges i4) {1
Charges related ta share-based compensation plans 2 (5)
Qther special items excluded from income from operations - -
EBITA 2 q -55.8% -41.9% -41.9%
Revenues by geographic are
EMEA (Europe, the Middle East, Africa) 100 107
Asia Pacific 73 89
North America 97 94
Latin America 23 30
29 320
Average Unigue Users {ir millions)
Monthly Active Users (MAL) a3 128
Daily Active Users {DAU) i 15

In 2018, Gameioft's OTT revenues (sales of games on platforms such as Apple, Google, Microsoft and Amazon) which represents 72% of
Gameloft's total revenues, were up 2.1% at constant currency. This increase partially offset the decline in the activity related 1o telecom
operators, which is structurally in decline due to the gradual replacement of traditional mobile phones by smartphones, and the decrease in
advertising sales. In 2018, Gameloft's revenues amounted to €293 million, down 5.1% at constant currency and perimeter.

Gameloft released two new games on smartphones in 2018 Dungeon Hunter Champions and Asphalt 9 Legends, the latest opus of the
No. 1 mebile racing franchise that has recorded more than 35 million downloads singe its launch on July 26. 2018 and was among
Gameloft's Top 5 bestselling games in 2018,

Gameloft's catalogue (63% of 2018 revenues generated by its own franchises), including its bestselling games such as Disney Magic
Kingdoms, March of Empires, Dragon Mania Legends, Asphait 8. Airborne and Asphalt 9: Legends, which accounted for 47% of Gameloft's
total revenues in 2018, is particularly resilient.

In 2018, Gameloft's income from operations amounted to €4 million, and EBITA amounted to €2 million. including restructuring charges for
£4 million.
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Gameloft and the LEGO Group announced the release in 2019 of a LEGO game that will bring 40 years of LEGO minifigure history and
universes to mobiles.

In December 2018, Gameloft acquired FreshPlanet, the multi-award-winning maker of the SongPop mobile games with more than 100 million
downloads. In line with Gameloft's philosophy to provide the best gaming experiences to players of all ages and countries, this acquisition is
a new milestone in the company’s expansion strategy.

1.3.6 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
% Change at constant
constant currency and
{in millions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change CUFTency perimater {a)
Revenves 123 109 +12.6% +13.1% +11.5%
of which Vivendi Ticketing 58 52 +5.9% +17.1% 4.0%
Live 34 18 +94.5% +94.3% +84.9%
Income frem operations {9 {6}
Restructuring charges 12) (2
Income/{charges) related to share-based compensation plans - -
(Other special items excluded from income from cperations 2 (10)
EBITA {9) (18}

a  Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the acquisition of Paylogic (April 16, 2018) and the sale of Radionomy {August 17, 2017).

In 2018, Vivendi Viilage's revenues amounted to €123 miilion, an increase of 12.6% (+ 11.5% at constant currency and perimeter) compared
t0 2017,

Ticketing revenues amounted to €58 miltion, up 9.9% compared to 2017 following the acquisition of Paylogic in April 2018. Vivendi Village
now has a ticketing network with a strong presence in Continental Europe, the United Kingdom and the United States, which had a vecord
year with more than 20 million tickets sold.

Live activities. which encompass Clympia Production, festivals and venues in France and Africa, recorded revenues of €34 million, an
increase of 94.9% compared to 2017. Olympia Production recorded very strong growth with more than 1,100 shows. it has a diversified
portfolio of 37 artists (music and comedy) and four regional festivals in France {compared to two in 2017), including Garorock, one of the
country’s largest festivals with an attendance of 145,000 people, acquired at the end of 2018 L'Olympia enjoyed a very good year with
280 shows, its level of activity prior to November 2015,

In Africa, CanalOlympia, with 11 cinema and entertainment venues in eight countries at the end of 2018, is meeting the challenge of strong
demand for cinema; its average attendance rate {24%) is almost deuble that of France.

Vivendi Sports organized its first two events in 2018, le Tour de I'Espoir {a cycling race in Camercon) and Jab&Vibes (a boxing competition in
Senegal).

Vivendi Viliage's income from operations amounted to a loss of €9 million in 2018, compared to a loss of €6 miilion in 2017, Excluding the
investments in Africa, income from operations was positive at £2 million. EBITA amounted to a loss of €9 million, compared tc a loss of
€18 mitfion in 2017.

1.3.7 New Initiatives

In 2018, New Initiatives, which includes Dailymation, Vivendi Content and GVA, recorded revenues amounting to €66 million, up 30.5%
compared to 2017.

{3VA is deploying a fiber network on the African continent, enabling major cities to benefit from very high-speed internet services. In 2818,
GVA apened two locations in Gabon and Togo, and acquired a business in Congo. GVA is plannirg to make significant investments, which
will weigh on its profitability for the first few years of operation.

Since June 2017, Dailymotion has focused on premium content and has improved its video base. Its audience far premium content has
almost doubled in the space of a year, reaching 2.2 billion views at the end of 2018, compared to 1.2 billion at the end of 2017. This strategy
has enabled Dailymotion to enter into many partnerships with leading global publishers. In total, more than 300 agreements were concluded
in 2018, including 100 in the United States and dozens in territeries where Dailymotion previously had little presence (Korea, Vietnam, India).
The audience in these new countries has grown significantly.
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In 2018, Dailymotion also reviewed its advertising ecosystem. The company created its own programmatic platform and content
monetization system (live or programmatic). It is currently working en new formats.

New initiatives’ income from operations amounted to a loss of €79 million, compared to a loss of €87 miltion in 2017. New Initiatives’ EBITA
amounted to a loss of £99 million, compared to a loss of £92 million in 2017,

138 Corporate

Corporate’s income from operations was a net charge of €110 million, compared to a net charge of £101 million in 2017, an unfavorable
change of €9 million, primarily due to the increase in ‘egal fees, notably relating to ongoing litigation and non-recurring positive items
recorded in 2017.

Corporate’s EBITA was a net charge of £123 million, compared to a net charge of €97 mitlion in 2017, an unfavorable change of £26 million
mainly relating to the change in income from operations and an increase in restructuring charges.

2 Liquidity and capital resources

2.1 Liguidity and equity portfolio

Preliminary comments:

« The "Net Cash Position” and the “Financial Net Debt”, non-GAAP measures, sheuld be considered in addition te, and not as a substitute
for, GAAP measures presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Fosition, as well as any other measure of indebtedness
reported in accordance with GAAP. Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicators of the group’s liquidity and capital resources.
Vivendi Management uses these indicators for reporting, management and planning purposes.

» The Net Cash Position (and the Financial Net Debt) are calculated as foliows:

f. cash and cash equivalents, as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, corresponding to cash in banks, money
market funds and bond funds, which satisfy ANC and AMF position expectations expressed in November 2018, and other highly
fiquid short-term investments with initial maturities of generally three months or less, as required by IAS 7 (please refer to Note
1.3.5.11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018)

if. cash management financial assets, inclided in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Fasition under “financiai assets”, relating
to financial investments, that do not satisfy the criteria for classification as cash equivalents set forth in IAS 7, and, with respect ta
money markst funds, which satisfy ANC and AMF position expectations expressed in November 2018, and

i, derivative financial instruments, net {assets and liabilities) where the underlying instruments are Financial Net Debt items, as weil
as cash deposits securing borrowings included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position undsr “financial assets”,;

less:

iv, value of borrowings at amortized cost.

« for a detailed description, please refer to Note 14 “Cash position” and to Note 19 “Borrowings and other financial fiabilities and
financial risk management” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018,

21.1 Changes in liguidity

Cash and cash Borrowings at arnortiz.ed N NetACash.
equivalents cost and other financial Position/(Financial Net

{in millions of euras) items (a) Debt)
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2017 1,951 {a.291) {2,340}
{Quiflows] / inflows:

Operating activities 1.187 - 1,187

Investing activities 1,288 520 1,806

Financing activities {610 120 {450}
Foreign currency translation adjustments 121} 34 13
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2018 3.793 {3,617} 176

a  “Dther financial items” include cash management financial assets and derivative financial instruments relating fo the interest rate and
foreign currency risk management {assets and liabilities).
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As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi's Net Cash Position amounted to £176 million, compared to a Financial Net Debt of -€2,340 million as of
December 31, 2017, an increase of €2,516 milfion. This favorable change was mainly attributable to the follewing items:

a £1,580 million inflow as part of the sale of Vivendi's 27.27% interest in Ubisoft at a price of €66 per share for an aggregate
consideration of €2.0 biilion {including €1.511 million recesved on March 23, 2018, €63 million received on October 3, 2018 and
€429 million still to be received under the forward sale of the remainder of its interest which is expected to occur on March &,
2019; please refer to Note 2.3 to the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018);

a £373 million inflow as part of the sale on the market of the Telefonica shares held by Vivendi in November and December 2018;

a €267 million infiow received on July 12, 2018 as part of the sale of Vivendi’s interest in Fnac Darty (piease refer to Note 2.4 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018); and

net cash provided by operating activities {after income tax paid) for €1,187 miflion.

These inflows were partially offset by the dividend paid by Vivendi on April 24, 2018 with respect to fiscal year 2017 for £568 million and net
capital expenditures for £341 million.

During the first quarter of 2019, the following events will impact the cash positicn:

On January 31, 2018, Vivendi completed the acquisition of 100% of Editis's share capital, representing an €833 million outflow,
which includes the repayment of Editis’s debt {please refer 10 Note 2.2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018};

On February 31, 2019, pursuant to a decision of the Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal regarding the use of foreign tax
receivables by Vivendi for the payment of the tax income in respect of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, Vivendi received a
request for repayment from the tax authorities in the amount of €239 million. Vivendi has 30 days to satisfy this request [please
refer to Note 6.1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018); and

Cn March 5, 2019, Vivendi will receive €42% million under the forward sale of its remaining interast in Ubisoft (please refer to Note
2.3 to the Consolidated Financia! Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018),

212 Equity portfolio

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held a portfolio of listed non-controlling equity interests, including a receivable of €429 million on the
forward sale of its remaining interest in Ubiseft (please refer to Note 2.3 to the Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018). As of December 31, 2018, the aggregate market value of this portfolic was approximately €3.9 billien (before taxes),
compared to €5.4 billion as of December 31, 2017 (which notably included the entire interest in Ubisoft, as well as the interests in Telefonica
and Fnac Darty); please refer to Notes 11 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statemants for the year ended December 31, 2018.

As of February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018}, the value cf this portfolio was approximately £4.0 billion (before taxes).
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2.2 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comment:

“Cash flow from operations” (CAFO} and “cash flow from operations after interest and taxes”™ (CFAIT), non-GAAP measures, should be
considared in addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAF measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the refated notes or as described in this Financial Report. Vivendi considers these to be relevant
indicators of the group's operating and financial performance.

Year ended December 31,
{in millicns of euros) 2018 2017 % Change
Revenues 13,932 12,518 +11.3%
Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization {12,192 {11,141} -9.4%
1,740 1377 +26.3%
Restructuring charges paid {106) 73 -45.7%
Content investments, net (137} (317} +56.8%
of which payments to artists and repertoire owners, net at UMG:
Payments {933} (634 -11.8%
Recoupment and ather 8iz 592 +17.4%
{121} {142} +15.4%
of which film and telsvision rights, net at Canaf+ Group:
Acquisition paid {508) (615 +74%
Consumption 670 708 -5.4%
162 83 +73.4%
of which sports rights, net at Canat+ Group:
Acguisition paid {906) {911) +06%
Consumption 865 941 B1%
{41 30 fig
Neutratization of change in provisions included in operating expenses {29) (30) +5.6%
Other cash oparating itams 9 {31 na
Other changes in net working capital (28) 265 na
Net cash provided by/{used for) operating activities belore income tax paid 1,449 1219 +188%
Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies 18 29 -395%
Capital expenditures, net [capex, net) {341) {259) -31.5%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 1126 989 +13.8%
Interest paid, net 147 {53) +12.0%
Other cash items related to financial activities 5 {61 na
Income tax {paid)/received, net (252) an na
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) 822 1,346 -39.0%

na: nat applicahle.

221 Changes in cash flow from operations {CFFQ}

In 2018, cash flow from operations (CFFO) generated by the group’s business segments amounted to £1,i26 million {compared to
€988 million in 2017), a €137 million improvement. These amounts included capital expenditures [net) generated by the group’s business
segments for €341 million {compared to €259 million in 2817), a deterioration of -€82 million mainly at Universal Music Group {-€47 million)
and Canal+ Group (-€22 million). tn 2018, cash fiow from operations (CFFO} generated by the group’s business segments, before capital
expenditures {net), amounted to £1,467 miltion {compared to £1,248 million in 2017}, an improvement of €219 million. This change mainly
resulted from the strong operating performance of Universal Music Group (+£239 millian), primarily driven by the growth in subscription
streaming services, as well as Canal+ Group's growth (+£43 million), partially offset by the decline of Havas [-€61 millicn), which resulted
from the consolidation of Havas as from the second half of 20t7. Havas’s change in working capital is usually unfavorable in the first half,
due to the seasonality of cash generation. For the second half of 2018, cash flow from operations {CFFO} generated by Havas, before capital
expenditures (net}, amounted to €356 million, compared to €329 million for the second half of 2017.
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222 Cash flow from operations (CFFO) by business segment

Year ended December 31,

lin mitlions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change
Universal Music Group 838 646 +29.8%
Canal+ Group 259 238 +87%
Havas 230 308 na
Gameloft 1 7 na
Vivendi Village i3 {20}

New Initistives {82} (0}

Corporate {117} 1100}

Cash flow from operations (CFFOQ) 1,126 989 +13.8%

na: rot applicatle.
223 Changes in cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT)

in 2018, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) was an €822 million net inflow (compared to £1,346 million in
2017}, a decrease of €524 miltion, primarily resulting from the unfavorable change in cash fiow relating to income taxes.

In 2018, cash flow relating to income taxes was a €262 million net outflow (compared tc a €471 million net inflow in 2017). In 2017, it
notably included (i) a €346 million inflow received on April 18, 2017 as part of the litigation settlement relating to the tax credits utilized by
Vivendi in fiscal year 2012, (i) a €223 miltion inflow relating to the refund to Vivendi SA of the amounts paid with respect to the 3% tax on
dividend distributions following the decision of the French Constitutional Council, dated October 6, 2017, where it was ruled that the tax
contribution was unconstitutional, as well as (iii} a refund of tax installments paid in 2016 under the French Tax Group System for fiscal year
2016 (€136 million), and (iv) a €10 million inflow at Universal Music Group in the United Kingdom, relating to a litigation settlement.

In 2018, the financial activities generated a €42 million net outflow {compared to €114 million in 2017). In 2018, they mainly included net
interest paid {-€47 million, compared to -€53 million in 2017). In addition, cash generated by foreign exchange risk hedging instruments was
a +£13 million inflow, compared to a -€52 million outflow in 2017, notably due to the depreciation of the dollar (USD) against the euro.

224 Reconciliation of CFAIT to net cash provided by operating activities

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euras) 2018 2017

Cash flow from operations after interast and income tax paid (CFAIT) 822 1.346

Adjustments

Capital expenditures, net (capex, net) 341 259

Dividends receivad from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies {18} {29}
Interest paid, net 47 53
Other cash items related to financial activities {5} 61

Net cash provided by operating activities {a) 1,187 1,690

a.  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
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2.3.1 Investing activities

{in millions of euros)

Financial investments

Acquisition of cash management financial assets
Other

Total financial investments

Financial divestments

Sale ot Ubisoft shares

Sals of Telefonica shares

Sale of Fnac Darty shares

Redemption cf the balance of the "new ORAN 17 issued by Banijay Group Hoiding
Qther

Total financial divestments

Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies

Capital expenditures, net

Net cash provided by/{used for) investing activities {a)

a  As presented in the Consofidated Statement of Cash Flows.

2.3.2 Financing activities

lin milhions of euros)

Transactions with shareowners

Distribution to Vivend: SA’s sharegwners

Capital increase subscribed by employees as part of the Stock Purchase Plan
Exgrcise of stock aptions by executive management and employees
Dividends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controbing interests
Other

Total transactions with shareowners

Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilities
Redemption of bonds

Interest paid, net

Other

Total transactions on horrowings and other financial liabilities

Net cash provided by/lused for) financing activities {a)

a  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Refer to Notes 1o
the Consolidated

Year ended

Financial December 31, 2018
Statements
14 {520)
(174)
{694)
2.3 1,580
12 373
24 267
1.1 25
5H8
2,303
18
3 (341)
1.286
Refer to Notes to
the Consolidated Year ended

Financial December 31, 2018
Statements

1% {568)

18 100

18 B9
{47)

{15)

{441)

18 {100}
5 {47
(22)

(169)

(610)
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3 Outlook

Dividend

Vivendi‘s Supervisory Board approved the Managament Board's proposal to pay an ordinary dividend of €0.50 per share with respect to fiscal
year 2018, which will be submitted to the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting to be held on April 15, 2019 for approval. This dividend
represents an increase of 11.1% compared to the dividend distributed with respect to fiscal year 2017 and a return of approximately 2.3%.
The coupon detachment date would be April 16, 2019 and the payment date April 18, 2019.

Outlook

Vivendi is confident in the evolution of its main businesses in 2018, As regards Canal+ Group, after a strong improvement in its profitabifity
in 2018, it will continue its improvement efforts and its 2019 profitability is expected to be even better than it was in 2018.

4 Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of operations, business,
strategy, plans and cutiook of Vivendi, including the impact of certain transactions, the payment of dividends and distributions as well as
share repurchases. Aithough Vivendi believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements
are not quarantees of future performance. Actual results may differ materially from the forward-looking statements as a result of a number
of risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Yivendi's contral, including, hut not limited to, the risks refated to antitrust and other
regulatory approvals, and to any other approvels which may be required in connection with certain transactions, as well as the risks
described in the documents of the group filed by Vivendi with the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF") (the French securities
regulator), and n its press releases, if any, which are also available in English on Vivendi's website (www.vivendi.com). Accordingly, readers
are cautioned against relying on such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this
Financiai Report. Vivendi disclaims any intention or obligation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.

5 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendi does not spensor any American Depositary Receipt {ADR) facifity in respect of its shares. Any ADR facility currently in existence is
“unspensored” and has ne ties whatsoever to Vivendi, Vivendi disclaims any liability in respect of any such facility.

Translation

This Financial Report is an English translation of the French version of the report and is provided solely for the convenignce of
English-speaking readers. This translation is quafified in its entirety by the French version, which is available on the company's website
(www .vivendi.com). In the event of any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the
French version will prevail.
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(i mullions of euros)

Universal Muysic Group

Cangl+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Revenues

finmillions of euros)

Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas {a)

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Revenues

2018
Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended  Three months ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
1,222 1,406 1,495 1,500
1,298 1,277 1,247 1,344
506 h67 553 633
70 Al 74 78
23 29 36 35
16 16 15 18
) {14) {19 114}
3124 3352 3.4 4,055
2017
Three manths ended Three months ended Three months ended  Three months ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
1,284 1,382 1,319 1,688
1272 1,283 1,252 1,30
- - 552 659
g4 77 78 Ayl
26 30 25 28
10 13 1" 17
(3) (3) (16) i22)
2,673 2,182 k¥ il 1842

a.  Asareminder, since July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consolidated Havas.

Note: As from January 1, 2018, Vivendi applied the new accounting standard IFRS 15 — Revenwes from Contracts with Customers (please

refer to Notes 1 and Z8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Oegcember 31, Z078j.
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Ill- Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2018

Preliminary comment:
in 2018, Vivend applied two new accounting standards:

= IFARS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with IFRS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 reventiss, thereby ensuring comparability of the data relative to each periad of 2018 and 2017 contained in this
report: and

e IFRS § - Financial Instruments: in accordance with iFRS G, Vivendi applied this change of accounting standard to the 2018
Statement of Farnings and Statement of Comprehensive Income and restated fts apening balance sheet as of January I, 2018
therefore, the data relative to 2017 contained in this report is not comparable.

for a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018,

Statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

To the Annual General Meeting of Vivendi,

Opinion
In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your annual general meetings, we have audited the actompanying consolidated
financial statements of Vivendi for the year ended 31 December 2018,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and fiabilities and of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

The audit opinion expressed abave is censistant with our report to the Audit Committee.

Basis for Opinion
o Audit Framework

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

« Independance

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with independence sules appiicable to us, for the period from 1 January 2018 to the date
of our report and specifically we did not provide any prohibited nan-audit services referred to in Article 5{1} of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014
or in the French Code of Ethics for Statutory Auditers (Code de déontologie de la profession de commissaire atix comptes).

Observations

Without qualifying Gur conclusion abave, we draw your attention to sections 1.1.1 and 1.1.2 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, which describe the changes in accounting methods relating to the mandatory application as from t January 2018 of standards
IFRS 9 “Financial instruments™ and IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers”™.

In particular, the cumulated unrealized capital gain as at 31 December 2017 relating to Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft (E1,160m) was recorded
as retained earnings as of 1January 2018 as part of the first-time application of accounting standard IFRS 8. In accordance with 1AS 39
which was applicable until 31 December 2617, it would have been reported 1o profit or loss as part of the sale that occurred during the
period.
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In accordance with the requirements of Articles L 823-9 and R.823-7 of the French Commercial Code {Code de comimerce) relating to the
justification of our assessments, we inform you of the key audit matters relating tc risks of matarial misstatement that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period, as well as how we addressed

thase risks.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
therecn, and we do not provide & separate opinion on specific items of the consolidated financial statements,

o Valuation of goadwill (notes 1.3.5.2, 1.3.5.7 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

As at 31 December 2018, goodwill is recorded in the balance
sheet for a net carrying amount of €12 438m, for a total balance
sheet of £34,403m. It has been allocated to the cash generating
umits (CGUs) or, where applicable, groups of cash-generating
units, of the activities into which the companies acquired have
been integrated.

Each year, management ensures that the carrying amount of the
goodwill does not exceed its recoverabte amount. The impairment
test methods thus implemented by management are deseribed in
the notes to the consolidated accounts; they invclve a significant
amount of judgements and assumptions, notably concerning;

- Future cash-flow forecasts;

- Perpetual growth rates used for projected flows;

- Discount rates (WACC) applied to estimated cash flows;

- The selection of sample companies included among the
transaction or stock market comparabies.

Consequently, any varigtion in these assumptions may have a
significant impact on the recoverable amount of the goodwill and
necessitate the recognition of an impairment loss, where
applicable,

We consider the valuation of goodwill to be a key audit matter
due to {i) its materiality in the group’s accounts, (i) the
judgements and assumptions required to determine s
recoverable amount.
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Our response

We analyzed the compliance of the methods adopted by your
company with the accounting standards in force, in particular
concerning the determination of the cash generating units (CGUs)
and the methods used to estimate the recoverable amount.

We obtained the impairment tests for each CGY or group of CGUs
and examined the determination of the value of each CGU. We paid
particular attention to thase where the carrying amount is close to
the estimated recoverable amount, those where the Hhistorical
performance showed differences in relation to the forecasts, and
these operating in volatile economic environments.

We examined the competence of the experts appointed by your
company for the valuation of certain CGUs or groups of CGUs. We
took note of the key assumptions used for all the CGUs or groups of
CGUs and:

- compared the business forecasts underpinning  the
determination of cash flows with the information available,
including the market prospects and past achievements, and in
relation to management’s latest estimates (assumptions,
budgets and strategic plans where applicable};

- compared the perpetual growth rates used for the projected
flows with market analyses and the consensus of the main
professionals concerned;

- compared the discount rates used (WACC) with our internaf
databases, assisted by financial valuation specialists included
in our teams,

- examined the selection of companies included among the
transaction or stock market comparables in order to compare it
with the relevant samples accerding to market analysts and our
knowledge of the market.

We obtained and reviewed the sensitivity analyses performed by
management, which we compared with our own calculations to
assess what level of variation in the assumptions would require the
recognition of geodwill impairment.

Lastly, we assessed the appropriateness of the information disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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o Valuation of the Telecom ltalia equity affiliate (notes 1.3.2 and 11.2 to the consolidated accounts)

Koy audit matter

The value of the Telecorn !talia equity-accounted investment
amounts to £3,130m after depreciation as at 31 December 2018.
At year-end, your company ensures that it is not necessary to
recognize an impairment less for this investment, by comparing its
recoverable amount with the carrying amount recorded in the
group’s accounts.

The recoverable amcunt has been estimated using the usual
valuation methods (discounted cash flows; market comparables
model).

Your company used the services of an expert to assist you in the
valuation of the recoverable amount of this asset. Given the
volatility observed in the company’s stock market performance
during the last financial year, we consider that the assessment of
this equity-accounted investment represents a key audit matter.

Qur response

We obtained the documentation relating to the valuation of the
equity-accounted value of Telecom itaiia.

We examined the competence of the expert appointed by your
company.

With the assistance of our valuation specialists:

we ook note of the models and key assumptions used to
determine discounted cash flows {long-term growth rate,
forecast margin rate, discount rate, comparing these items
with the information ir our internal databases;

- we took note of the market multiples used by the expert to
assess the relevance of the estimates resulting from the
discounted cash flows method, comparing these items with
market practice and data.

Finally, we assessed the appropriateness of the information
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

* Analysis of the disputes with the Mediaset group and with the former minority shareholders (notes 1.3.8, 1.5, 6.5, 16, 22.4 and

73 1o the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

The group's activities are conducted in a canstantly evolving
environment and within a complex international reguiatory
framework. The group is not only subject to significant changes
in the legislative environment and in the application and
interpretation of regulations, but it also has to contend with
litigaticn arising in the normal course of its business.

Your company exercises its judgement in assessing the risks
run relative to the disputes with the Mediaset group and with
certain foreign institutional investors, and recognizes 4
provision when the expense liable to result from these disputes
i$ probable and the amount can either be quantified or
estimated within a reasonable range.

We consider this subject to be a key audit matter given the
amounts at stake and the level of judgement required for the
determination of the provisions,
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Our response

We analyzed all the information made available to us, including, when
applicable, the written confirmations from externai advisors mandated
by your company, relating to (i) the dispute between your company and
the Mediaset group and its shareholders and {ii} the dispute botween
your company and certain foreign institutional investors concerning
alleged harm resulting from the financial communication of your
company and its former CEQ between 2000 and 2002.

We examined the estimates of the risk performed by the management
and notably compared them with the information made available te us
hy the Vivendi group’s advisers.

In addition, we anaiyzed the lawyers’ answers received in response to
our requests for confirmation concerning these disputes.

Finally, we verified the information concerning these risks disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated accounts.
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Specific Verifications

As required by French legal and regulatory texts, we have also verified in accordance with professional standards appiicable in France the
information pertaining to the Group presented in the management repcrt of the Management Board.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentaticn and its consistency with the cansclidated financial statements.

We attest that the consolidated non-financial statement proviced for in Articie L. 225-102-1 of the French Commercial Code {Code de
commerce) is included in the Group's management report, it being specified that, in accordance with the provisions of Article L. 823-10 of
said Code. the information contained in this statement has not been verified by us regarding its faimess or consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

» Appointment of the Statutory Auditors

We were appointed as statutory auditors of Vivendi by the annual genarai meetings held on 25 April 2017 for DELOITTE & ASSGCIES and on
15 Jure 2C00 for EANST & YOUNG et Autres.

Asg at 31 December 2018, DELOITTE ET ASSOCIES and ERNST & YOUNG et Autres were in the second year and nineteenth year of total
uninterrupted engagement respectively.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accardance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Furopear Union and far such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing coneern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is expected to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of internal control and risks
management systems and where applicable, its internal audit, regarding the accounting and financial reporting procedures.

The conselidated financial statements were approved by your Management Board.
Statutory Auditors’ Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

s Ubjectives and audit approach

Our role is to issue a report on the consolidated financial statements. Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated financial statements.

As specified in Article L823-10-1 of the French Commarcial Code ( Code de commerce), our statutory audit does not include assurance on the
viability of the Company or the quality of management of the affairs of the Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards appficable in France, the statutory auditor exercises prcfessional
judgment throughout the audit and furthermore:

- ldentifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaing audit evidence considered to be sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for his opinien. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtains an understanding of internal contrel relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal contral.

- Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management in the cansolidated financial statements.
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- Assesses the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. This assessment is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of his audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. If the statutory auditor
concludes that & material uncertainty exists, there is a requiremerit to draw attention in the audit report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are not provided or inadequate, ta modify the cpinion expressed
therain.

- Evaluates the overall presentation of the cansalidated financial statements and assesses whether these statements regresent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Dbtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The statutory auditor is responsibie for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated financial statements and for the opinion expressed on these
consolidated financial statements.

= Report to the Audit Committee

We submit a report to the Audit Committee which includes in particular a description of the scope of the audit and the audit program
implemented, as well as the resuits of our audit. We also report significant deficiencies, if any, in internal control regarding the accounting
and financial reporting procedures that we have idsntified.

Our report to the Audit Committee includes the risks of material misstatement that, in our professionat judgment, were of most significance
in the audit of the consclidated financial statements of the current period and which are therefore the key audit matters that we are required
to describe in this report.

We also provide the Audit Committee with the declaration provided for in Article 6 of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014, confirming our
independence within the meaning of the rules applicable in France as set out in particular in Articles L.822-10 to L.B22-14 of the French
Commerciai Code (Code de commerce/ and in the French Code of Ethics for Statutory Auditors (Code de déontologie de la profession de
commissaire aux comptes) Where appropriate, we discuss with the Audit Committee the risks that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and the related safeguards.

Paris-La Défense, February 14, 2019

The Statutory Auditors
French ariginal signed by

DELOITTE & ASSOCIES ERNST & YOUNG et Autres

Jean Paul Séguret Jacques Pierres
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Restructuring charges

Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Reversal of reserve refated 1o the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States
Income from equity affihates - operational

Eamings hefore imerest and income taxes {EBIT)

Incame from equity affiliates - non-operational

Interest

Income fram investments
Other financial income
Other financial charges

Eamings before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Eamings from continuing operations

Earnings from discentinued operations

Eamings

0f which

Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

Non-controlling interests

Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted

In millions of euros, except per share amounts, in auros.

Note

Thursday February 14, 2019

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017
13,932 12,518
{7.518) {7.302)
{5,022} (4,281}
(115 {88)
12) (2)
- 7
7 146
1182 1,018
122 -
(a7 {53}
0 29
418 43
{1,181} (143)
{790} {124)
514 894
{357} 355
157 1,248
157 1,249
127 1216
30 33
0.10 0.97
0.10 0.94

The accempanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros} Note 2008 2017
Eamings 157 1,240
Actuarial gainsAlesses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net k3 29
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {233) ng
Comprehensive income from equity affiliates, net {2 14
Htems not subsequently reclassitied to profit or loss {200} 43
Foreign currency translation adjustments 278 (848}
Unrealized gainsAlosses), net Vi 685
Comprehensive income from equity affiliates, net 11 (162) {46}
Other impacts, net 38 {40}
Items to he subsequently reclassified to profit or loss 106 {248}
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 (98) (206)
Total comprehensive income 59 1,043
0f which

Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivendi SA shareownets 40 1,002
Total comprehensive income attnibutabie to non-controlfing interests 19 41

na: nat applicable.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Cansolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in miltions of euros) Note December 31,2018 January 1, 2018 (a)
ASSETS

Goodwill 9 12,438 12,084
Non-current content assets 10 2,194 2,087

Dther intangible assats 437 440
Property, plant and equipment 986 930

Investments v equity affiliates 11 3.418 4576

Non-current financial assets 12 2,702 4502

Deferred tax assets 6 675 627

Non-current assets 22,250 25,196

Inventories 206 177

Current tax recewvables 5 404 406

Current content assets 10 1,346 1160

Trade accounts receivable and other 13 5,314 5,208

Current financial assets 12 1,090 138

Cash and cash equivalents 14 3,793 1,951

Currant assets 12,153 9,040

TOTAL ASSETS 34,403 34,236

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital 7.184 7.128
Additional paid-in capital 4,479 4,347

Treasury shares (649) (670)
Retained earnings and other 6,303 6,835

Vivendi $A shareowners’ equity 12,313 17,634

Non-controliing interests 221 222

Total equity 15 17.534 17,856

Non-current pravisions 18 1,431 15615
Long-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 19 3.448 4170
Deferred tax liabilities 6 753 589
Other non-current liabilities 248 226

Non-current liabilities 5,880 6,500

Current provisions 16 438 412
Short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 19 Beg 373
Trade accounts payabie and other 13 9,577 9019
Current tax payables 6 il 75
Current liabilities 10,989 9,880
Total liabilities 16,869 16,380
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 34.403 34,236

a. In 2018, Vivendi applied two new accounting standards: IFRS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 — Financial
Instruments, with no significant impact on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (please refer to Note 28 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros} Note 2018 2017

Operatiny activities
EBIT 4 1,182 1,018
Adjustments 201 432 53
Content investments, net {137} {317)
Gross cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid 1477 954
Other changes in net working capital {28 265
Net cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid 1,448 1219
Income tax (paid)/received, net 5.2 (262) 471
Nest cash pravided by operating activities 1187 1.690

Investing activities

Capital expenditures 3 (351) {2649
Purchases of consolidated companies, after acquired cash 2 {116} {3.481)
Investments in equity affiliates 1 13} 2y
Increase in financial assets 12 (575} {202)
{nvestments {1,045) {3,946}
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangibie assets 3 10 7
Praceeds from sales of consolidated companies, after divested cash 16 {5}
Disposal of equity affiliates 2 -
Decrease in financial assets 12 2,785 981
Divestituras 2313 978
Dividends received from equity affiliates 11 b i
Dividends received from unconsolidated companies 12 13 73
Net cash provided byflused for) investing activities 1,286 {2,939}
Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based compensation plans 18 190 162
Sales/(purchases) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares 15 - (203}
Distributions to Vivendi SA’s shareowners 15 (568) (499}
Other transactions with shareowners 116) {10
Dividends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controlling interests 47] (40}
Transactions with shareewners (441) (6001
Setting up of long-term borrowings and increase in other long-term financial liabilities 19 4 855
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease in other long-term financial liahilities (3) {8
Principal payment on short-term borrowings 19 {193 (1,024}
Other changes in shart-term barrowings and other financial iabil ities 18 65 64
Interest paid, net 5 {47 {53)
Other cash items refated to financial activities 5 {61}
Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabitities (169} {227)
Net cash provided byf{used for) financing activities (610} (827)
Foreign currency translation adjusiments of continuing operations 21} 145}
Change in cash and cash equivalents 1,842 12,121}

Cash and cash equivalents
Al baginning of the petiod 14 1,951 4072
At end of the period 14 3,793 1,951

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
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Year ended December 31, 2018 Capital Retainod earnings and othar
C
T shares Adotoral | P Tatal
Numier o Share paid-n 1E3SUY o toal comprehensive  Sublotal onuity
shares ; copital shares €arnings Intome
. capiial
Iin mithons of euros, excapt numbes of shares) Nate| fin thousands/ P
|BALANCE AS OF BECEMBER 31, 2017 - RESTATED 1,296,059 JAF: ] 431 [17.] 10198 E,537 538 . 1067 17,865
Attributabis to Vivandi SA sh 77”7 1,296,059 7128 aMT ) more| _ 551 BM5| 1764
| Astribatabis to Hing i - - - - - 21 222 222
Restatements reluted to the sppli of IFRS 8 - - - - - 11.338) 4 4
Atiubutable o Vivent] SA sharepners Ll - PEZT ] 4
Attributable to ron-contraiing interests - -
Rastatsments related to the spplication of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 by equity affilistes - - - - - {16 2 () 14
_ Attubutable to Vivendr A sharegwners - - - 118 s 14 f14)
Atttibutabla to ton-controfling intetests - - - - -
|BALANBE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2018 1.296.059 JAF:] M {6704 10,498 7,863 1806) 1,081 17.85%
"~ Attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1206058 2128 41 t7)  1orme|  z5m 745/ G| 1764
Changes in Vivendi SA’s ownership interest in its subsidiarizs that do not result in » loss of controf - - - - - 243 121). pred
i by/distrib 1o Yivendi SA sh 10175 5 1 21 m {572) - (572} (381)
Dividend paid on Aprit 24, 2018 with raspect to fiscal year 2017 (€0 45 per share} 15 - - - - [BEBI - 1968} 15681
Caprtat ncrease related to share-based compensation plans 19 140,375 56 134 il 2 (4 ] o7
of which emplayee Stack Purchase Flans (July 18, 7018} 5186 28 72 e - - - 100
exercice of STOCK-0ption Dy executive management and employecs 1.96% 27 52 - 59 - - 83
Changes in Vivandi SA's ownership interest in its subsidiaries thal do not result in # loss of cantrol - - - - - - - - -
CHANGES IN EQIMTY ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENDI SA SHAREDWNERS (&) 10,175 56 1 21 n 572} - 51 (361)
Contnbutions by/distrbutions 1 noa-contralling interests {40} (40 140}
Changes i non-controlling interests that result in a2 gainlloss] of contral - 20 - 20 20
CHANGES IN EQUTTY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS {B) - - - - - 120} - 20 (200
Earrings 157 - 157 141
Charges and inceme ditectly recogmzed in equity ] 3B (138} 1981 1981
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (C) - - - - - 195 {136) 54 ]
TOTAL CHANGES DYER THE PERIOD (A+B+L) 10,175 56 14 Pl 211 1337) (138); 1533) 1322}
Atinbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners o . . 10175 5 134 2t {399 n33 i532) Reral
Attributaile 1o non-coenirofing interests - - - - 2 3} {1 (1)
[BALAN[:E AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 1,306,234 pALL) 4475 {6H) 1,010 7,466 {942) 6,524 17,534
| Attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners o . 1.306.23¢ 18 4475 648 11810 2 {918} 63 17,313
Attributable to non-conirofling interests - - - - - 245 {24} 221 Prq)
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Year ended December 31, 2017 Capial Retaind earmings ond other
COMON SHares . gt i Total
(nonal el
! i Ri d .
Ni:’;:j Share paid-in ;::‘::g . Subtotal Hz:":;s tomprehensive  Subiotal equity
T caprtal capital nceme
{in mmillions of ewrgs, except nimbe: of shares) {in thousands]
BALANCE AS OF DECEMEBER 21, 28 1,267,088 | 1019 4238 {473 10844 8,004 764 8,788 19612
__Attributuble to Vivendi SA sharsownors o - 1,287,088 a8 423 {413 10844 748 8¢ 8539 19.383
Attributabie to non-¢ontrolling interests - - - - - 256 122) 29 229
Contributions by/distributions to Yivendi SA sharsownars B3N L] 10m {197} 185 (4} - {4g1) (526)
Sales/{puichases] of treasury shares - - (2031 (203 - {263)
Dividend paid on May 4, 7017 with respect 1o fiscal year 2016 (€0 40 per sharet - - - - {493} - {439 1499]
Capital in¢lease related 16 share-based compensation plans 8971 Lh] 103 [ 158 18 8 76
of which emptoyee Stock Purchase Plans (duly 25, 2017) 4,160 pal 45 - 88 68
exercrse of stock-aptions by executive management and empigyees 4811 i) 8 84 - - - 84
[Changes in Vivandi SA’s ownership inferest refated to & combination of businsases under common contral - - - - - 2,455 {65} (22205 {22204
Acquisition of Havas {2,155 165) 12.220] 12,2208
Changes in Vivendi SA's awnarship interast in its subsidieriss that do not sesult in a loas of control - - - - - 4 - 4 1
GHANGES N EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENDL SA SHAREOWNERS (A) 881 L) 103 L)) (a5) 12,632} 165} {2657 (2,742)
Contrrbutrons by distebutrans to non-coatrailng nterests - 24 - 1343 134}
Changes in non-gontralling interests related to a combination of businesses undal commen controt (44 14 8 {8}
Aecagniton of Havas s nonwontrolhing nterests - 9 f4). 15 15
Changes In non-cantrolling interests that feswit in a gaindloss) of contral 1] - 15 )
CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUFABLE TO NON-CONTROLUNG INTERESTS (B) - - - - - a3y 1 @n 141
Earmings 1,261 . 1,261 1,261
Charges and income divectly recognized in equity [l {1851 {206) {208)!
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (C) - - - - 1220 1165) 1058 1055
TOTAL CHANGES OVER THE PERIOD (A+B+C) 4371 ] 103 f197) s (1455 @3 (1689 (1.734)
| Attrbutable to Vivend SA shareowners . e 8971 LE] 103 na?) {45/) {L,442) (2401 {1.,682)) {1,227
Attributable to non-controfing interests - - 13 [ £7) i7)
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 - AS PUBLISHED 1,296,059 FAL:] 434 {sm); 10739 | 6549 53 479 1781
Attributabls to Vivend: SA sharsownars 0 tampse T8 e (676) 10798 6306 551 s857) 1765
Attributably to aor-contralling interests - - - - B 743 (1) 227 222
Restatements relsted to the application of IFRS 15 with retrospastive effact - - - - -1 {12) - {12)] {12
__ Atributabig to Vivend) SA shareowngts o - i B - B {12} {12) {12)
Attributabie to non-cenirothng interests - - - - -
IBAU\NCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 - RESTATED 1.296,059 7128 130 (870} 10,799 6,537 530 1.067 17,866
_ Attributable to Vivendi SA shareownors . - . _ | 206053 i 434 (670} 12789  &2M 851 685 17,684
Attributable 1o ing interests - - . - -+ 243 21 222 222
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivendi is a limited liability company (société anonyme) incorporated under French law and subject to French commercial company law
including the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce) Vivendi was incorporated an December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early disselution or unless its term is extended. Its registered office is located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Paris (France). Vivendi is listed on Euronext Paris (Compartment A).

Vivendi is an integrated cantent, media and communications group. The company operates husinesses throughout the media value chain,
from talent discovery to the creation, production and distribution of content. Universal Music Grou is the world ieader in music, engaged in
recorded music, music publishing and merchandising. It owns more than 50 labels covering all music genres. Canal+ Grougp is the {eading
pay-TV operator in France. also engaged in Poland, Africa and Asia Its subsidiary Studiocanal is & leading Furopean player in the production,
sale and distribution of movies and TV series. Havas is one of the world’s largest global communications group covering all the
communications disciplines: creativity, media expertise and healthcare/wellness. Gameloft is one of the leading mokile game publishers in
the world, with 2 million games downloaded daily across all platforms. Vivendi Village brings together Vivend! Ticketing {in Furope and the
United States), the companies that own and manage ali Paddington intellectual property rights (except for the publishing rights), as well as
live performance through Olympia Production, Festival Production and venues in Paris (L'Olympia and Théatre de L'CEuvre) and in Africa
(CanalQlympra). New initiatives groups together Dailymation, one of the world's largest videc content aggregation and distribution platforms,
as well as Vivendi Content, the new content creation unit, and Group Vivendi Africa (GVA), a subsidiary dedicated to the development of
uttra-high-speed Internet service in Africa.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries (the “group”) together
with interests in equity affiliates. Amounts are reported ir euros and &ll values are rounded to the nearest miltion.

On February 11, 2019, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Audited Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. They were reviewed by the Audit Committee at its
meeting held on February 12, 2019 and the Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 14, 2019.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 will be submitted to Vivendi's shareholders for approval at the
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 17, 2018.

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1.1 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union {EU}, and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB} with mandatory application as of December 31, 2018,

Among the new IFRS standards and iFRIC interpretations, which applied frem January %, 2018, the main subjects for Vivend: relate to
financial instruments and revenues.

1.1.1 Financial Instruments

IFRS § — Financial instruments, which was Issued by the IASB on July 24, 2014, endorsed by the EU on November 22, 2016 and published in
the Official Journal of the EU on November 29, 2016, applies mandatorily from January 1, 2018. Vivendi applied this standard with
retrospective effect from January 1, 2018,

IFRS @ applies to all financial instruments and sets the principles goveming the classification and measurement of financial assets and
liahilities, impairment for credit risk on financial assets (including impairment of trade receivables) and hedge accounting.

The main impacts for Vivendi on the accounting of financial instruments relates to the classification of financial assets. Thus, from
January 1, 2018, financial assets have heen classified into the accounting categories "financial assets at amortized cost”, “financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income” and "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.

This classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and on contractual terms enabling to determing
whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI}. The financial assets that contain an embedded derivative are
considered in their entirety to determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.
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For Vivendi, the main material impact of the application of this standard relates to the election of the accounting classification for the equity
portfalio, considering the removal of the “available-for-sale” category under which these interasts were accounted for until
December 31, 2017:

« for certain equity securities, including Ubisoft, Vivendi elected to classify such securities into the category “fair value through prefit
or lass”; the difference (£1,338 million) between the carrying value as of December 33, 2017 and the purchase price was reclassitied
from charges and income directly recognized in equity, to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, to retained earnings. In
particular, as part of the initial application of the IFRS 9 accounting standard, the cumulative unrealized capital gain as of December
31, 2017, relating to Vivendi’s interest in Ubisoft {€1.160 million), was recorded as retained earnings as of January 1, 2018. Under
1AS 39, which was applicable until Cecember 31, 2017, it would have been reported to profit or loss as part of the sale that occurred
during the first half of 2018 (please refer to Note 2.3); and

e for other equity securities, Vivendi elected to classify such securities into the category “fair value through other comprehensive
income not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss”; the difference {(-€197 million) between the carrying value as of December 31,
2017 and the purchase price was reclassified from charges and income directly recognized in equity, to be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss, ta charges and income directly recogrized in equity, not ta be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

The application of this standard has no other material impact on Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements. On January 1, 2018,
consalidated equity was adjusted to account for the cumulative imgacts of the application of IFRS 9. For a description of these main impacts,
please refer to Note 28. The comparative period in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which were impacted by IFRS 9, is
presentad as of January 1, 2018, to the extent applicable.

1.1.2  Revenues

IFRS 15 ~ Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued by the |ASB on May 28, 2014, endorsed by the EU on September 22, 2018,
published in the Official Journal of the EU gn Octoher 29, 2018, and applies mandatorily from January 1, 2018,

Viverdi applied IFRS 15 retrospectively from January 1, 2017, The 2017 Consolidated Financial Stetements, mainly the Statement of
Earnings. have been adjusted for comparisen purposes. The main impacts for Vivendi of the application of IFRS 15 are not material on
Vivendi’s Consolidated Financial Statements and are detailed in Note 28,

IFRS 15 sets forth new principles in terms of revenue recognition {notably regarding the identification of performance obligations and the
allocation of the transaction price for contracts invalving multiple elements), and changes criteria for analyzing agent and principal
considerations, as well as the inclusion of variable consideration. The main point of attention for Vivendi relates to the accounting of
intellectual property licensing revenues.

Inteltectual property licensing {musical and audiovisual works)

These licenses transfer to a customer either a right to use an entity's intellectual property as it exists at the point in time at which the
license is granted {static license), or a right to access an entity's intellectual property as it exists throughout the license period {dynamic
license}.

Revenues are accounted for when the performance obligation promised in the contract is satisfied (static license) or over time as it is
satisfied (dynamic license), i.e., when the seller transfers the risks and rewards of the right to use/access the intellectual property and the
customer obtains controf of the use/access of that ficense. Consequently, revenues from static licenses are recognized at the point in time
when the license is transferred, and the customer is able to use and benefit from the license. Revenues from dynamic licenses are accounted
for over time, over the license period from the date the custormer is able to use and benefit from the license.

Analysis of the Agent/Principal relationship in the sales transactions involving a third party

If the nature of the entity's promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself, then the entity acts on its
own behalf and it is "principal " in the sale’s transaction; it accounts for revenue for the gross amount of consideration to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for the goods or services provided, and the commission due to the third-party as cost of revenues. If the entity
arranges for a third-party to provide the goods or services specified in the contract, then it recognizes as revenues, the net amount of
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods or services provided.

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121  Consolidated Statement of Earnings
The main line items presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Farnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest,

provision for income taxes, net earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and net eanings. The Consolidated Statement of
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Earnings presents a subtotal of Earnings Before Interest and Tax iEBIT) equal o the difference between charges and income (excluding those
financing activities, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxas).

The charges and income relating to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
incomne as defined in paragraph 1.2.3 and presented in Note 5.

Changes in presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

To ensure the consistency of the presentation of Vivendi's Cansolidated Statement of Earnings with the one prepared by Bolleré Group,
which decided te fully consolidate Vivendi into its Consolidated Financial Statements as from April 26, 2017, Vivendi made the following
changes in presentation of its Consolidated Statement of Earnings as from January 1, 2017:

« when the companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence engage in operations that are similar in nature to the
group’s operations, income from equity affiliates is classified to “Farnings Before Interest and Income Taxes™ (EBIT); and

o the impacts related to financial investment cperations, which were previously reported in “other operating charges and income” in
EBIT, are reclassified to “other financial charges and income”. They include capital gains or losses on the divestiture or depreciation
of equity affiliates and other financial investments.

Moreover, the impacts of transactions with shareowners (except when directly recognized in equityl, in particular the €240 million reversal of
reserve recorded as of December 31, 2016 relating to the Liberty Media litigation in the United States, continue to be recorded in EBIT.

In accordance with IAS 1, Vivendi has applied these changes in presentation to all periods previously published.
1.22  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities is calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT. EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital. Net cash provided by operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and inrtangible assets.

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities inciudes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends received from equity affiliates). It also includes any cash flows arising from the gain
or loss of contro! of subsidiaries.

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of ather items related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
derivative instruments. [t also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do net result in & foss of control
{including increases in ownership interests).

123  Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivendi considers Adjusted Eamings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), income from operations, Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow
From Operations (CFFO), non-GAAP measures, to be relavant indicators of the group’s cperating and financial performance.

EBITA

Vivendi considers EBITA, & non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data. It enables Vivendi to compare the operating performance of cperating segments regardiess of whether their performance
is driven by the operating segment’s organic growth or by acquisitions. To calculate EBITA, the accounting impact of the following items is
excluded from the income from EBIT:

= the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations;

s impairment tosses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations;

« income from equity affiliates having similar operating activities; and

= other income and charges related to transactions with shareowners, which inciude gains and losses recognized in business

combinations, as well as gains or lcsses incurred from the gain or toss of control in a business.
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Income from operations

Vivendi considers income from operations, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating
segments as reported in the segment data. As defined by Vivendi, income from operations is calculated as EBITA, before share-based
compensation costs related to equity-settled plans and cash-settled plans, and special items due to their unusual nature or particular
significance,

Adjusted net income

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance, Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because it provides a better illustration of the underlying performance of
continuing operations by excluding most nan-recurring and non-operating items. Adjusted net income includes the following items:

e EBITA(**};

= income from equity affiliates {*;

« interest (*), equal to interest expense cn borrowings net of interest income sarned on cash and cash equivalents;

+ income from investments (*), including dividends and interest received from uncansolidated companies; and

* taxes and non-controlling interests related ta these items.

It does not include the following items:

= amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**) as well as impairment igsses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations (*] (**};

« other income and charges refated to transactions with shareowners (*}, as defined above;

+ other financial charges and income {*), equal to capital gains or losses related to divestitures, or the depreciation of equity affiliates
and other financial investments, the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the termination or change
in value of financial liabilities, which primarfly include changes in the fair value of derivative instruments, premiums from the early
redemgtion of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of issuing or cancelling credit facilities, the cash
impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than those related to operating activities, included in EBIT), as well as the effect of
undiscounting assets and Habilities, and the financial components of employee benefits {interest cost and expected return on plan
assets;

« earnings from discontinued operations (*); and

» previsions for income taxes and adjustments attributable to non-controliing interests and non-recurring tax items {notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA's tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liabilities relating to risks extinguished over the period).

{*) lrems as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, (**) ltems as reported by each operafing segment as repotted in the
segment data.

Cash Flow From Dperations (CFFO)

Vivendi censiders cash flow from operations (CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group's operating and
financial performance. The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received fram equity affiliates and uncansolidated companies. It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities consists of dividends received from equity affiliates and
unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net {(which are included in net cash used for investing activities), income tax paid, net
and net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations, which are excluded from CFFO.

124  Censolidated Statement of Financial Position
Assets and liabilities that are expected tc be realized, or intended for sale or consumpticn, within the entity's normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or liabilities. If their maturity exceeds this period, they are recordged as non-current

assets or liabilities. Moreover, certain reclassifications were made to the 2017 and 2016 Consolidated Financia! Statements to conform to
the presentation of the 2018 and 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.3 Principles governing the preparation of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Pursuant te IFRS principles, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, with the exception of
certain assets and liabitities, for which IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures applies. Relevart
categories are detailed below.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup items and
transactions. Vivendi has a December 31 year-end. Subsidiaries that do not have a December 31" year-erd prepare interim financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months preceding December 317

Acnuired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition.
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consclidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic. Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivendi
Management, based in particular on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumnptions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings.

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of:
o revenue: estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees (please refer to Note 1.3.4);
« provisions: risk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course cof procedures
may lead te a risk reassessment at any time (please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 16);
= employee henefits: assumptions are ugdated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and the inflation rate (please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 17},
o share-based compensation: assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
yield (please refer to Notes 1.3.10 and 18);
= deferred taxes: estimates used for the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 1.3.9 and 6);
« goodwill and other intangible assets: valuation methods used to identify intangible assets acquired through business combinations
{please refer to Note 1.3.5.2);
= goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress: assumptions relating to impairment tests performed
on each of the group’s cash-generating units (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates are updated annually (please refer to
Notes 1.3.5.7 and 9};
e UMG content assets: estimates of the future performance of beneficiaries who received advances are recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position (please refer to Notes 1.3.5.3 and 10); and
« certain financial instruments: valuation method at fair value defined according to the three following classification levels {please
referto Notes 1.35.8,1.37,12, 14 and 19):
Level 1: fair value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: fair value measurement hased cn ohservable market data {other than quoted prices included under Level 1); and
Level 3: fair valve measurement based on valuation technigues using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.
The fair value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payabie is a reasonable
estimate of fair value, due to the short maturity of these instruments.

132  Principles of consoelidation

For a list of Vivendi's major subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated entities, piease refer to Note 24.
Consolidation

All companies in which Vivendi has a controlling interest, namely those in which it has the power to govern financial and operational policies
to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated.

Control as defined by IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements is based on the three criteria helow to be fulfilled cumulatively to assess
if the parent company exercises control:

« aparent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing rights that give it the curent ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, i.e . the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary's returns. Power may arise from
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual arrangements. Voting rights must he substantial, i.e., exercisable at any time
without limitation, particularly during decision making processes related to significant activities. Assessment of the exercise of

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 43



Thursday February 14, 2019

power depends on the nature of the subsidiary's relevant activities, the internat decision-making process, and the allocation of rights
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners;

« the parent company s expased, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary's performance. The concept of returns is broadly defined and includes, among other things, dividends and other
economic benefit distributions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary. economies of scale, and business synergies;
and

« the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns. Exercising power without having any impact on returns
does not qualify as control.

Consolidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as if the group was a single economic entity with two categories of owners:
{i} the owners of the parent company (Vivendi SA shareawners) and (i) the owners of non-controlling interests (minority shareholders of the
subsidiaries). A non-controlling interest is defined as the interest in a subsidiary that is not attributable, whether directly or indirectly, to a
parent company. As a result, changes to a parent company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control only
impact equity, as centrot of the economic entity does not change. Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a
consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-
controliing interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners. Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved
in stages or a loss of control gives rise to profit or loss in the statement of earnings.

Accounting for joint arrangements
IFRS 11—~ Joint Arrangements establishes pringiples for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement.

In a joint arrangement, parties are bourd by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint contzol of the arrangement. An entity that
is a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties control of the
arrangement coflectively, Once it has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively contral the arrangement, joint
cantrol exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties that coliectively control the
arrangement.

Joint arrangements are classified into two categories:
= joint operations: these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have jeint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liahilities, relating to the arrangement. Those parties are called joint operaters. A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jointly; and

= joint ventures: these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Those parties are called joint venturers. Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest in a joint venture
as an investment and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with |AS 28 — investments in
Assoctates and Joint Ventures (please refer below).

Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivendi exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method.

Significant influence is deemed to exist when Vivendi holds, whether directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting rights in an entity
unless it can he clearly established that Vivendi does not exercise & significant influence. Significant influence can be evidenced through
other criteria, such as representation on the entity's board of directors or equivalent governing body, participation in policy-making of
financial and operational processas, material transactions with the entity or the interchange of managerial personnel.

133  Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros. The functicnal currency of Vivendi SA and the presentation
currency of the group is the euro.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. At the clasing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity’s functionat currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date. All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity. These differences are allocated directly
to charges and income directly recognized in eguity until the divestiture of the net investment.
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Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsiciaries, juint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency is not the euro are translated into euros as follows: the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position is
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consclidated Statement of Eamings and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the period. The resulting translaticn gains and josses are recorded as
foreign currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity. In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi elected to
reverse the accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004. These foreign currency
translation differences resulted from the translation into euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries that use foreign currencies as their
functional currencies. Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to eamings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associates whose functionat currency is not the euro.

1.34  Revenues and associated costs

Revenues from contracts with customers are recorded when performance obligations promised in the contract are satisfied, and for an
amount for which it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. Revenues
are reported net of discounts.

1.34.1 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded Music

The sales of recorded music (physical, digital downloading or streaming) are intellectual property licenses granted by UMG to distributors or
digital platforms and which give them certain rights over the company’s musical works. In its refationship with the distributor/digital
platform and the end customer, UMG cannot be “principal”, as the distributar or the digital platferm is responsibfe for setting the transfer of
cantrol conditions of the right of use granted by the license to the end customer {broadcasting, price setting and conditions for reselling the
physical devices).

Physical sales of recorded music (CDs, DVDs and Vinyls}

These intellectual property licenses are static licenses transfering to the customer a right to use UMG's recordings as they exist at the paint
in time at which the ficense is granted, i.e., on the physical devica sold.

Revenues from the physical sales of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 1.3.4,5) and rebates, if any,
are accounted for, either: (i) upon the sale to the distributor, at the shipping point for products sold free on board (FOB) or on delivery for
products sold free on destination; or (i) upon the sale to the final customer for consignment sales.

Digital sales of recorded music, via downloading or streaming by subscription or free of charge

These intellectual property licenses are generally dynamic licenses providing a right to access the entire catalog of recorded music as it
exists throughout the ficense period considering potential add-ons to, or withdrawals from, the catalog during that period.

The consideration paid by the digital platform is variable in the form of & sales-based or a usage-based royalty. Revenues are then accounted
for when these subsequent sales or usages occur. Revenues from digital sales of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate,
and reliable data from digital ptetforms, are recognized at the end of the month in which the sale or usage is made by the end customer. If
such data is not available, revenues are recognized when the digital platform notifies UMG of the sale or usags by the end customer.

For digital sales of recorded music streaming by subscription or free of charge, certain contracts may include a non-refundabte minimum
guarantee which is generally recoupable and is in substance an advance payment. In the case of a dynamic license, the minimum guarantee
is spread over the period to which it relates 1o and takes into account the amount of royalties that is actually recoupable. The minimum
guarantee is hence apportioned in accardance with the accounting for these royalties.

Musie publishing

Music publishing relates to the use by a third party of the copyrights on musical works owned or administered by UMG, which are
intellectuat property licenses that UMG grant to the third party and which provides a right to access a catalog of recorded music, as these
intellectual property licenses are dynamic lizenses.

The consideration paid by the third-party, notably a collection society (e.g., company for the collective managament af intellectual-property
rights) is variable in the form of a royalty based on the usage by the third party. The variable consideration being accounted for when these
subsequent usages occur, revenuas from music publishing are accounted for when the collection society notifies UMG of the usage by the
end customer and collectability is assured.
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Merchandising

Revenues from merchandising are recognized either upon sale to the end customer, from direct sales during touring, concessions and over
the internet; on delivery for sales by a third-party distributor; when a contract is signed, or when an invoice has been Issued and the
coflectability is assured for sales of rights attached to meschandising products.

1.3.4.2 Canal+ Group

Terrestrial, satellite or ADSL television subscription services
Subscription to programs

Each subscription to a contract for pay-tv services is considered as a series of distinct services that are substantially the same and that have
the same pattern of transfer to the customer. The provision of set-top boxes, digital cards and access fees do not represent distinct services
or goods, and they are combined with the subscription service as a single performance obligation satisfied over time, as the customer
simuttaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by Canal+ Group's performance as the pay-tv services are supplied. In its
relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group acts as “principal” in the transaction with the end customer
for the self-distribution contracts as it is responsible for the activation of the subscription of the end customer and for setting the selling
price.

Revenues, net of potential gratuities granted, are then accounted for over the period the service is provided from the activation date of the
subscription and as the service is pravided,
Video-on-demand and television-on-demand services

The video-on-demand service, which allows customers to have unlimited access to a catalog of programs through streaming and the
television-on-demand service, and through providing access to one-time programs by downloading or streaming, are distinct services from
the subscription service. In its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group is not “principal”, as the third-
party distributor is responsible for the performance of the service both technically and commercially.

The video-on-demand service is a performance obligation which is satisfied over time, and the revenues are accounted for over the period it
is provided to the customer. The television-on-demand service is a performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, and the revenues are
accounted for when the content is availabie for broadcasting.

Sales of advertising spaces

These are sales of television advertising spaces (in the form of classic TV commercials and of partnerships for shows ar events} or
advertising spaces on the website (videos and advertising banners).

Pay and free-to-air television

in regard to commercials, the distinct performance obligation is the reach of a gross rating point which generally comprises a set of
advertising messages aimed at a specific target audience and satisfied over time. Revenues from these sales, net of rebates if any, are
accounted for over the period of the advertising campaign, generally because the advertising commercials are broadcasted considering
potential free periods granted.

Website

Each type of advertising impression (advertising display) represents a distinct performance obligation, because the advertiser can benefit
separately from each type of advertising imprint, satisfied at a point in time. Revenues from the sale of advertising spaces on the website,
net of rebates, if any, are accounted for when the advertising imprints are produced, i.e., when the advertisements are broadcasted on the
website.

Film and television programs
Physical sales of movies (DVDs and Blu-rays)
Ptease refer to the section on physical sales of recorded music (CDs, DVDs and Vinyls) at UMG.

Sales of exploitation rights of audiovisual works

These sales are intellectual property licenses granted by Canal+ Group to broadcasters or to distributors and which give them certain rights
over its audiovisual works. These licenses are static licenses because they transfer a right to use the films as they exist at the point in time
at which the licenses are granted. in its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group is not “principal” in
the transaction with the end customer, as the distributor is responsible for the delivery of the film and for the price setting to the end
customer.
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Revenues from the sale of the exploitation rights are recorded from the moment the client is able to use it and obtain the remaining benefits.
When the consideration paid by the customer is a fixed price, revenues from the sales of exploitation rights are recorded from the latest of
the delivery and the opening of the exploitation window set contractually or legally (refer to the media chronology in France). When the
consideration paid by the customer is variable in the form of a sales-based royalty to the end customer, revenues are recognized as the
subsequent sale ocours.

1.3.43 Havas

Aevenues from Havas derive substantially from fees and commissions for its activities:
» Creative: advice and services provided in the fields of communications and media strategy; and
» Media: planning and purchase of advertising spaces.

For each sale’s transaction, Havas identifies if it acts as "principal” or not, based on its level of responsitility in the execution of the
performance obligation, the contro! of the inventory and the price setting. Revenues are then recegnized, net of costs incurred for production
when Havas does nct act as “principal”.

When Havas acts as "principal”, certain pass-through costs rebilled to customers, which were deducted from revenues in accordance with
|AS 18 (applicable until December 31, 2017), are now recorded as revenues and as costs of revenues in accordance with {FRS 15. Given that
these pass-through costs are not included in the measurement of the cperating performance, Havas decided to use a new indicator, “net
revenues”, corresponding to revenues less these pass-through costs rebilled to customers.

Commissions are accountad for at a point in time, at the date the service is parformed or at the date the media is aired or published.

Fees are accounted for as revenues as per the following:
= one-off or project fees are recognized at the point in time when the service is performed. If these fees include a qualitative aspect,
they are result is assessed by the client at the end of the project; and
» fixed fees are generally recognized over time on a straight-line basis reflecting the expected duration of the service; fees based on
time spent are recognized as work is performed.

Certain contractual arrangements with clients also include performance incentives pursuant to which Havas is entitled to receive additional
payments based upon its performance for the client, measured against specified qualitative and quantitative objectives. Havas recognizes
the incentive portion of the revenue under these contractual arrangements when it is considered highly probable that the gualitative and
quantitative goals are achieved in accordance with the arrangements.

1.34.4 Gameloft

Digital sales of video games on mobile devices

The gaming experience sold by Gameloft is composed of a license to use a video game on mobile devices (which can be pre-set on the
mebile terminal), and, if any, adds-in, which allows the player to progress in the video game {virtual elements, time-limited events and multi-
player functionality).

The grant of a video game to an end customer through a third-party distributor, digital platform, telecom eperator or mobile device
manufacturer, as well as the virtual elements acquired in the video game, the time-limited events and the multi-ptayer functionality,
represent a single performance obligation in the form of an intellectual property license granted by Gameloft to third-party distributors.

These licenses are static because they transfer a right to use the video game as it exists at the point in time at which the license is granted,
as Gameloft has na obligation to update the video game. In its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Gameloft
acts as "principal” in the transaction with the end customer, when Gameloft is responsible for providing the video game license and for
setting the price to the end customer.

The consideration paid by the third-party distributor is variable in the form of a sales-based royalty. Revenues are ther accounted for when
the subseguent sale oeours.
Sales of advertising spaces in video games, in the form of videos and advertising banners

The advertising display in a video game is an advertising impression corresponding to a distinct performance obiigation, as the advertiser can
benefit separately fram each type of advertising impression, satisfied at a paint in time.

Revenues from the sale of advartising spaces in video games, net of rebates if any, are then accounted for when the advertising impressions
are produced, i.e., when the advertisements are published. Whan the sale is made by a third party (media agency or auction platform,
Gameloft is generally “principal” in the sale’s transaction with the advertiser, notably when Gameloft is responsible for technically supplying
the advertising impression, as well as for setting the price.
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1.34.5 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors. The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers.

Selling, general and administrative expenses primarily include salaries and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses.

Advertising costs are expensed wher incurred.

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenuss. However, cooperative advertising at UMG
is treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit is individualized and can be estimated.

135  Assets
1.3.5.1 Capitalized financial interest

When appropriate, Vivendi capitalizes financial interest incurred during the constryction and acquisition period of intangible assets, and
property, plant and equipment, these interests being incfuded in the cost of qualifying assets.

1.35.2 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinaticns are recorded using the acquisition method. Under this method, upon the initial consalidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive controi:
» the identifiable assets acquired and the lizbilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date; and
« non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at the non-cantrolling interest's pyoportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets. This option is available on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

On the acquisiticn date, goedwill is initially measured as the difference between:
{i} the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-contiolling interssts in the acquires and, in @ business
combination achigved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree; and
(if) the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase in goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwill”. The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the
acquisition date. If goodwill is negative, it is recognized in the Statement of Earnings. Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwill is
measured at its initial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses (please refer to Note 1.3.5.7 below).

in addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations:

« on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination;

» contingent consideration in a business combination is recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurring after the purchase price allocation perfod is recognized in the Statements of Eamnings;

¢ acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred;

« in the event of the acguisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivendi rocognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-cantrolling interests acquired as a change in equity atiributabie to Vivendi SA shareowners; and

e goodwill is not amortized.

Business combinations prior to January 1., 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivendi elected not tg restate business eombinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004. IFRS 3, as publishea by the
IASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition methed. However, its provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respect of the
main following items:
« minority interests were measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no aption for
measuremer at fair valug;
« contingent consideration was recognized in the cast of acquisition only if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
retiably measured;
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» transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs; and
« inthe event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subs:diary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minority interests acquired was recognized as goodwill.

1.35.3 Content assets

UMG

Royalty advances to artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current popularity and past perfarmances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against eamings otherwise payable to
them is reasonably assured. Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher. Any portion of capitalized royalty advances rot deemed to be recoverable against future royalties is expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident. These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues.

Rovalties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the period during which the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns.

Change in estimate

Music rights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and music publishing rights acquired through business combinations. The
annual review of the value of the intangible assets, undertaken by Vivendi at year-end 2015 led to a change in the amortization method of
music rights and catalogs as from January 1, 2017, which notably resulted in an extension of the amortization period from 15 to 20 years. As
part of this review, Vivendi concluded that the value of music rights and catalogs had increased and that the useful life was longer than
previously estimated, given recent chenges in the outlook for the international music market, driven in particular by the development of
subscription streaming services. In 2017, the impact over the peried of this forward-looking change in estimate on the amortization expense
amounted to €34 million (net of deferred taxes).

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting rights, the rights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments. They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and ciassified as content assets as follows;
e film and television broadcasting rights are recogrized at their acquisition cost when the program is available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period;
s sports broadeasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast; and
+ expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights is included in cost of revenues.

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquired to be sold to third parties

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquired before their initial exhibition to be sold to third parties, are recorded as a content
asset at capitalized cost {mainiy direct production and overhead costs) or at their acguisition cost. The cost of theatrical films and television
rights are amortized, and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method (i.e., based on the ratio of the current
period's gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis). Vivendi considers that
amortization pursuant to the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits
related to the asset, and there is a high correlation between revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the
intangible assets,

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against earnings for the period in which the losses are estimated, on an
individual product basis.

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs comprise film rights acquired for a second television screening, or produced or acquired film and television rights that are sold to
third parties after their first television screening (i.e., after their first broadcast on a free terrestrial channel). They are recognized as an asset
at their acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated reverue methad.

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred. Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain.
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Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs ingurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage. Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, instaliation and testing. Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitalized.
These capitalized costs are amortized over 5 to 10 years. Maintenance, minor upgrades, and enhancement costs are expensed as they are
incurred.

Cost of developing video games

Development costs of video games are capitalized when both the technical feasibility and the management’s intention to complete the game
50 that it will be available for use and sale are verified, and when the recoverability is reasonably assured. Because of the uncertainty that
exists regarding those criteria, the recognition requirements of 1AS 38 are usually not met until the game is launched. Therefore, costs of
developing mobile games are expensed as incurred.

1.3.55 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date. The historical cost model is applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized.
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test. Amortization is accrued for assets with a
finite useful life. Useful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period,

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses. By contrast, music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and
market shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets.

1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historica! cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attributable to transporting an asset to its physical focation and preparing it for
its operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation
of the physical location resulting from the incurred abligation.

When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recarded and amortized separately.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated usefui life of the assets. Useful lives of the main
components are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are as follows:

o buildings: 5 to 40 years;

« equipment and machitery: 3 to 8 years;

» set-top boxes: 5 to 7 years; and

» other: 2 to 10 years.

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future lease payments and the market value ard
the related debt is recorded as “Borrowings and other financial liabilties”. In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful Iife, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, piant and equipment in the same category. Amortization
expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses.

After initial recognition, the cost model is applied to property, plant and equipment.

Vivendi has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, invalving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair valug as of January 1, 2004.

On January 1, 2004, in accardance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Intergretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains a Jease, which mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group satellite capacity, which are commercial
service agreements that, in general, do nat convey a right to use a specific asset. Contract costs under these agreements are consequently
expensed as operational costs for the period.

1.35.7 Asset impairment

Each time events or changes in the economic environment indicate a risk of impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, and assets in progress, Vivendi re-examines the value of these assets. In addition, in accordance with appiicable accounting
standards, goadwill, other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual
impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. This impairment test is performed to compare the recoverable amount of
each Cash Generating Unit {CGU) or, if necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets (including goodwill). A
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CGU is the smallest identifiabie group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from ather
assets or qroups of assets. Vivendi operates through different media and content businesses. Each business offers different products and
services that are marketed through various channels. CGUs are independently defined at each business level, correspanding to the group
operating segments. For a description of Vivendi's CGUs and groups of CGUs, piease refer to Note 9.

The recoverable amount is determined for each individual asset as the higher of: (1) its value in use; and (i} its fair value {less costs to sell) as
described hereafter. If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the group of assets. In particular, an impairment test of goodwill is performed by Vivendi for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations.

The value in use of each asset or group of assets is determined, subject to exceptions, as the discounted vzlue of future cash flows
(Discounted Cash Flow method (DCF)) by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent
forecasts prepared by the operating segments.

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available externat sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivendi of the time vaiue of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets.

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates.

The fair value (less costs to sell) is the price that would be received from the saie of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transacticn
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell. These values are generally determined on the basis of market data
{stock market prices or comparison with simifar listed companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent
transactions) or, in the absence of such data, on the basis of discontinued cash fiows.

If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference is
recognized in EBIT. In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss is first recorded against goodwill.

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {other than goodwilll may be reversed in
a iater period if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of impairment losses previcusly recognized.
Impairment iosses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date.

1358 Financial assets

Firancial assets are initially recognized at fair valus corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, which is best evidenced by the
acquisition cost (including associated acquisition costs, if any). Thereafter, financial assets are measured at fair value or at amortized cost
depending on which financial asset category they belong to.

From January 1, 2018, firancial assets are classified into the accounting categories "financial assets at amortized cost”, “financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income” and "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss".

This classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and on contractual terms enabling to determine
whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPFI), The financial assets that contain an embedded derivative should
be considered in full to determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

Financial assets at fair value

These include financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments with a positive value
(please refer to Note 1.3.7) and cther financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. Most of these financial assets are
actively traded in organized financial markets, as their fair value is calculated by reference to the published market price at the period end.
Fair value is estimated for financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market. As a last resort, when a reliable
estimate of fair value canrot be made using valuation technigues in the abserce of an active market, the group values financial assets at
historical cost, less any impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income include:

* Unconsolidated companies that are not held for trading: Vivendi elected to classify these into the category "fair value through
other comprehensive income”. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognized in charges and income directly recognized in equity until the financial asset is sold, collected or removed from the
Statement of Financial Position in another way, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
incorne directly recognized in equity is transferred to retained earnings and never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends and
interest received from unconsolidated companies are recognized in profit or loss,
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e  [Debt instruments held within a business mode! whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and whose contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive incoms are recognized in charges and income directly recognized in equity until the financial asset is sold, collected
or remaved from the Statement of Financial Pasition in other ways, at which time the sccumulated gain or loss previously reparted
in charges and income directly recognized in equity is expensed in other financial charges and income.

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or lass mainly consist of assets heid for trading which Vivendi intends to sell in
the near future (primarily marketable securities) and other financiai assets unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Unrealized gains and Iosses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and income.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to
collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. At the end of each
period, these assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, #f there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, the amount of this toss, measured as the difference between the financia! asset's carrying value and its recoverable
amount {egual to the present value of estimated future cash fiows discounted at the financial asset's initial effective interest rate), is
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment lossas may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future.

Impairment of financial assets

Vivendi assesses the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets recognized at amortized cost and debt instrument recognized at
fair value through other comprehensive income an a prospective basis. A loss alfowance for expected credit loss based on probability of
default is recognized at initial recognition. The loss allowance is updated for changes in these expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

To assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, Vivendi compares the credit risk at the reporting date with the credit
risk at the date of injtial recognition based on reasonable forward-looking information and events, including credit ratings if available,
significant adverse economic changes {actual or expected), financial or business environment that are expected to resuit in a material change
in the borrower's ability to meet its obligations.

The definition of default and write off policy are defined specifically within each operating entity.
1.359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost comprises purchase costs, preduction costs and other supply and
packaging costs. These are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realizable value is the estimated seliing price in
the normal course of business, 1ess estimated completion costs and selling costs.

1.3.5.10 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, which is generally equal to their nominal vaiue. Expected loss rates on trade
receivables are calculated by the relevant operating entities over their lifetime from initial recognition and are based on historical data that
also incorporates forward-looking information. In addition, account receivables from customers subject to insolvency proceedings or
customers with whom Vivend! is inveived in litigation or a dispute are generaily impaired in full.

1.3.5.11 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” categery, defined in accordance with 1AS 7, consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy ANC
and AMF position expectations expressed in November 2018, and other highly liquid investments with initial maturities of generally three
months or less. Investments in securities, investmsnts with inftial maturities of mote than three months without an early termination option
and bank accounts subject to restrictions (blocked accounts), ather than restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector
(e.g., exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as financial assets. Moreover, the historical performances of the
investments are monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting classification.

1.3.6  Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and liabilities is held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization. To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 52



Thursday February 14, 2019

must be highly probable. These assets and liabilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for
sale, without offset. The refated assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the fowest value between the fair value (net of
divestiture fees) and the carrying value (ie., at their cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses), and are no longer
depreciated.

An operation is qualified as discontinued when it represents a separate major fine of business and the criteria for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivend: hias sald the asset. Discontinued aperations are reported on a single tine of the Statement of
Earnings for the periods reported, comprising the sarnings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and {iabilities of the discontinued operaticns. In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consclidated Cash Flows for the relevant periods.

1.3.7  Financial liabilities

Long-term and short-term horrowings and other financial liabilities include:
s bonds and credit facilities, as well as various other borrowings (including commerciat paper and debt related to finance leases) and
related accrued interest;
» obligations arising out of commitments tc purchase non-cantrolling interests;
» hank overdrafts; ang
» the negative value of other derivative financial instruments. Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Borrowings

All barrowings are initially accounted for at fair value nat of transaction costs directly attributable to the borrowing. Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequantly valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the internal yield
rate that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing. In addition, where the borrowing comarises an embedded derivative
{e.g.. an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument {e.g., a convertible bond), the amortized cost is calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument. In the event of a change in expected future cash flows le.q., redemption
occurs earlier than initially expected}, the amortizad cost is adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows,
discounted at the initial effective interest rate.

Commitments to purchage non-controlling interests

Vivendi has committed to purchase the non-controiling interests of some of the minority shareowners of its fully consolidated subsidiaries.
These purchase commitments may be optional (e.g., put options} or mandatory {e.g.. forward purchase contracts).

The fcllowing accounting treatment has been applied in respect of commitments made on or after January 1, 2009:

» upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests is recognized as a financial liability for the present
value of the purchase price under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset by the book value of non-controlling
interests and the remaining halance through equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners;

« subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability through an adjustment to equity
attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners; and

= upon maturity of the commitment, if the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recegnized entries are reversed; if
the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial liabilities is reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-contralling interests.

Derivative financial instruments

Vivendi uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates. All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties. These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and farward exchange contracts. All these derivative financial instruments are used
for hedging purposes. At the inception of the hedging refationship there is the formal designation and documentation of the hedging
relationship and the entity’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

Derivatives are iritially measured at fair value on the settlement date and are subsequently remeasured at fair value on each succeeding
reporting date. The recognition of subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument
and, if applicable, the nature of the hedged item and the type of hedging relationship designated. When these contracts qualify as hedges
for accounting purposes, gains and losses arising on these contracts are offset in eamings against the gains and losses relating to the
hedged item.
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When forward contracts are used as hedging instruments, Vivendi only qualifies as hedging instruments the change in the fair value of the
forward contract related to the variation of the spot exchange rate. Changes in the forward points are excluded from the hedging relationship
and are recognized in financial result.

Fair value hedge

When the derivative financial instrument hadges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value of an asset or a liability recognized in the
Statement of Finangial Position or of a firm commitment which is aot recognized in the Statement of Financial Position, it is a fair value
hedge. The instrument is remeasured at fair value in earnings, with the gains or losses arising on remeasurement of the hedged portion of
the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Eamings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction relating to a non-financial asset
of liability, at the initial cost of the asset or liability.

Cash flow hedge

When the derivative financial instrument hedges cash flows, it is a cash flow hedge. The hedging instrument is remeasured at fair value and
the portion of the gain or loss that is determined to be an effective hedge is reccgnized through charges and income directly recognized in
equity, whereas its ineffective pertion is recognized in eamings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liability,
they are recognized at the initial cost of the asset or liability. When the hedged item is realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized in
equity are refeased to the Statement of £arnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item.

Net investment hedge

When the derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, it is recognized in the same way as a cash flow
hedge. Derivative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting
gains and losses are recagnized directly in earnings, without remeasurement of the underfying instrument.

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to forcign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget expasures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant 1o the acquisition of editorial content rights (including sposts, audiovisuai and film rights) are recognized in
EBIT. In ali other cases, gains and losses arising on the fair valug remeasurement of instruments are recognized in other financial charges
and income.

1.3.8  Qther liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting period, Vivendi has a legal obligation {statutory, regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obfigation, as & result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the abiigation can be reliably estimated, Where the effect of the time value of maney s material,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money. If the amount of the obligation cannot be refiably estimated, no provision is recorded and a disclosure is made in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employee benefit plans

in accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendi participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retisement health care, Iife insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficiaries who meet the required conditions. Retirement pensions are provided for substantially ali
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social security and multi-emgioyer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group gension plans. The pian funding policy implemented by the group is consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and requlations.

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year.
Definad benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in various instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
securities, excluding Yivend! shares or debt instruments.

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. This
method is based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivendi until retirement,
expected changes in future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivendi maintains a pension plan. The
assumptions adopted in 2017 and 2018, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 17, A provision is recorded
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in the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuarial value of the refated benefits (actuarial ligbility) anc the
fair value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuarial gains and losses.

The cast of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows:

e the service cost is included in sefling, general and administrative expenses. It comprises current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtailment, immediately recognized ir: profit and loss, and gains and losses on settlement;

e the financial component, recorded in other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation; and

e the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), recognized in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified to
profit and loss, mainly consist of actuarial gains and losses, i.e., changes in the present value of the defined benefit chligation and
plan assets resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments (representing the differences between the
expected effect of some actuarial assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective impact).

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset is recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions.

Some ather post-employment benefits, such as iife insurance and medical coverage {mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed threugh an actuarial calculation comparable to the method used for pension provisions.

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to recerd unrecognized actuarial gains and losses against consolidated
equity.

139  Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabilities and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Pasition give rise to temporary differences. Pursuant te the liability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of:
e deferred tax assets, when the tax base value is greater than the carrying value (expected future tax saving); and
o defetred tax liabilities, when the tax base value is lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the liability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date. They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in line with any changes in applicable tax rates.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it is
probabie that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax liability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference is
generated by initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or 10ss.

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extant that it is probable that the temperary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it is more or less
prebable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized. When assessing the probability of a taxable
profit baing available, account is taken, primarily, of prior years’ results, forecasted future results, non-recurring items unlikely to aceur in the
future and the tax strategy. As such, the assessment of the groug's ability to utilize tax losses carried forward is to a large extent judgment-
based. If the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or
decrease the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Earnings of the group.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability resuits from goedwill or
initia! recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not 2 business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, tax income or (0ss.

For taxable temporary differences resuiting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
liabilities are recorced except 10 the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied: the parent, investor or venturer is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not eamings, if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity.
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1.3.10 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its sharehoiders’ interests by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company's performance and increase its share price on & long-term basis, Vivendi maintains several
share-hased compensation plans {share purchass plans, performance share plans and honus share plans) or other equity instruments based
on the value of the Vivendi share price (stock aptions), which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash. Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board. In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares is
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board. Moreover, alt
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date.

In addition, Dailymotion has set up a long-term incentive plan for certain key executives. This plan will be settled in cash and the value will
be derived from the growth of Dailymotion’s enterprise value.

Please refer to Note 18 for details of the features of these plans and for the status of the plans initially granted by Gameloft S.E. and by
Havas.

Share-based compensation is recognized as a personnel cost at the fair vaiue of the equity instruments granted. This expense is spread over
the vesting peried, i.2., three years for stack option plans and for performance share plans (two years for performance shares granted before
June 24, 2014), and two years for Vivendi's bonus share plans, other than in specific cases.

Vivendi uses a binomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments. This methad relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the risk-fres interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of their rights.

However, depending on whether the instruments granted are equity-seftted or cash-settied, the valuation and recognition of the expense wili
differ:
Equity-settied instruments;

« the expected term of the option granted is deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term;

« the value of the instruments granted is estimated and fixed at grant date; and
» the expense is recognized with a corresponding increase in equity.

Cash-settled instruments:

» the expected term of the instruments granted is deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument for
vested rights, and te the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of the
instrument for unvested rights;

« the value of instruments granted is initially estimated at grant date and is then re-estimated at each regorting date untit the payment
date and the expense is adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date;

« the expense is recognized as a provision; and

= moreover, as plans settled in cash are primarily denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the ELR/USD exchange
rate.

Share-based compensation cost is aliocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivalent
instruments granted to their managers and employses.

The dilutive effect of stock aptions and performance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivendi shares which are in the process
of vesting is reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1. 2004. Consequently, all share-bassd
compensation plans for whigh rights remained 1o be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.

14  Related parties

Group-related parties are those companigs over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
sharehalders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exercise exclusive controi, joint
control, or significant influence.

The transactions with subsidiaries over which the group exercises control are eliminated within the interseqment transactions (a list of the
group’s major consatidated entities is set out in Note 24). Moreover, commercial re'ationships among subsidiaries of the group, aggregated
in operating segments, are conducted on an arm’s length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered by third
parties. The operaiing costs of Vivendi SA's headquarters, after the ailocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses,
are included it the Corporate operating segment.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi /56



Thursday February 14, 2019

1.5  Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivendi and its subsidiaries prepare detailed reports on all materfal contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligations, far which they are jointly and severally liable. These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis. To ensure compieteness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are carried out, including {(but not limited to} the review of:
« minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Beard in respect
of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures;
« pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions;
« pending litigation, claims (in dispute} and environmental matters as well as refated assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels;
« tax examiner's reports and, if appticable, notices cf reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years;
« insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted;
o related-party transactions for guarantees and other given cr received commitments; and more generally
¢ major contracts and agreements.

1.6 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have heen published but are not yet effective

Among IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations issued by the IASB/IFRS IC as of the date of approval of these Censolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivendi has not elacted for an earlier application, the main standard which may
have an impact on Vivendi is IFRS 16 — feases.

IFRS 16 was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016, endorsed by the ELi en October 31, 2017 and published in the Official Journal of the EU
on November 9, 2017, and mandatorily applies for financial years commencing on or after January 1, 2019,

Licenses of intellectual property granted by a lessor and right held by a lessee under ficensing agreement are not within the scope of
IFRS 15, Vivendi mainty focused on the accounting of real estate leases contracts for which Vivendi is the lesses.

On a prelimirary basis, Vivendi determined that the lease liability, estimated as of January 1, 2019 in accordance with IFRS 18, would
amount to approximately €1.3 billion, which does not include at this stage the potential impact of the consolidation of Editis as from
February 1. 2619. Assessment of the final impact of the application of IFRS 16 on the Statement of Eamings, the aggregate comprehensive
income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows (presentation), and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financizl Statements will be finalized during the year ended December 31, 2019

Vivendi has applied IFRS 16 with retrospective effect from Janvary 1, 2019 using the modified retrospactive approach and without
restatement of the comparative periods in the consoiidated financia! statements.
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Note 2 Major events

21 Opening of Universal Music Group’s share capital

The sale process for up ta 50% of Universal Music Group’s share capital to one or more strategic partners is moving forward:
* corporate structure rearganization was completed at the end of 2018,
« launch of Vendor Due Diligence at the beginning of 2019; and

« meetings were held with the pre-selected banks. The final selection of the financial advisors that will assist Vivendi in finding the
best partners for Universal Music Group should be completed in the coming weeks.

A floor price will be set for the entry of partners into Universal Music Group’s share ¢apital.
22  Acquisition of Editis

Following the share purchase agreement entered into on November 15, 2018 with the Spanish group Planeta, based on an enterprise value
of €900 miltion, on January 31, 2019, Vivendi completed the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Editis, the second-largest French-
language publishing group, representing an €833 million outflow, including the repayment of Editis’s debt. The French Competition Authority
had authorized the transaction unconditionally on January 2, 2019. Vivendi has fully consolidated Editis since February 1, 2019.

Editis recorded revenues of approximately €750 million.

Vivendi and Editis share a recognized expertise in the development and management of rights to cultural works and share the same passion
for managing creativity and talent. This acquisition is a logical step in the building of a large content, media and communications group. It
also marks the return of this French publishing powerhouse to a European group with a glabal reach.

Amaud de Puyfontaine, chairman of Vivendi's Management Board, has taken on the additional role of Chairman of Editis's Board of
Directors. Pierre Conte has been contirmed as Chief Executive Officer.

Editis encompasses around 50 prestigious publishing houses (e.g., Nathan, Robert Laffont, Julliard, Plon, Belfond, Presses de la Cité, Packet
or Solar). With a large portfolio of internationally-acclaimed authors, 4.000 new books published each year and a catalogue of more than
45000 titles, Fditis employs 2,400 people and has leading positions in the fields of fiction, children’s books, non-fiction, graphic and
illustrated books, educational and reference books. Through its subsidiary Interforum, it is also & ‘eader in book selling/distribution.

2.3 Sale of interest in Uhisoft

On March 20, 2018, Vivendi announced the sale of its entire 27.27% interest in Ubisoft (30,489,300 shares) at a price of €66 per share,
representing an aggregate amount of €2 bilfion. This interest had been acquired by Vivendi over the past three years for £794 million.

In connection with this sale, Vivendi received £1511 million on March 23, 2018 {sale of 22,898,391 shares) and €69 miilion on October 3,
2018 (sale of 1,040,909 shares). The balance of the sale proceeds that remains to be received by Vivendi amounts to €429 million under the
forward sale of its remaining interest in Ubisoft (6,550,000 shares) which will occur on March 5, 2018, As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi
recorded in the Consoiidated Statement of Financial Position, a receivable on share disposal for such amount of the forward sale.

Vivendi has given an undertaking to Ubisoft to sell all the shares it owns by March 7, 2019, the settlement date. In addition, Vivendi made
the commitment to refrain from purchasing Ubisoft shares for a period of five years.

Vivendi realized a capitai gain of €1,213 million on the sale of the interest in Ubisoft on March 20, 2018. However, of this amount, only the
portion corresponding to the revaluation of the interest in 2018 {E53 million], was recorded in the Statement of Farnings for the year ended
December 31, 2018, in accordance with the new IFRS 9 accounting standard, appiicable since January 1, 2018. The remaining portion of the
capital gain [€1.160 million) corresponded to the revaluation of the interest until December 31, 2017, which was recorded in “charges and
income directly recognized in equity” as of December 31, 2017, in accordance with the former IAS 39 accounting standard, and reclassified
as retained eamings as of January 1, 2018, as part of the initial application of the IFRS 9. Under 1AS 39, which was applicable untif
December 31, 2017, it would have been reported to profit or loss as part of the sale that occurred during the first half of 2018,
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24  Sale of interest in Fnac Darty

On January 16, 2018, Vivendi entered into a hedging transaction to protect the value of its 11% interest in Fnac Darty. The hedge involved an
over-the-counter instrument combining a forward sale, based on a seference price of €91 per share and a share market loan. Vivendi had
retained the option to settle this transaction either in cash or :n shares at maturity.

On July 2, 2018, Vivendi decided to settle the transaction in shares, which were defivered on July 10, 2018. On July 12, 2018, Vivendi
received a cash payment of €267 million corresponding to the hedge price of €90.61 per share, after making an initial investment in May
2016 of €159 million, i.e., €64 per share.

Mr. Stéphane Roussel and Mr. Simon Gillham, members of Vivendi's Management Board, have agreed to remain members of Fnac Darty's
Board of Directors.
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Note 3 Segment data

Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of its business segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating performance indicators {segment earnings and cash flow from operations). Income from operations and EBITA reflect the earnings
of each business segment.

The operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the informatien given to Vivendi's Management Board.

Vivendi's main businesses are aggregated within the following operating segments:

Uriversal Music Group: sale of recorded music {digital and physical), exploitation of music publishing rights, as well as artist
services and merchandising.

Caral+ Grougp: publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV and free-to-air channels in France, Poland, Africa and
Asia, as well as production, sales and distribution of movies and TV series.

Havas: communications group covering all the communications disciplines {creativity, media expertise and healthcare/wellness).
Gameloft: creation and publishing of downloadable video games for mobile phones, tablets, triple-play boxes and smart TVs.

Vivendi Village: Vivendi Ticketing {in Europe and the United States through See Tickets, Digitick and Paylogic), the companies that
own and manage all Paddington intellectual property rights (except for the publishing rights), live performance through Olympia
Production, Festival Production, the venues in Paris { 'Olympia and Theatre de L'(Euvre) and in Africa {CanalDlympia), as well as
MyBestPro, which was sold on December 21, 2018.

New Initiatives: Dailymotion (video content aggregation and distribution platform), Vivendi Content {new content creation unit} and
Group Vivendi Africa (development of ultra-high-speed Internet service in Africa).

Corporate: central services.

intersegment commercial operations are conducted on an arm’s-length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties.

31

Main aggregates of the Statement of Earnings by operating segment

Revenues by activity

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017
inteflectual property licensing 6,508 5171
Subscrigtion services 4,474 4433
Advertising, merchandising and other 3,008 1,898
Etimination of intersegment transactions {581 {44
Revenues 13,932 12518

Revenues by geographic area

Revenues are broken down by custemer location.

Year ended Jecember 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 207

France 4280 31% 4402 35%
Rest of Europe 3.282 24% 2871 23%
Americas 4,395 31% 3527 28%
Asia/Uceania 1,373 10% 1,178 10%
Africa 602 4% 540 4%
Revenues 13,932 100% 12,518 100%

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 60



Thursday February 14, 2019

Main aggregates of the Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017
Revenues
Universal Musie Group 6,023 5873
Canal+ Group 5,166 5188
Havas 2,319 1,211
Gameloft 293 320
Vivendi Village 123 109
New Initiatives 66 51
Elimination of intersegment transactions {58} {44y
13,932 12,518
Income from operations
Universal Music Group 945 798
Canah Group 429 349
Havas 258 135
(Gameioft 4 10
Vivendi Village {9) {8)
New Initiatives {79) {87
Corporate 1o (101}
1,439 1,098
Restructering charges
Universal Music Group {29) 17
Canal+ Group 28) (49)
Havas (30} {15}
Gameloft {a) {1
Vivendi Vitlage {2) 2
New Initiatives {3 {3
Corporate {19) 1!
{115} {88}
Income/{charges} related to share-based compensation plans
Universal Music Group (4) {9)
Canal+ Group {3 (6
Havas 12) (3)
Gameloft 2 (5)
Vivendi Village - -
Naw Initiatives - -
Corporate {5) (8)
(22 {31}
Other non-current operating charges and income
Universat Music Group {11} 1
Canal+ Group 2 6
Havas m {6}
Gameloft . ,
Vivendi Village 2 (10
New Initiatives 17 12}
Corporate 1 13
{14) (10)
Adjusted eamings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)
Universal Music Group 502 781
Canal+ Group 400 300
Havas 215 m
Gameloft 2 4
Vivendi Village {9 {18}
New Initiatives {99) {92}
Corporate {123} {97)
1,288 969
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Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

{in millions of euros)

EBIT {a)

Atljustments

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment losses an intangible assets acquired through busingss combinations [a)
Heversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States (a)
Income from equity affiliates - operational (a)

EBITA

Adjustments

Restructuring charges la}

Charges retated 1o share-based compensation plans

Other non-current operating charges and income

Income from operations

a.  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamnings.

32  Statement of Financial Position by operating segment

Segment assets and liabilities

{in millicas of euras)
Segment assets {a)
Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group
Havas
Gameloft
Vivendi Village
New Initiatives
Corporate
of which investments in equity affiliates
listed equity securities (b)

Segment liabilities {c)
Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivend: Village

New Initiatives
Corporate

a.  Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, ather intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, equity affiliates, financial

assets, inventories and trade accounts receivable, and other.

b, The decrease in the amount of listed equity securities mainly related to the sale of Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft (on March 20, 2018},

Thursday February 14, 2019

Year ended December 31,

2018 2m7
1,182 1,018
m 122
2 2
- {27)
il (146}
1,288 969
115 88
22 3
14 10
1,439 1,098

December 31, 2018

January 1, 2018

9,715 8.512
1624 7.638
5,301 5318
708 3
251 275
542 551
5,392 8,296
3130 4242
1,363 3,751
29,531 31252
4,320 3,647
2,451 2533
3878 3,761
10 71

167 139

70 64

933 957
11,689 1172

Frac Darty {on July 10, 2018) and Telefonica (in November and December 2018): please refer to Notes 2 and 12.

¢ Segment liahilities include provisions, other non-current liahilities, and trade accounts payable and other.

Additional operating segment data is presented in the following Notes: Note 9 "Goodwill” and Note 16 “Content assets and commitments”.
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Segment assets by geographic area
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December 31, 2018

{in millions of euros}

January 1, 2018

France 10,050 34% 11,509 37%
Rest of Europe 8,311 30% 10,082 32%
Americas 9,487 32% 8.724 28%
Asia/Oceania 812 3% 720 2%
Africa N 1% 217 1%
Segment assets 29,531 100% 31,252 100%

Capex, depreciation and amortization

fin millions of euros)

Capital expenditures, net (capex net} {a)
Universa! Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Increase in tangible and intanaible assets
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group
Havas
Gameloft
Vivend Village
New Initiatives
Corporate

Devreciation of tanaible assets
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group
Havas
Gameloft
Vivendi Village
New Initiatives
Corporate

Amortization of intangible assets excluding those acquired through business combinations
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivendr Village

New Imitiatives

Corporate
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Year ended December 31,

2018 2017

10 63

166 144

38 21

6 6

7 1

10 13

1

T 259

27 73

192 138

37 21

i 7

7 15

10 g

1 1

380 264

46 53

133 154

38 20

B 8

4 2

8 &

1 -

1) 243

72 66

4

1 1

- 13

2 10

106 94

80 B4

18 12

- 1

14 21

2

1 Vi

11 122
Vivendi / 63



Thursday February 14, 2018

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros} 2018 2017
Impairment lossas en intangite assets acquired through business combinations
Universal Music Group .
Canal+ Group . 2
Havas . .
Gameloft - -
Vivendi Village
New Initiatives 7
Corporate

2 2

a.  Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of praperty, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.

Note 4 EBIT

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,

fin millions of euros) Note 2018 2017
Salaries 2538 1962
Social security and other employment charges 537 451
Capitalized personnel costs (18 {15)
Wages and expenses 3,059 2,398
Share-based compensaticn plans 18 22 K3
Employee benefit plans 17 88 69
Other 5Z N
Personnel costs 321 2,529
Annual average number of full-time equivalent employees (in thousands) 416 32.1

Additional infarmation on operating expenses
Advertising costs amounted to €371 million in 2018 (compared to €379 million in 2017).

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €102 million
in 2018 ([compared to €104 miliion in 2017).

Net expense recorded in the Statement of £amings, with respect fo operating [eases amounted to €274 milfion in 2018 {compared to
€202 miltion in 2017). This increase of €72 million mainly resulted from the cansolidation of Havas on July 3, 2017.

Research and development costs amounted to a net chasge of £135 million in 2018 (compared to £154 million in 2017).

Taxes on production

Taxes on production amounted to €118 million in 2018 (compared t¢ £148 miilion in 2017), of which €33 million related tc taxes on television
services {compared to €63 million in 2017).

Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest

{in miltions of euros) Year ended December 31,
{Charge)/Income Note N8 2017
Interest expense on borrowings {a) 18 {54} i58)
Interest income from cash, cash equivalents and investments 17 15
Interest (42} (53}
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facilities issued {2 {2)

{49} {55)

g Included the annual coupon of the €700 million bond issued by Vivendi SA and maturing in December 2019 for £34 millian in 2018 and in
2017 {please refer to Note 19.2).
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Other financial income and charges

Year ended December 37,

{in mitlions of euros) Note 2018 2017
Capital gain on financial investments 377 @ 12
Effect of undiscounting assets (b} 18 5
Expected return on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 17.2 " 10
Foreign exchange gain 16 7
Change in value of derivative instruments 2 8
Other - 1
Other financial income 418 43
Write-down of the Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method 1.2 {1,066} -
Downside adjustment on financial investments .- 147)
Effect of undiscounting liabilities (b) {20) 2)
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 172 (27} {22)
Fees and premiums on borrewings and credit facilities issued {2) i2)
Foreign exchange loss {10} {9
Other {56) {51}
Other financial charges {1.181) {143)
Net total {763) {100)

a.  Other financial income included the revaluation between January 1 and December 31, 2018 of the interests in Spotify and Tencent
Music for an aggregate amount of €312 million, as well as in Ubiscft for €53 million (please refer to Note 2.3), reported to profit or loss
in accordance with the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1, 2018.

b In accordance with applicabie accounting standards, where the effect of the time value of money is material, assets and liabilities are
initially recorded in the Statement of Financial Position in an amount relating to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses. At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and liabilities is adjusted to acceunt for the passage
of time.

Note 6 Income taxes

6.1  French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and, up until December 31, 2011 inclusive, it benefited from the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System pursuant to Article 208 gquinguies of the French Tax Code. As from January 1, 2012, Vivendi SA benefits only from the
French Tax Group System.

« Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi is entitled to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses of the
French subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned, directly or indirectly, by it. As of December 31, 2018, this mainty applies to Universal
Music Group, Canal+ Group, Havas and Gameloft entities in France, as well as the companies involved in the group's development
projects in France (e.g., Yivendi Village and Dailymotion).

+ Up until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System enabled Vivendi to obtain a tax authorization. This allowed the
company to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owneg,
directly or indirectly, by it and that were also located in France or abroad. This authorization was granted for an initial five-year period -
from January 1, 2004 te December 31, 2008 - and was then renewed, on May 19, 2008, for a three-year period - from January 1, 2009 tc
December 31, 2011. As a reminder, on July 6, 2011, Vivendi lodged a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its
authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year peried - from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014.

¢ In2011, pursuant to changes in French Tax Law, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was terminated as of September 6, 2011, and
the deduction for tax losses carried forward was capped at 60% of taxable income. Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carried
forward has been capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest limited to 85% of financial charges, net {reduced
further to 75% as from January 1, 2014).

The French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems have the follewing impact on the valuation of Vivendi’s tax attributes {tax
losses, foreign tax receivables and tax credits carried forward);

« In 2012, Vivendi, considering that it was entitled to use the Consolidated Global Prefit Tax System up until the end of the authorization
period granted by the Franch Ministry of Finance {i ., until December 31, 2011), filed a contentious claim far a £366 miltion refund in
respect of fiscal year 2011. In a decision dated October 25, 2017, marking the end of legal proceedings brought before administrative
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courts, the French Council of State {Conseif d'Etat] recognized that Vivendi had a iegitimate expectation that it would be afforded the
Consalidated Global Profit Tax System for the entire period covered by the authorization, including for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2011, Given that the power of final adjudication is vested in the French Council of State and that its decision is not subject
to appeal, the amount of €366 million paid to Vivend, coupled with moratorium interest of €43 million, were definitively acquired by
Vivendi. As a result, Vivendi recorded a tax income of €409 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

« Moreover, considering that Vivendi's foreign tax receivables available upon the exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System may
be carried forward after the end of the authorization period, Vivendi requested a refund of the tax paid in respect of the fisca! year ended
December 31, 2012, On May 8, 2013, Vivendi received a refund of €201 million, which was subsequently challenged by the tax
aythorities in connection with a tax audit. Consequently, Vivendi provisioned €208 million for the associated risk in its Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Increasing the amount to €221 million as of December 31, 2013. In its Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained and increased this provision by €17 million {the ampunt of
additional default interest), totaling an amount of £232 million. This was subsequently decreased to €228 million as of December 31,
2015 after the deduction of ordinary tax cradits. In connection with this audit, on March 31, 2015, Vivendi made a payment of
€321 million, refating to the €221 miliion and €11 million mentioned above. This amount increased a fyrther €89 million due to additional
penalties.

o DOn June 29, 2015, after the tax audit was completed, Vivendi challenged the tax autherities in regard to the tax payment, the default
interest and the penalties, for which no provision had been accrued upon the recommendation of its advisors. Vivendi has since brought
this case before the Administrative Court of Montreuil. On March 18, 2817, the Administrative Court of Montreuil ruled in favor of
Vivendi. Pursuant to this decision, on April 18, 2017, Vivendi received {i] a €315 million refund relating to the principal tax amouat due in
2012 €218 million), as well as default interest (€10 million) and additional penalties (€87 million), and (i) moratorium interest
{€31 miltion), which totaled £346 million. The Ministry appealed this decision with respect to the principal tax amount due; therefore, in
its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, Vivendi maintained the provision relating to the principal refund
(€218 million), the default interest (E10 million), and the moratorium interest (€23 million), i.e., a total provision of €251 smillion. Given
that the Ministry's appeal did not include penalties {€B7 million), Vivendi recorded a tax income of €9 miliion in its Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2017, relating to the portion of maratorium interest irrevocably earned by Vivendi. On November 22, 2018, the
Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal quashed the March 16, 2017 decision of the of the Administrative Court of Montreuil and
ordered Yivendi ta pay the amount of the additional contributions to which it was subject for the vear ended December 31, 2012.
Howevar, it granted discharge of the default interest charged toc Vivendi. In its financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2018, Vivendi recorded a net income of due to the discharge of default interest (€10 million) and the corresponding
moratorium interest (€2 million), reducing the total amount provisioned to €239 million (€218 million with respect to the principal amount
and €21 million with respect to moratorium interest). On December 31, 2018, Vivendi filed an appeal with the French Council of State
requesting the quashing of the decision of the Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal. Cn February 11, 2018, pursuant to & decision of
the Versailles Administrative Court of Appeat, Vivendi received a request for repayment from the tax authorities in the amount of
€739 million. Vivendi has 30 days to satisfy this request. Considering that the amount is provisioned in Vivendi's Financial Statements,
this payment will have no impact on the Statement of Eamings.

e On June 15, 2017, following the Administrative Court of Montreuil ruling of March 16, 2017, Vivendi made a claim for the repayment of
the tax amount due for the year ended December 31, 2015 (€203 million). Vivendi racorded a provision as of December 31, 2017 in the
amount of the refund requested (€203 million) and maintained this provision in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
2018 pending the decision of the French Council ¢t State (Conseil o°Etatt mentioned above.

« In the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, the tax results of the subsidiaries comprised within the scope of
Vivendi SA’s French Tax Group System are calculated based on estimates. As a resuit, the amount of tax attributes as of December 31,
2018 could not be reliably determined. As of December 31, 2018, taking into account the impact of the estimated 2018 tax results and
before the effects of the ongoing tax audits on the amount of tax attributes {please refer to Note B.5), it is anticipated that Vivendi SA
will likely be able to achieve €781 millien in tax savings from tax attributes {based on the income tax rate applicable as of January 1,
2018, i.e., 32.02%). At a rate of 26.83% applicable in 2022, it is anticipated that Vivendi would achieve €630 million in tax savings from
tax attributes.

» Vivendi SA values its tax attributes on the basis of one year's forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget. On this basis, in
2019, it is anticipated that Vivendi will likely be able to achieve tax savings of €114 million from the French Tax Group System (based on
the income tax rate applicable in 2019, i.e., 32.02%).
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Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area

Provision for income taxes

fin milhions of eurcs) Year ended December 31,

{Chargel/income 2018 2017

Current

france {16] 872 fal

Rest of Europe {68) {37}

United States {98) bl [16)

Rest of the warld {98} (87)
(280) 432

Deferred

France 12 {116} {c)

Rest of Eurcpe {89} (d) -

United States () {11) (& 34 (e}

Rest of the world 1 5
(77) {17}

Provision for income taxes (357) 355

a. Included a current tax income of €403 million from litigation relating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011, where

Vivendi SA secured a favorable settiement. It also included the current tax income of €243 million relating to the refund received by
Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries of the amounts paid in respect of the 3% tax on dividend distributions.

In 2018, it included a federal tax charge which reflected the impact of the tax reform in the United States as from January 1, 2018.

included a deferred tax charge of -€106 million relating to the write-off of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses camied forward by
Havas in France.

in accordance with the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1, 2018, it included the deferred tax charge relating to
the revaluation through profit or loss of the interest in Spotify and Tencent Music for an aggregate amount of -€72 million,

inctuded a net deferred tax income of £79 million following changes in the federal corporate tax rate applicable in the United States as
from January 1, 2018.

The tax reform initiated in 2017 introduces significant changes in the calculation of the corporate tax in the United States. As from
January 1, 2018, the federal corporate tax rate has been reduced from 35% to 21%. However, this rate reduction is accompanied by a
widening of the taxable base through the intzoduction of @ minimum tax on income earned in countries with low-tax rates (minimum tax
on global intangible low-taxed income "GILT)") and the introduction of a tax mechanism expenditures that erode s the tax bases [base
erosion and anti-abuse tax “BEAT"). More generally, the new law limits the deduction of expenses previously deductible without
limitation. The impacts of this pew legislation recorded as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, reflect our best estimate
pending the pubiication of instructions commenting on this reform and clarification on the interpretation of certain previously issued
instructicns. The amounts recorded will therefore be adjusted in 2019, particularly in the light of changes in our interpretations and
assumptions, as weil as further clarifications or instructions from the US legislator or the US tax authorities.

Income tax paid

Year ended December 31,

{in mitlions of euros) 2018 207

France {76) 822 (a)
Rest of Furope {47) {20)
Unitad States {43) {53)
Rest of the world {96) {78)
income tax {paid}/collected {262} in

a

Included an inflow of £346 million as part of the {itigation settlement relating to foreign tax receivables utilized by Vivendi SA in fiscal
year 2012, as well as a £223 millien inflow relating to the refund te Vivendi SA of amounts paid in relation to the 3% tax on dividend
distributions.
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6.3 Effective tax rate

Year ended Decemnber 31,
{in millions of euros, except %! 2018 2017
Eamings (before non-controlling interests} 157 1,249
Eiminations
Income from equity affiligtes [128) {146)
Earnings from discontinued operations - -
Provision for income taxes 357 {305)
Eamings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes 385 748
French statutory tax rate 34.43% 34.43%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate {133} {258)

Reconciliation of the theoretical and effective provision for income taxes

Earnings tex rates differences 212 fa) Y|
Impacts of the changes in tax rates {2) 89 (b)
Use or recognition of tax losses 222 178
Depreciation or non-racognition of tax losses [9B) {258} (e}
Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and the Consolidated Gioba! Profit 2 3
Tax Systems @

Adjustments 10 tax expense from previous years 8 9
Capital gain ar loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial investments or businesses 18 -
Favorable settlement of the litigation related to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011 - 408 (d}
3% tax on Vivendi SA's dividends - {8)
Refunds with respect to the 3% tax on dividends paid by Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries - 243 (e}
Wirite-down ¢f the Telecom Italia shares accounted for under the equity method {367) i) -
Dther {215} {93}
Provision for income taxes (357} 355
Effective tax rate 92.6% 47.5%

a. Included for 2018, a favorable rate effect following the change in the federal corporate tax rate applicable in the United States. The tax

reform initiated in 2017 introduces significart changes in the calculation of the corporate tax in the United States. As from January 1,
2018, the federal corporate tax rate has been reduced from 35% to 21%. However, this rate reduction is accompanied by a widening of
the taxable base through the introduction of 2 minimum tax on income earned in countries with low-tax rates (minimum tax on global
intangible low-taxed income "GILTI™) and the introduction of a tax mechanism expenditures that erode s the tax bases (base erosion and
anti-abuse tax ‘BEAT"). More generally, the new law limits the deduction of expenses previously deductible without limitation. The
impacts of this new legislation recorded as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, reflect our best estimate pending the
pubtication of instructions commenting on this reform and clarification on the interpretation of certain previously issued instructions.
The amounts recorded will therefore be adjusted in 2019, particulatly in the light of changes in our interpretations and assumptions, as
well as further clarifications or instructions from the US legisiator or the US tax authorities.

Included a net deferred tax income of £/9 million following changes in the federal corporate tax rate applicable in the United States as
from January 1, 2018.

Included a deferred tax charge of -£119 million corresponding to the write-off of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried
forward by Havas, primarily in France.

Related to a current tax incame of £409 million, a result of the litigation relating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011,
where Vivendi SA secured favorable settlement {please refer to Note 6.1).

Related to a current tax income of €243 million from the refund to Vivendi and its subsidiaries of amounts paid in relation to the 3% tax
en dividend distributions {please refer to Note 6.5).

In 2018, the result included the write-down of the value of the Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method, for
£1,086 million, non-taxable.
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6.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 207
Opening balance of deferred tax assets/(liahilities}, net 38 (a 26
Consolidation of Havas - 106
Provision for income taxes {77} (77}
Charges and income directly recorded in equity {13 i7)
(Other business combinations - {27
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other {26} 15
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net (78} 36

a  Asof January 1, 2018, deferred tax assets included the impact of the restatemeants related to the application of {FRS 9 for +€2 million
{please refer to Note 28.2).

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

{tn millions of euros} December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Deferred tax assets
Recognizable deferred taxes
Tax attributes - Vivendi SA Tax Group (a} {b) 781 875
Tax attributes - US Tax Group {a) () 214 233
Tax attributes - Havas Group {a) (d} 274 35
Tax attributes - Other subsidiaries {a) 279 444
Other 693 583
Of which non-deductible provisions 115 94
employee benefits 169 186
working capital 177 156
Total gross deferred taxes 221n 2,453
Deferred taxas, unrecognized
Tax attributes - Vivendi SA Tax Group (a) {b) [867) {765)
Tax attributes - US Tax Group {a} {c}) [214) {233}
Tax attributes - Havas Group (a) (d) {249) {297}
Tax attributes - Other subsidiaries (a) {255) {395)
Other {181) {145)
Total deferred tax assets, unrecognized (1,566} (1,826}
Recorded deferred tax assets 675 627

Deferred tax liahilities

Asset revaluations (g) (335) {340}
Other (418 {249)
Recorded deferred tax liabilities {753) {589)
Deterred tax assets/{liabilities), net (78) 38

a.  The amounts of tax attributes in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years. In jurisdictions which are significant
to Vivendi, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1 and September 15 at the latest of the following year,
respectively. As a result, the amount of tax attributes shown in this table and the amount reported to tax authorities may differ, and if
necessary, may need to be adjusted in this table at the end of the following year.

b.  Related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group (please refer to
Note 6.1); i.e., €781 million as of December 31, 2018 (compared to £875 mitlion as of December 31, 2017), in respect of tax losses only,
taking into account the estimated impact {-€36 million) of 2018 transactions {taxable income and use or expiration of tax credits) and the
change in the income tax rate in France, which was reduced from 34.43% to 32.02% as from January 1, 2019 (-€58 million), but before
taking into account the final contingent outcome of ongoing tax audits {please refer to Note 6.5}. In France, tax losses can be carried
forward indefinitely and Vivendi considers that the foreign tax receivables can be carried forward for a minimum period of five years
upon exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System.
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c.  Primarily related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax credits carried forward by Universal Music Groug, Iac. in the
United States as head of the US Tax Group, i.e., $244 million as of December 31, 2018 {compared to $278 million as of December 31,
2017). taking into account the estimated impact (-$34 million] of 2018 transactions, but before taking into account the final contingent
outcome of ongoing tax audits iplease refer to Note 6.5). The cumulative amount of ordinary tax losses carried forward by the group in
the United States was fully consumed as of December 31, 2017,

d  Asof December 31, 2017, Havas recorded a deferred tax charge of -£119 million from the write-off of deferred tax assets relating to tax
losses carried forward, primarily in france. Havas SA’s Tax Group ended an December 31, 2017. As from January 1, 2018, Havas SA and
its subsidiaries located in France have been included in Vivendi SA's Tax Group.

e These tax liabilities, stemming from asset revaluations and resulting from the purchase price ailocation of entities acquired by the
group, are cancelled upon amortizaticn or divestiture of the related assets and do not and will not generate any turrent tax liahilities.

6.5  Tax litigation

In the normal course of business, Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries are subject to tax audits by the relevant tax authorities in the countries in
which they conduct or have conducted business. Various tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the financial results filed by Vivendi
and its subsidiaries for fiscal year 2017 and prior years, under statutes of limitation applicable te Vivendi and its subsidiaries. The potential
charges that may result from these audits give rise to provisions to the extent that they are considered probable and quantifiable. Regarding
ongoing tax audits, no provision is recarded where the impact which may result from an unfavorable cutcome cannot be reliably assessed. To
date, Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits are unlikely to have a material impact on the group’s financial position or liquidity.

Regarding Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the tax audit for fiscal years 2008, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010
is still ongoing. as are the tax audits for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, relating to Vivendi SA or its tax group. Under these audits, the tax
authorities challenged Vivendi’s right to use its foreign tax receivables for the payment of its 2012 tax obligation year. Similarly, Vivendi
requested the reimbursement of its 2015 tax payment by contentious claim, requesting the deduction of these foreign tax receivables. In any
event, the impact ir relation to the use of foreign tax receivabies upon exit from the Global Profit Tax System of 2012 and 2015 were
recorded as provisions for €239 million and €203 million, respectively.

Maore specifically, regarding the tax audit for fiscal years 2008 to 2011, Vivendi SA is subject to a rectification procedure for which the tax
authorities challenge the accounting and fiscal treatment of NBC Universal shares received in consideration of the saie of Vivendi Universal
Entertainment shares in 2004, Additionally, the tax authorities challenged the deduction of the £2.4 billion Ipss recorded as part of the sale
of these shares in 2010 and 2011. The National Direct Tax System {Commission Nationale des Impdts Directs) before which proceedings
were brought, rendered its opinion on December 9, 2016, which was notified to Vivendi SA on January 13, 2017, in which it declared the
discantinuation of the adjustments sugyested by the tax authorities. Moreover, as the disagreement found its basis in an administrative
doctrine, Vivendi asked for the opinion to be cancelled on the greunds that it was tantamount to adding to the taw. On May 29, 2017, the
French Counci! of State (Conseif d'Frat} favorably received Vivendi's appeal for misuse cf authority. This audit is still ongeing and Vivendi
Management believes that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under
audit.

In respect of the US Tax Group, the tax audit for fiscal years 2008, 2009 and 2010 were settled through a tax reimbursement of $6 million.
The tax audit for fiscal years 2011, 2012, and 2013 is ongoing. On January 31, 2018, Vivendi was informed by the US tax authorities that
fiscal vears 2014, 2015 and 2016 were under audit. Vivendi Management believes that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for
determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit.

Regarding the additional tax contribution of 3% on dividend distributions paid by Vivendi SA for a total amount of €214 miilion in relation to
the dividends paid in fiscal year 2013 and in fiscal years 2015 to 2017, these contributions were challenged before the tax authorities and
the Administrative Coust of Montreuil. Following a decision of the French Constitutional Councit (Conseil constitutionnel) dated October 6,
2017, pursuant to which it determined that the 3% tax on dividend distributions was unconstitutional, the tax authorities proceeded to carry
out a rebate of the litigious contributions and to their refund. Consequently, Vivendi withdrew from its actions before the Administrative
Court. In addition, in accordance with applicable law, these refunds gave rise to the payment of moraterium interest to Vivendi, to be applied
through the effective restitution date. in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, Vivendi SA recorded a tax income of
€207 million from the litigation settlement, and moratorium interest of £24 million. Regarding the tax contributions paid by Canal+ Group
(€4 million} and Havas {€7 million), these contributions have been challenged before the tax authorities. Canal+ Group and Havas were
reimbursed, with moratorium interest of €1 million.

Regarding the dispute over the validity of the merger between SFR and Vivendi Telecom International (V1) dated December 2011, which
entails a potentiat challenge of the integration of SFR within the Vivendi tax group in respect of fiscal year 72013, SFR was informed, in a
letter dated November 8, 2017, that the tax autharitics were withdrawing their adjustment proposal, confirming Vivendi's position that it had
solid legal grounds upon which to challenge the tax authorities” position.
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With regard to the Havas Group, Havas SA filed a contentious claim for the refund of the withholding tax paid by the company betwaen 2000
and 7002 on the redistribution of dividends from European subsidiaries {i.e., €38 million). Following the filing of the case before the
Administrative Court, the Paris Court of Appeal and the Versailles Court of Appeal, on July 28, 2017, the French Council of State (Conseil
d’Etad found that the appeal in cassation lodged by Havas against the decision of the Versailles Court of Appeal was inadmissible. This
decision irrevocably ended the tax litigation and prevented Havas from receiving a refund of the withholding tax. To restore Havas's right to
compensation, three combined actions were instituted: {i} a claim before the European Commission, (i) a filing befare the Furopean Court of
Human Rights, and {iii} a claim for compensation under an action for damages against the state. Vivendi Management believes that it has
solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit.

In addition, under Havas SA and Havas International’s tax audits for fiscal years 2007 to 2005, the French Administration rectified the tax
result of Havas SA tax group, thereby reducing the overall deficit reported by the tax group by €267 million. This rectification was chatlenged
befare the tax authorities. Following filings mace befaore the Administrative Court of Montreuil and the Versailles Court of Apgeal, on
July 12, 2017, the French Council of State {Conseif d'Etat) overturned the Court of Appeal’s ruling, which was unfavorable to Havas, and
remanded the case to that same court. On August 28, 2017, Havas filed an appeal before the Versailles Court of Appeal. In a decision dated
July 3, 2018, the Versailles Court of Appeal confirmed Havas’s positions and decided to restare Havas SA's deficit results of €267 miilion.

Note 7 Earnings per share
Year ended December 31,
2018 2007
Basic Diluteg Basic Diluted
Eamnings (in miltigns of euros)
Earnings from continuing operations sttributatle to Vivendi SA shareowners 127 127 1,216 1,182 {a)
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners - - - -
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 127 127 1216 1,182
Number of shares (in millions)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (b} 12635 1,763.5 1252.7 1,252.7
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 5.1 - 48
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 1,263.5 1,268.6 1,252.7 12575
Eamings per share {in euros)
Earnings from continuing operations attnhutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share 0.10 0.10 0.97 0.94
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - - - -
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 0.10 0.10 0.97 0.94

a  Belated only to the impact for Vivendi of Telecom Italia’s dilutive instruments, calcuiated based on the financial information publicly
disclosed by Telecom ltalia with a threa-month reporting lag (please refer to Note 11.2).

b Net of the weighted average number of treasury shares (38 5 million shares in 2018, compared to 37.5 million shares in 2017).
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Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Details of changes in equity related to other comprehensive income

Items not subsequenthy
rectassified to profit or loss

items 1o be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Actuanal - Unrealized gains/{losses)
gainsyllasses) asi;asne::tl?:jlr Foreign Dther '

related to valse through  Available- Hedging currency cgmprehenswe Other .

employee other for-sale instruments Total translation income from comprehensive

dﬂfiHEd comprebensive o b} adjustments equity income
o benefitplgns P secunties W affiliaties. net
{in millions of euros) {a)
Balance as of December 31, 2016 (247} - 489 44 533 365 13 764
Charges and income directly recognized
In equity 9 850 (c) 35 685 {848) (3 (165)
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss na - - 13 3 - - 13
Tax effect . - 2 1 3 - - 3
Consolidation of Havas {54) - - - - {14) m (69}
Balance as of Decemher 31, 2017 {272) - 11 77 1,218 {497) 87 {d) 530
Restatements related to the application
of IFRS 9 {e) 1188) {1,141) 1 {1,140} 1%,338)
Restatements related to the application
of IFAS 9 and IFRS 15 by equity
affiliates - - - - - - 2 Z
Balance a5 of January 1, 218 272} {198} na 78 18 497) 3 {806)
Charges and income directly recognized
in equity 40 (224) 3 3 228 {164) 117}
ltems 1o be reclassified to profit or loss - N - - - - 7
Tax effect {10} {2} - - - - - 12
Balance as of December 31, 2018 1242) {431) na 81 81 {269} {81) (d) {942)

na: not applicable.
a  Please refer to Note 17.

b. Please refer io Note 19.7.

¢ Included unrealized capital gain on Vivendi's listed equity portfolio.

d Included foreign currency translation from Telecom Mtalia for -€20 million as of December 31, 2018, compared to +€111 million as of

December 31, 2017.

e Notably included the rectassification to retained earnings of the £1,160 million unrealized capital gain as of December 31, 2017 relating

to Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft (piease refer to Note 2.3).
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(in mitlions of euros)
Goodwill, gross
Impairment losses
Goodwill

Goodwill

91 Changes in goodwill

{in millhons of euros)
Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Total

{in millions of euros)
Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New |nitiatives

Total
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December 31, 2618 December 31, 2017
26,804 26,084
{14,366) {14,000}
12,438 12,084
Changes in foreign
December 31, 2017 Impairment losses Bus_megs currency translation December 31, 2018
combinations adjustments and
ather
4,736 14 277 (a) 4977
4,576 23 (4) 4595
1.878 42 20 1,840
583 8 - 591
103 - 23 (b (m 125
208 i 3 - 210
12,084 {1) 13 242 12438

December 31, 2016

. Business
Impairment losses

Changes in foreign
currency translation

December 31, 2017

combinations adjustments and
other

5,401 13 (678) fa) 4,738
4573 " 18] 4576

- 1,918 (ol {40} 1.878

609 {26) (d} - 583
196 {55) le} (28) 1) 103
208 - - - 208
10,987 - 1,851 (754} 12,084

a.  Primarily included the foreign currency translation of the dollar (USD) against the euro.

b, Notably included the provisional goodwill attributable to Paylogic, a ticketing and technology company acquired by Vivendi Village on

Agril 16, 2018.

c.  Related to the carrying value of Havas's goodwill acquired by Vivendi on July 3, 2017,

d. Related to the purchase price for Gameloft as of June 29, 2018, which was allocated to the technology and the game engines
(€42 million; usefut life estimated at 3 years) net of the resulting deferred tax liabilities (€15 million), based on analyses and estimates
prepared by Vivendi. The final amount of goodwill attributable to Gameloft amounted to €583 million.

e Related to the purchase price for Paddingten as of June 30, 2016, which was allocated to the brand (€77 miliion; indefinite useful life)
net of the resulting deferred tax liabilities (12 miltion}, valued based on analyses and estimates prepared by Vivendi.

f. Notably related to the sale of Radionomy on August 17, 2017.
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92  Goodwill impairment test

In 2018, Vivendi tested the value of goodwill allocated to its Cash-Generating Units (CGU) or groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previous years. Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value
(including goodwil(}. The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {Discounted Cash Flow method {BCF)) and the fair value (less costs to sell), determined cn the basis of market data {stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent acquisition transactions).
For a description of the methods used for the impairment test, please refer to Note 1.3.5.7.

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGU

Operating Segments  Cash Generating Units {CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Universal Music Group  Recorded music
Music publishing Universal Music Group (a)
Artist services and merchandising
Caral+ Group an-TV in Maml_and France PayTV in France (mainiand and
anal+ International (b} )
overseas), Poland, Africa and Asia, and
nc+ {Polarid} free-te-air TV in France (a)
Free-to-air TV in France
Studiocanal Studiocanal
Havas Spain (¢} ) Spain {c)
North America North America
France i France
(ther territories Other territories
Gameloft Gameloft Gameloft
Vivendi Village See Tickets See Tickets
Digitick Digitick
Payiogic {d) i Paylogic {d)
L'Olymoia L'Olympia
_Paddington Paddington
CanalDlympia CanalQlympia
New Initiatives Dailymation Dailymotion
Vivendi Content Vivendi Content o
Group Vivendi Africa Group Vivendi Africa

a.  Corresponds to the level of manitoring return on investments.
b Relates ta pay-TV in France overseas, Africa and Asia.
¢ Includes entities under the same management.

d  As of December 31, 2018, no goodwiil impairment test attributable to Paylogic was completed given that the acquisition date of
Paylogic (April 16, 2018) was close to the financial closing date.

During the fourth quarter of 2018, Vivendi performed a goodwill impairment test on each CGU or group of CGU, on the basis of valuations of
recoverable amounts determined through internsl vaiuations or with the assistance of third-party appraisers. As a result, Vivendi
Management concluded that, as of December 31, 2018, the recoverable amaunt for each CGU or group of CGU tested exceeded their carrying
value.
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Presentation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverable amounts

The value in use of sach CGU or groug of CGU is usually determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow
projections congistent with the 2013 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments. These forecasts are
prepared on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions: discount rate, perpetual growth rate and EBITA as
defined in Note 1.2.3, capital expenditures, the competitive and regulatory environments, technological developments and level of
commercial expenses. When the business plan of a CGU or group of CGU is not available at the time of the re-examination of the value of
goodwilt, Vivendi ensures that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value on the basis market data only. The recoverable amount
used for the relevant CGU or group of CGU was determined based on its value in use in accordance with the main key assumptions set out
below.

. Valuation Method Discount Rate (al Perpetual Growth Rate
Operating segments  CGU or groups of CGU tested 18 2017 2018 2017 018 017
DCF &
Universal Music Group  Universal Music Group na (b) comparables na {b) G.00% na {b) 2125%
maodel
Canal+ Group Pay-3V in France (mainland and CCF & .
overseas), Poland, Africa and Asia, na (c] comparables nac) ) na (c] (d)
and free-to-air TV in France modgl . _
Studiocanal DCF bCF 8.00% 8.80% 0.50% 0.50%
Havas Spain DCF BCF 803% 290%  200% 2.00%
North America DCF DCF B10% - 820%  200% 2.00%
France DCF DCF -+ 7.80% ~7.80% 2.00% 200%
DCF & DCF & . .
(Gameloft Gameloft comparables  comparables - 8.50% 8:50% - 2.00% 2.00%
model model -
Vivendi Village See Tickets DCF DCF 11.00% 11.00% 2 00% 2.00%
Paddington DCF DCF B.60% 900% 1.00% 1.00%
DCF & OCF &
New Initiatives Dailymotion comparables  comparables  11.50% 11.50% 2.00% 2.00%
model mode!

na: not applicable.

a.  The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows.

b. To achieve the highest possible vatuation for Universal Music Greup, given the favorable change in the international music market,
driven in particular by the strong development of subscription streaming services, Vivendi stated in 2018 that it is willing o sale up to
h0% of Universal Music Group’s share capital to one or more strategic partners and that such process could be completed within an
18-month timeframe.

¢ Based on multiple valuations chserved in recent acquisitions, Vivendi considered that Canal+ Group’s recoverable amount exceeded its
carrying value. Canal+ Group did not update its business plan at year-end 2018, given the uncertainties around its program offering
following the expiration of the League 1 football rights in France in 2020.

d.  Discount rates and perpetual growth rates applied in 2017 to test this group of UGT were as foilows:

Discount rate Perpetus! growth rate
2018 2017 2018 207

Pay-TV

Mainland France c) 6.70% c} 1.00%

France overseas {c) 7.70% c) 1.00%

Africa ic) 11.20% {c) 2.00%

Poland ic) 7.00% ic) 1.50%

Vietnam ic) 3.20% ic) 2.00%
Free-to-air TV in France c) 8.10% c) 1.00%

With respect to free-to-air TV in France, the recoverable amount was determined on the basis of market data (comparable listed
companies and comparison with the value attributed to similar companies in recent acquisition transactions).

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 75



Thursday February 14, 2019

Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

December 31, 2018
Perpetual growth rate
Decrease in the perpetual growth
rate in order for the recoverable

Discounted cash flows
Decrease in the discounted cash
flows in order for the recoverable

Discount rate
increase in the discount rate
in order for the recoverable

Applied amount to be equal to  Applied amount to be equal to amount {o be equai to
rate the carrying amount rate the carrying amount the carrying amount
{in %) tin number of peints) {in %) {in number of points) {in %)
Universal Music Group {a) na na na na na
Canal+ Group (b}
Pay-TV in France {mainland and
overseas), Poland, Africa and Asia,
and free-to-air TV in France na na na na na
Studiocanal 8.00% +2.02 pts 6.50% -3.78 pts -23%
Havas
Spain 8.03% +7.40 pts 200% -15.68 pts 57%
North America 8.10% +6.77 pts 2 00% 1272 pts 52%
France 7.90% +§.90 pts 2.00% -12.36 pts -64%
Gameloft (c} na na na na na
Daitymotion (¢) na na na na na
December 31, 2017
Jiscount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
Increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth Decrease in the discounted cash
in order for the recoverable rate in order for the recoverable flows in order for the recoverable
Applied amount to be squal to  Applied amount to be equal to amount to be equal to
rate the carrying amount rate the carrying amount the carrying amount
{in %) {in number of points} {in %) {in number of points) fin %!
Universal Music Group 900% +868pts  2125% -21.25 pls -57%
Canal+ Group
Pay-TV in France {mainland and
overseas}, Africa, Poland and
Vietnam, and free-to-air TV in France ) +1 45 pts (d) -3.07 pts -19%
Studigcanal 880% +167 pts 0.50% -2.48 pls -20%
Havas
Spain 7.90% +7.86 pts 2.00% -15.06 pts -58%
Worth America 8.20% +4.05 pls 2.00% -6 89 ptz 39%
France 780% +6.13 pts 2.00% -10.24 pts -53%
Gamaloft {c) na na na na na
Dailymotion (c} na na na na na

na: not applicatle.
a  Please refer to reference b. in the table above.
b Please refer to reference ¢. in the table above.

¢ The acquisitions of Gameloft and Dailymotion, on June 29, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively, were part of Vivendi's strategy to
build a global content and media group. Gameloft and Dailymotion were fully consolidated into the group and they are currently being
reconfigured. With the assistance of a third-party appraiser, Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amounts of Gameloft and Dailymotion
as of December 31, 2017 and as of December 31, 2018, which were determined using standard valuation methods [the value in use,
determined as the discounted value of future cash flows, and the fair value, determined on the basis of market data: stock market
prices, cemparabie listed companies, comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent acquisition
transactions} were at least equal to their value at the acquisition date.

d  For a presentation of the applied rates, please refer to the table in reference d. above.
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Note 10

10.1 Content assets

{in miilions of euros)

Music catalogs and pubiishing rights
Advances to artists and repertoire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Film and teievision costs

Sports rights

Other

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets
Non-current content assets

{in millions of euros)

Music catalogs and publishing rights
Advances 10 artists and repertoire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Film and television costs

Sports rights

Other

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets
Non-current content assets

Changes in content assets

lin millions of euras)
Opening balance

Content assets and commitments

Thursday February 14, 2019

December 31, 2018

Content assets,

Accumulated amortization

Content assets

qross and impairment losses

8523 {7,159) 1,364

1,045 - 1.045

20 {20} -

6,792 {6,107} 685

437 - 437

43 (39) 9

16,865 (13,325) 3,540
{1,381} 35 (1,346}

15,484 {13,290) 2194

December 31, 2017

Content assets,

Accumulated amortization

Content assets

gross and impairment losses

8.105 {6,767) 1,338

704 - 704

21 {21) -

6,503 57113 790

408 - 408

42 {35) 7

15,783 {12.536) 32417
{1177 17 {1,160
14,606 {12.519) 2,087

Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment losses on content assets acquired through business combinations

Increase
Decrease
Business combinations

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other

Closing balance

10.2 Contractual content commitments

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017

24 3223

{49) {27
{79) (83)

2137 2,782
12,597 (2537)

3 36

278 {127)

3540 3247

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position: content liabilities

Content liabilities are mainly recorded in “Trade accounts payable and other” or in “"Other non-current liabilities” whether they are current or
non-current, as applicable.

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2018 Total minimum future

Duein payments as of

{in millions of euros} Total 2019 2020-2023  After 2023 December 31, 2017

Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 2,049 2,037 i2 - 1,843

Fitm and television rights {a) 169 169 - - 139
Sports rights 434 434 - - 468
Creative talent, employment agreements and others 297 177 119 1 132
Content liabilities 2,949 2817 3 1 2,582
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Off-balance sheet commitments given/{received)

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2018 Total minimum futyre
Due in payments as of

fin millions of euros) Total 2019 2020-2023  After 2023 December 31, 2017
Film and television rights {a) 2,630 1134 1,494 2 2,724
Sports rights 1735 {b} 842 782 11 2,022
Creative talent, employment agreemtents and others {c} 1172 542 590 40 1,112
Given commitments 5,537 2,618 2866 53 5.858
Film and television rights (a} {188) {91} 97) - 1212)
Sports rights 17 {3 (4 - {16}
Creative talent, smployment agreements and others [c) not available
Other (3 ] {2) - -
Received commitments {198} (95) {103} - (228)
Total net 5339 2523 2,763 53 5530

a.  Mainly includes contracts vaiid over several years for movies and TV productien broadcasting rights (mainly exclusivity contracts with
major US studios). pre-purchases of rights in the French cinema industry, Studiccanal’s film production and co-production commitments
(given and received), and Canal and nc+ multichannel digital TV package broadcasting rights. They are recorded as content assets when
the broadcast is available for initial release or aRter the initial significant payment. As of December 31, 2018, provisions recarded in
respect of these commitments amounted to £26 million {compared to €27 million as of December 31, 2017).

in addition, these amounts do not include commitments under contracts for channel diffusion rights and non-exclusive distribution of
channels, in respect of which Canal+ Group did not grant or receive minimal guaranteed amounts. The variable amount of these
commitments cannot be reliably determined and is not reported in either the Statement of Financial Position or in the commitments and
is instead recorded as an expense for the period in which it was incurred. Based on an estimate of the future subscriber base at Canal+
Group, given commitments wouid have increased by a net amcunt of €407 miltion as of December 31, 2018, compared to €630 million
as of December 31, 2017. These amounts notably inciuded the renewal of the distribution agreement with belN Sports on July 11, 2015,
for a four-year period.

Mareover, on November 8, 2018, Canal+ Group announced the renewal of its May 7, 2015 agreement with all the cinema professional
organizations {ARP, BLIC and BLOC), extending until Decermnber 31, 2022 a historic partnership of mere than 30 years between Canal+
and the French cinema. Pursuant to this agreement, SECP (Société d'Edition de Canal Plus) underteok to invest 12.5% of its annual
revenues every year in the financing of European cinematographic works. With respect to audiovisual, pursuant to the agreements
entered into with producers” and authors’ organizations in France, Canak Group is required to invest 3.6% of its total net annual
revenue in the financing of heritage warks every year. Gnly films for which an agreement in principle is made with producers are
accounted for in the off-balance sheet commitments, as it is atherwise not possibie to reliably determine a future and total estimate of
commitments under agreements with cinema professional organizations and with producers’ and authors’ organizations.

b.  Notably included broadcasting rights held by Canal+ Group to the following sport events:
« the french professional Soccer League 1, for the season Z2819/2020 for the two premium lots (€549 millioni;
= the English Premier League, on an exclusive basis in France and in Poland, for the three seasons 2019/2020 to 2021/2022,
awarded on October 31, 2018;
» the National French Rugby Championship "Top 14", on an exclusive basis, for the four seasons 2019/2020 to 2022/2023; and
+ Formula 1, Fermula 2 and GP3 racings, on an exclusive basis, for the seasons 2019 and 2020,
These commitments will be accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or upon an initiat
significant payment.

¢ Primarily refates ta UMG, which routinely commits to pay agreed amourts to artists and other parties upon defivery of content gr other
products ("Creative talent and employment agreements”}. Until the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or until the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment. While the artist or the other party is
obligated to deliver content or another product to UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be reliably
determined and, thus, is not reported in received commitments.
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Note 11  Investments in equity affiliates

11.1  Main investments in equity affiliates

As of December 31, 2018, the main companies accounted for by Viverdi under the equity method were as follows:
+  Telecom Italia: fixed and mohile telephony operator in ltaly and Brazil,
«  Banijay Group Holding: producer and distributor of television programs; and
«  Vevo: premium music video and entertainment ptatform.

Voting interest Net carrying value of equity affiliates

{in millions of euros} December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018 December 31,2018 January 1, 2018
Telecom Italia (a) 23.94% 23.84% 3130 4,242
Banijay Group Holding {b} 3.4% 31.4% 145 142
Vevo 49 4% 49 4% 81 80
Other na na 62 67
3418 4,526

na: not applicable.

a  As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held 3,640 million Telecom ltalia ordinary shares with voting rights, i.e., 23.94%, representing
17.15% of the total share capital. Based on the stock market price as of December 31, 2018 (€0.4833 per ordinary share), the market
value of this interest amounted to €1,759 million. For an analysis of the value of Vivendi's interest in Telecom ltaiia as of December 31,
2018, please refer to paragraph 11.2 below.

b.  On December 21, 2018, the balance of the “new ORAN 17 issued by Banijay Group Holding was early redeemed in cash for €25 million.
On July 6, 2017, a portion of this bend had been early redeemed in cash for €39 million and converted intc Banijay Group Hotding shares
(bringing Vivendi's interest in Banijay Group Holding from 26.2% to 31.4%).

Change i value of investments in equity affiliates

Year ended December 31,

fin millions of euros) 2018 207
Opening balance 4526 (a) 4,416
Acquisitions - 40
Sales - -
Write-downs {1,066) (b) -
Income from equity affiliates () 129 146
Change in gther comprehensive incoms {164) 132
Dividends received {7 {6}
Qther - 24)
Closing balance 3418 4,540

a Inaccordance with the new IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 accounting standards, the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2018 was restated by
equity affiliates {please refer to Note 28.2).

b.  Vivendi wrote-down the value of its interest in Telecom ltalia for €1,066 million (please refer below:.

¢ Primarily included Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia’s net earnings for €122 mitlion in 2018 (please refer below), compared to
£144 millior in 2017.

11.2 Telecom ltalia

Equity accounting of Telecom ltalia

As of December 31, 2018, with no change compared to December 31, 2017, Vivendi held 3,640 million Telecom ltaiia ordinary shares,
representing 23.94% cof the voting rights and 17.15% of the total share capitaf of Telecom Italia, while teking into account non-voting
savings shares with privileged dividend rights. Since Decernber 31, 2017, the following main events accurred:

= 0OnMarch 22, 2018, with effect from April 24, 2018, the three members of Telecom Italia's Board of Directors representing Vivendi
resigned, including Mr. Amaud de Puyfontaine, Executive Chairman of Telecom ltalia’s Board of Directors since June 1, 2017.
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e On May 4, 2018, Telecom ltalia’s Shareholders’ Meeting appointed five beard candidates out of the ten candidates proposed by
Vivendi, including Messrs. Arnaud de Puyfontaine and Amos Genish. Vivendi's hoard candidate slate had 47% of the votes cast
compared to 48% of the votes cast for Efiott’s slate which obtained ten directors.

« OnMay 7, 2018, Telecom ltalia’s Board of Directars unanimously appoiated Mr. Amos Genish as Amministratore Defegato (Chief
Executive Officer) of Telecom Italia. On this occasion, Vivendi reaffirmed its long-term commitment to Telecom ltalia. As a
reminder, Vivendi supported the 2018-2020 industrial plan announced by Mr. Amos Genish on March 12, 2018, which was
unanimously approved by Telecom Italia’s Board of Directors.

+ On May 16, 2018, Telecom Italia’s Board of Directors considered that Vivendi was no longer exercising “management and
coprdination activities” (attivita d direzione e coordinamento, according to Article 2497-bis of the ftalian Civil Code) over Telecom
Italia and consequently terminated the “management and coordination activities” that had been exercised by Vivendi since July 27,
2017.

»  On November 13, 2018, Telecom ltalia's Board of Directors revoked the executive powers of Amministratore Delegato held by
Mr. Amos Genish, who remains a member of the Board of Directors.

»  0On December 14, 2018, Vivendi requested the Telecom ltalia Board of Directors to convene a Shareholders’ Meeting as soen as
possible to vote for the appointment of new statutory Auditors. Vivendi also requested that the agenda of the Shareholders’
Meeting includes a vote on the dismissal of five Board members from the Elliott list.

Notwithstanding the change in the governance of Telecom Italia in 2018, and the subsequent decrease of Vivendi's influence over Telecom
ltalia’s Board of Directars, Vivendi continues to consider that it has the power to participate in Telecom ltalia’s financial and operating policy
decisions, particularly given the 23.94% voting rights it hoids in Telecom ltalia, and, as a result, it is deemed to exercise a significant
influence over Telecom itafia. Te account for this decrease of influence over Telecom ltalia in 2018, Vivendi has been recording its share of
Telecom Italia's net garnings as "income from equity affiliates — non-operational”. [n 2017, it was recorded as “income from equity affiliates
— operational”.

Vivendi's share of Telecom [talia's earnings

Vivendi relies on Telecom ltalia's public financial information to account for its interest in Telecom {talia under the equity method. Given
Vivendi's ang Telecom ltalia's respective publication dates of their financial statements, Vivendi always accounts for its share of Telecom
Italia’s net earnings with a three-month reporting lag. Therefore, for fiscal year 2018, Vivendi's earnings take inte account its share of
Telecom Htalia’s net earnings for the fourth quarter of 2017 and for the first nine months of 2018, i.e., a total of €122 million, which was
calculated as follows:

e €8 million, attributable to Vivendi’s share of Telecom Italia’s profit for the fourth quarter of 2017, calculated based on the financial
information for the year ended Dacember 31, 2017, as publicly disclosed by Telecom italia on Mareh 6, 2018;

+ €174 million, attributable to Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia’s profit for the first nine months of 2018, calculated based on the
financial informatien for the first nine months of 2018, as publicly disclosed by Telecom ltalia on November 8, 2018; and

+ -€60 million, excluded from adjusted net income, relating to the amortization of intangible assets related to the purchase price
allocation for Telecom ltalia.

In addition, Vivendi's share of Telecom italia’s charges and income directly recognized in equity amounted to -€168 million in 2018, including
€130 million related to foreign currency translation adjustments.

Value of Vivendi's interest in Telecom Italia as of December 31, 2018

As of December 31, 2018, the stock market price of Telecom ltalia ordinary shares (€0.4833) decreased compared to the average purchase
price paid by Vivendi [€1.6709). In particular, Vivendi has abserved the significant decrease in the stock market price of Telecom ltalia since
May 4, 2018, the date of Telecom Italia’s Shareholders Meeting during which the Board of Directors’ composition was changed and a new
Chairman was appointed. Consistent with previous fiscal year-ends, Vivendi tested the value of its interest in Telecom ltalia, to determing
whether the recoverable amount exceeded its carrying vaiue. With the assistance of a third-party appraiser, Vivendi used the standard
valuation methods: the value in use, determined as the discounted value of future cash flows; the fair value, determined on the basis of
market data: stock market prices, comparable |isted companies and comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in
recent acquisition transactions. Notwithstanding Vivendi's expected improvement of Telecom ltalia’s outlook, Vivendi wrote-down the value
of its interest accounted for under the equity method for €1,066 million, notably to take into account the uncertainty affecting Telecom
Italia’s governance, which increases the non-execution risks associated with the company’s industrial plan given Vivendi's lower power to
participate in Telecom Italia’s financial and operating policy decisions, and to take into account the changes in Telecom ltalia’s competitive
and regulatory environment. Therefore, in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, the value of
Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method was €3,130 million.
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Financial information related to 100% of Telecom ltalia

The main aggregates of the Consolidated Financial Statements, as publicly disclosed by Telecom ltalia, ara as follows:

Ning months Annual
Financial Statements Financial Statements
{in millions of euros) as of September 30, 2018 as of December 31, 2017
Date of publication by Telecom Haiia: November 8 2018 March 6, 2018

Non-current assets 54,038 58,452
Current assets 9,533 10,337
Total assets 63.571 68,783
Total equity 21,901 23,783
Non-current liabilities 29,062 32617
Current liabilities 12 508 12,388
Total liabilities 63,5671 68,783

of which net financial debt (a/ 28127 26,091
Revenues 14,077 19,828
EBITDA (a) 5778 7.790
Earnings attriputable to Telecom [talia shareowners (868} i.121
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to Telecom [talia shareowners {1,530} 527

a  Non-GAAP measures ("Alternative Performance Measures”), as publicly disclosed by Telecom ltalia.
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Note12  Financial assets

December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
fin millions of euras) Total Current Non-current Total Current Non-current
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Term deposits {a) 549 549 - 50 50
Level 1
Bond funds fa) 50 50 - 25 25 -
Listed equity securities 789 - 789 1,956 - 1,956 (g
Other financial assets 5 5 - 5 5 -
Level 2
Unlisted equity securities - - - 348 - 348
Derivative financial instruments 38 18 22 19 4 19
Level 3 - Gther financial assets {c} 44 - 44 62 - 52
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {d)
Level 1 - Listed equity securities 936 - 936 1,788 - 1,798
Level 7 - Unlisted equity securities 20 - 20 13 - 13
Level 3 - Unlisted equity securities 47 - 47 a7 - 47
Financial assets at amortized cost 114 {e) 470 244 17 54 263
Financial assets 3,192 1.090 2,102 4,640 138 4,502

The three classification levels for the measurement of financial assets at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1.
a  Relates to cash management financiaf assets, included in the cash pasition: pfease refer to Note 14.
b.  Related to Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft, which was reclassified as "fair value through profit or loss” as of January 1, 2018,

c. These financial assets notably included the fair value of the bond redeemable into either shares or cash {ORAN 2} subscribed to by
Vivendi in 20186 in connection with its investment in Banijay Group Holding. As of January 1, 2018, they alsa included the balance of the
bond redeemable into either shares or cash {“new” ORAN 1) which was early redeemed in cash (€25 million) on December 21, 2018.

d  These assets refate 1o listed and non-listed equity securities, which Vivendi decided to classify as “fair value through cther
comprehansive income”. These financial assets had been classified as “financial assets available-for-sale” until December 31, 2017.

e.  Asof December 31, 2018, these financial assets notably included:
« areceivable of €429 million on the forward sale of the remaining interast in Ubisoft {please refer to Note 2.3);
e a hond redeemable in cash subscribed to by Vivendi in 2016 in connection with its investment in Banijay Group Holding for

€55 million; and
« a €70 million cash deposit made in March 2017 pursuant to an agreement to purchase a piece of land on the fle Seguin, in the

Parisian suburb Boulogne Billancoun.
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Listed equity and financial assets portfolio

December 31, 2018

. Average Stock . Change in Cumula_twe -
Number of Yating Dwnership Carrying unrealized Sensitivity
shares held intergst interest purchase ma_rket value value over capital at+/-10 pts
price (a) price the peniod {b} gainfiloss) (b

lin thousands) (€/shara) lin millhens of euros)
Mediaset 340,246 9.99% ()  2880% 370 274 934 {165} {325 +393/-93
Ubisoft {d} 6.550 5.23% 5 80% 3188 na 479 na na na
Other 791 440 632 +79/-78
Total 2154 275 301 H172/-172

December 31, 2017
. Cumulative
Number of Voting Ownership Average Stock Carrying Change in unrealized Sensitivity
shares held interest interest purchase maf"et value va!ue‘over capital at+/-10 pts
price {a) price the period (b} qaindlloss) {b)

{In thousands) {€/share) {tn millions of evros}
Mediaset 340,246 2984% ()  28.80% 370 373 1,099 {300} (160)  +110/-110
Ubisoft 30,488 29.04% 27.27% 26.12 6414 1,956 9z9 1180  +195/-195
Telefonica (g 49,247 0.95% 0.95% 11.58 813 400 {34) [163) +40/-40
Fnac Darty {f} 2,945 11.05% 11.05% 54.00 100.70 297 108 138 +30/-30
Other 3 - {2} -
Total 3,754 703 967  +375/-3715

na: not applicable.

a.
b.

Includes acquisition fees and taxes.

As from January 1, 2018, these amounts (before taxes) are either reported to profit or loss, or recorded as other comprehensive income
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. As of December 31, 2017, under 1AS 39, they were recorded as
ather charges and income directly recognized in equity.

The partnership agreement entered into between Vivenci and Mediaset on April 8, 2016 is the subject to litigation. As of December 31,
2017, Vivendi held 340,246 thousand Mediaset shares, representing 29.94% of the voting rights. On April 9, 2018, in compliance with
the undertakings given to the AGCOM, Vivendi transferred the portion of its voting rights in excess of 10% to an independent Italian
trustee (please refer to Note 23).

As part of the sale of its entire 27.27% interest in Ubisoft {i.e., 30,489 thousand shares), 6,550 thousand shares will be sold on March 5,
2019 in a farward sale {please refer to Note 2.3). As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, a receivable on share disposal for the amount of such forward sale [€429 miliion).

In November and December 2018, Vivendi sold on the market its Telefonica shares for an aggregate amount of €373 million. In 2018,
Vivendi received €11 miflicn in dividends from Telefonica, compared to €20 mitlion in 2017.

On July 2, 2018, Vivendi decided to settle in shares the hedging transaction entered into in January 2018 regarding its interest in Fnac
Darty. The settlement was comaleted on July 10, 2018 anc Vivendi received cash proceeds of €267 million on July 12, 2018 (piease
refer to Note 2.4).

Equity market value risks

As part of a sustainable investing strategy, Vivendi built an equity portfolio comprising listed and non-listed French and European companies
in the telecommunication and media sectors that are leaders in the production and distribution of content.

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held a portfolio of listed non-controlling equity interests, including a receivable of €429 million on the
forward sale of the remaining interest in Ubisoft (piease refer to Note 2.3). As of December 31, 2018, the aggregate market value of this
pcrtfolio was approximately €3.9 billion (before taxes). Vivendi is exposed to the risk of fluctuation in the value of these interests: as of
Decernber 31, 2018, the net unrealized capital gains or iosses with respect to the interests in Telecom ftalia, Mediaset, Spotify and Tencent
Music, represented a net unrealized capital loss amounting to approximately €1.8 billion (before taxes). A 10% uniform decrease in the value
of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative impact of approximately €2.5 billion on Vivendi's financial position; a 20% uniform
decrease in the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative impact of approximately €2.9 billion on Vivendi’s financial
position.
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Note 13  Net working capital

Changes in net working capital

Changes in Divestitures C?i?gzsnm
January 1, Dpera‘ting Busfines_,s in progress carrency Other (¢) December 31,
70181a) working cornbinations or ; 2018
; translation
{in millians of euros! cepital {b) completed  jusments
Inventories 177 29 - - 3 (3 206
Trade accounts receivable and other 5,208 85 28 (17} (6} 3 5314
Of which trade accounts receivable 3828 {29) 14 {9) {15) 51 3640
trade accounts
receivable write-offs {182} {2 - 3 - Z {1497}
Working capital assets 5,385 « 28 17 (3) K] 5,520
Trade accounts payable and other 9,09 64 60 {3) 39 393 9572
Other non-current liabilities 228 2 {1) - 4 17 248
Working capital liabilities 9,245 66 59 {3 43 419 9820
Net working capital {3,860) 28 {31) (14) {46} {3717) {4,300}
Changes in Divestituras CI}Z?SjESnm
December 31, operating Business in progress currer?cy Other ic) December 31,
2018 working — combinations or ; 2007
! translation
{in millions of euros) capital (b} completed adjustments
Inventories 123 {24} e - {10} 13) 177
Trade accounts receivable and other 2,273 499 2636 (d) 112 (147 {31) 5218
Of which trade accounts receivabie 1,340 476 2242 {7 {102} 61) 3828
trade accounts
recetvable write-offs {163) 5 {23} - 5 4 {172)
Working capital assets 2.3% 475 2121 (12} (157} (34} 5,395
Trade accounts payable and other 5614 745 3,067 (e} (23 {350) {35) 9,019
Other non-current liabilities 126 {6) 35 - (4) 75 226
Working capital liabilities 5,740 140 3102 (23} {354) 40 9245
Net working capital {3,344) {265} {375) 11 197 (14) {3.850)

a. Asof January 1, 2018, net working capital included the restatements related to the application of iFRS 9 for -€10 miilion (please refer to
Note 28.2).

b, Excludes content investments made by Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group.
¢.  Mainly includes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures and other investments.
d.  Included £2,629 million relating to the integration of Havas.

e. Included €3,043 million relating to the integration of Havas.

Trade accounts receivable and other
Credit risk

Vivendi does not consider there to be a significant risk of non-recovery of trade accounts receivables for its business segments: the large
individual customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business segments {mainly
Universal Music Group, Canal+ Group. Havas and Gameloft), enable Vivendi to minimize the risk of credit concentration related to trade
accaunts receivable,

Havas provides advertising and communications services to a wide range of clients operating in various industry sectors around the world.
Havas grants credit to all qualified clients. 1t does not believe it is exposed to any undue concentration of credit risk related to either a
specific country or ciient. Consequently, concentrations of credit risk on accounts receivable are limited. In 2015, Havas selected a leading
credit insurer to cover its main ¢lient credit risks worldwide. Depioyment of this credit insurance cover began in July 201% and continued
since then, including in Z018.
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Trade accounts payahle and other

{in milkions of euros) Note  December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Trade accounts payable 43838 4,909
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 10.2 2.037 1.830
Other 2,597 2,280
Trade accounts payable and other 9,572 9,019

Note 14  Cash position

Vivendi's cash pesition comprises cash and cash equivalents, as well as cash management financial assets classified as current financial
assets. As defined by Vivendi, cash management financizl assets relate to financial investments, which do not satisfy the criteria for
classification as cash equivalents set forth in IAS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, which satisfy ANC and AMF position
expectations expressed in November 2018.

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

tin miilions of euros} Carrying value Fair value Level [a} Carrying value Fair value Leve! (a)
Term deposits 549 na na 50 na na
Bond funds and other 50 50 1 25 25 1

Cash management financial assets 599 15

Cash 438 na na 389 na na
Term deposits and current accaunts 1,999 na na 1,257 na na
Money market funds 1,306 1,306 1 275 275 1

Bond funds 50 50 1 30 30 1

Cash and cash equivalents 3,793 1,951

Cash position 4,392 2,026

na: not applicable.

a Level 1 corresponds to a measurement based on quoted prices in active markets (the three classification levels for the measurement of
financial assets at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1).

In 2018, the average interest rate on Vivendi's investments was 0.50% (compared to 0.48% in 2017).

Investment risk and counterparty risk

Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surptuses {cash pooling) af all controlled entities (i} which are not subject to local regulations restricting the
transfer of financial assets, or (i) which are not subject to other agreements.

As of December 31, 2018, the group’s cash position amounted to €4,392 miliion (compared tc €2,026 million as of December 31, 2017}, of
which €3,354 million was held by Vivendi SA {compared to €1,072 million as of December 31, 2017).

Vivendi's investment policy mainly aims to minimize its exposure to counterparty risk. Consequently, Vivendi allocates a portion of the
amounts available within (i) mutual funds with a low risk class (1 or 2} as defined by the Furopean Securities and Markets Authority's (ESMA)
synthatic risk and reward indicator {SRRI) which comprises seven risk classes, and (i} credit institutions with high long-term or short-term
cradit ratings {at least A-{Standard & Poor's)/A3(Moody's) and A-2(Standard & Poor'sl/P-2{Moody’s), respectively). Moreover, Vivendi
allocates investments among selected banks and limits the amount of each such investment.

Liguidity risk

As of February 11, 2013 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018), Vivendi considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its cash surpluses, net of the cash
used to reduce its debt, as well as the cash available through undrawn bank credit facilities (please refer to Note 19.3) will be sufficient to
cover its operating expenses and investments, its debt service (including redemption of bonds}, the payment cf income taxes, the distribution
of dividends and any potential share repurchases under existing authorizations, as well as its investment projects, if any, for the next
12 months.
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Note15  Equity

Changes in the share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Number of shares comprising the share capital {nominal value: €5.5 per share) 1,306,234 1,296,059
Treasury shares (38,264} {39.408)
Number of shares, net 1,267,970 1,256,651
Number of vating rights, gross 4,387,889 1,513.250
Treasury shares {38,264} {39,408)
Number of voting rights, net 1,349,625 1,473,842

On July 19, 2018, Vivendi made a capital increase of €100 million, by issuing 5,186 thousand new shares through an employse stock
purchase plan and leveraged plan (please refer to Note 18).

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi's share capital amounted to €7,184,288,078, divided into 1,306,234,196 shares. In addition, as of
December 31, 2018, 7.2 millian stock options and 4.8 million performance shares were outstanding, representing & potential maximum
nominal share capital increase of €66 miltion (i.e., 0.52%).

Share repurchases

On April 19, 2018, the General Shareholders’ Meeting renewed the authorization given to Vivendi's Management Board to repurchase shares
of the company within the limit of 5% of Vivend's share capital and at a maximum price of £24 per share.

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held 38,264 thousand treasury shares, representing 2.93% of its share rapital {compared to 3.04% of its
share capital as of December 31, 2017},

Among the resolutions to be submitted to a vote at the Shargholders” Meeting to be held on April 15, 2019, the shareholders will be asked to
approve two resolutions relating to share repurchases:

» The renewal of the authorizations granted to the Management Board by the Sharehoiders Meeting of April 19, 2018 to repurchase
shares of the company within the limit of 10% of the share capital at a maximum purchase price of €25 per share, and to reduce
the company's share capital within the limit of 10% by cancelling the shares acquired.

s Granting to the Management Board authorization to purchase shares of the company by way of a public share buyback offer {CPRA}
within the timit of 26% of Vivendi's share capita! dl 4 sneximum purchase price of €25 per share, and to cancel the sharcs acquired.

Shareholders’ dividend distributions

On February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that appraved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018 and the allocation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended), the Management Board decided to propose to
shareholders the payment of an ordinary dividend of €0.50 per share representing a totat distribution of approximately €634 million. This
proposed distribution was presented to, and approved by, Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 14, 2019, and will be
submitted to the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting to be held on April 15, 2018 for approval.

On April 24, 2018, with respect 1o fiscal year 2017, an ordinary dividend of €0.45 per share was paid (following the coupon detachment on
April 20, 2018}, representing a total distribution of €568 million.

Financial Repart and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 85



Note 16 Provisions

{in milhons of euras)

Employes benefits (al

Restructuring costs {b)

Litigations

Losses on onerous contracts
Contingent liabilities due to disposal [c)
Other (d}

Provisions

Deduction of current pravisions
Non-current provisions

Note

23
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December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

697 746

55 59

247 250

37 B1

20 16

813 785

1,869 1,927
(438) (412)

1431 1,515

a Included deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€661 millicn as of December 31,
2018 and €712 million as of December 31, 2017), but excluded employee termination reserves recorded under restructuring costs.

b Primarily included provisions for restructuring at UMG (€13 million as of December 31, 2018, compared tc €3 million as of December 31,
2017) and at Canai+ Group (€40 million as of December 31, 2018, compared to €50 million as of December 31, 2017},

¢ Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions. These provisions are not significant and the amount
is not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivendi.

d.  Notably included the provisions with respect to the 2012 and 2015 French Tax Group System (€239 million and €203 million as of
December 31, 2018, respectively), as well as litigation provisions for which the amount and nature are not cisclosed because such

disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivendi.

Changes in provisions

{in millions of eures)
Opening balance
Addition

Ltilization

Reversal

Business combinations

Divestitures, changes in foreign currency transfation adjustments and other

Closing bhalance

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017
1927 2,141
280 451
(231 (270} fa)
(123) {503} (a
- 172
16 {64}
1,869 1,927

a  Notably included the reversal of reserve related to the securities class action in the United States for an aggregate amount of

€100 miltion (please refer to Note 23).
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Note 177  Employee benefits

17.1  Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The table below provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financial component. The total cost of defined
benefit plans is set forth in Note 17.2.2 below.

Year ended December 31,

{in milticns of euros} Note 2018 2017

Employee defined contribution plans 62 46
Employee defined benefit plans 1727 26 23
Employee benefit plans 88 69

This cost increase was primarily due to the full-year effect of the consoiidation of Havas since July 3, 2017: €3Z miliion for employee defined
contribution plans (€17 million in 2017) and €6 millian for employee defined benefit plans (€3 million in 2017).

172 Employee defined henefit plans
17.21 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis

Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in compliance with the accounting policies presented in
Note 1.3.8 and have been applied consistently for severat years. Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific. Financial assumptions {notably the discount rate] are determined by independent actuaries and other
independent advisors and are reviewed by Vivendi's Finance department. The discount rate is therefore determined for each country by
reference to yields on notes issued by investment grade companies having & credit rating of AA and maturities identical to that of the valued
plans, generally based on relevant rate indices. The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivendi's Finance department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments.

In accordance with amended 1AS 19, the expected return on plan assets s estimated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year.

in weighted average

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits

2018 2017 2018 2017
Discount rate {a) 2.3% 2.2% 3.9% 37%
Rate of compensation increase 1.7% 1.5% na na
Duration of the benefit obligation {in vears} 150 15.5 88 94

na: not applicable.

a A 50 basis point increase {or & 50 basis point decrease, respectively] to the 2018 discount rate would have ied to a decrease of
€1 mitlien in pre-tax expense {(or an increase of €1 million, respectively) and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €84 million (or an increase of €87 million, respectively),

Assumptions used in aceounting for pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2018 w7 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Discount rate 4.00% 375% 2.75% 2.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
Rate of compensation increase (weighted average) na na 3.50% 350% 1.75% 1.75% 347% 3.25%

na: not applicable.

Assumptions used in accounting for post -retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2018 207 2018 2017
Discount rate 4.00% 375% 375% 350%
Rate of compensation increase na na na na

na: not applicable.
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Equity securities 13% 12%
Debt securities 21% 20%
Diversified funds 10% 15%
Insurance contracts 3%% N%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 16% 11%
Total 100% 100%

Pension pian assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets.

These assets do not include occupied buildings or assets used by the group nor shares or debt instruments of Vivendi.

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from B.7% for the under B5 years of age and 65 vears of age and older categories in 2018, to 4.4% in 2026 for
these categories. In 2018, a one-percentage-point increase in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obligations by €6 million and the pre-tax expense by £0.3 milticn. Canversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates woutd have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €5 million and the pre-tax expense by €0.2 million.

17.22  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retirement bengfits Totai

{in millions of suros) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 207
Current service cost 27 24 - - 27 24
FPast service cost i2) i72) - {2} {2)
{Gamns)/losses on settlements - - - - - -
Other 1 1 - - 1 1
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses 26 23 - - 26 23
Interest cost 22 17 b b 27 22
Expected return on plan assets {11} (10} - - (11) 10}
Impact on ather financial charges and income 1 7 5 5 16 12
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss 37 30 5 5 42 5

in 2018, benefits paid amounted to (i) €50 million with respect to pensions (€90 million in 2017), of which €17 million paid by pension funds
(€63 million in 2017), and {ii) €8 million paid with respect to post-retirement benefits (€11 million in 2017).
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1723 Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement henefits

The consolidation of Havas on July 3, 2017 resultad in a net provision of £104 mitlion corresponding to historical carrying values reparted in
Havas's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, stemming from benefit obligations valued at £254 million less the value of plan assets
for €150 million.

Changes in value of benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31, 2018

Benefit Fair value of plan Net
obligation assets {provision)/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position
{in millions of euros) Note (A) {B] {BHA)
Opening balance 1253 549 (704)
Current service cost 27 177
Past service cost {2) 2
(Gains)/losses on settlements - - .
Other - (1) {1
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses (26)
Interest cost 77 27
Expected return on plan assets 1" 11
Impact on other financial charges and income {16)
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss (42)
Experience gains/{losses) (a) {7 5] 2
Actuarial gains/[iosses) related to changes in demographic assumptions 9} 9
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions {b) {32} 32
Adiustment related to asset ceiling -
Actuarial gains/({losses) recognized in other comprehensive income 43
Contributions by pian participants 3 3 -
Contributions by employers - 58 58
Benefits paid by the fund 17} 7
Benefits paid by the employer {42) (42
Business combinatians - -
Divestitures of businesses .
Transfers - - .
Foreign currency translation and other 4 (3) (7)
Closing balance 1,205 553 1652)
of which wholty or partly funded benefits 799
whetly unfunded benefits (¢} 406
of which assets related to employee benefit plans g
provisions for employee benefit plans (d) 16 {661)
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{in millions of euros)
Opening balance
Current service cost
Past service cost
{Gainsl/losses on settlaments
Other
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Impact an other financial charges and income
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss
Experience qains/{losses) (a)
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in demaographic assumptions
Actuarial gains/{losses} related to changes in financial assumptions (e}
Adjustment related to asset ceiling
Actuarial gains/{losses) recognized in other comprehensive income
Contributions by alan participants
Contributions by employers
Benefits paid by the fund
Benefits paid by the employer
Business combinations
Cansolidation of Havas
Divestitures of businesses
Transfers
Forgign currency translation and other
Closing halance
of which wholly or partly funded benefits
wholly umfunded benefits (c)
of which assets related to employee benefit plans
provisions for employee benefit plans (d)

Note
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Employee defined benefit plans

Year ended December 31, 2017

Benefit Fair value of plan Net
obiigation assets {pravision)/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position
iAl {8) (B)-A}
1179 482 (697)
24 {24)
{2} 7
(1) {1
{23}
22 (22)
0 10
{12}
(35}
25 {30 {55}
{10} 10
187} 87
{42)
3 3 B
- 63 63
{63} (631
{38 (38} -
i - {2)
254 150 (104}
{56} {27 79
1253 549 (704)
834
414
8
{712)

a. Includes the impact on the benefit chligations resulting from the difference between actuarial assumptions at the previous year-end and
effective benefits during the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the

actual return on plan assets during the year.

b, Included €29 miflion attributabie to an increase in discount rates, of which €23 miflion relating to the United Kingdem and €4 miltion

relating to the United States.

t.  Inaccordance with local faws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, such
plans principally comprised supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and post-retirement benefit

plans in the United States.

d  Included a current liability of €51 million as of December 31, 2018 (compared to £53 million as of December 31, 2017},

e. Included -€72 million attributable to an increase in discount rates, of which -€5 million relating to the United States, -€19 miltion
relating to the United Kingdom, -€19 mitlien relating to Garmany and -€24 million relates to France.
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Pension henefits (a) Post-retirement benefits (b) Total
December 31, December 31, December 31,
{in millions of eurcsj 28 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Benefit obligation
US companies 13 118 107 m 220 229
UK companies 432 459 2 2 434 4N
German companies 184 192 - - 184 192
French companies "9 268 3 3 282 mn
Other 75 78 10 12 85 90
1,083 1125 122 128 1.205 1253
Fair value of plan assets
US companies 52 h4 - - 52 54
UK companies 395 398 - - 395 398
German companias i 2 - - i 2
French companies 52 43 - - 52 43
(ther 57 52 - - 52 52
553 549 - - 553 549
Underfunded obligation
US companies {61 {64) {107} (111 {168) {175}
UK companies {c) (37 {71) {2) {2) (39 73
German companies (182 {190} - - {182) {190}
French companies (227) (225) {3 {3t {230) 1228)
Other {23) {26 (10} (12} (33) {38}
{530) (576) {122} {128} {652) (704}
a  No employes defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligations and underfunded obligations

under these plans.

Primarily reiates to medical coverage (hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and life insurance
benefis for certain employees and retirees in the United States. In accordance with current regulations in relation to the funding policy
of this type of plan. the plan is not funded. The main risks for the group relate to changes in discount rates as well as increases in the
cost of benefits (please rafer to the sensitivity analysis described in Note 17.2.1).

In December 2017, the UMPGS fund in the United Kingdom purchased a buy-in insurance policy, covering pension benefits. This
insurance policy is an asset to the UMGPS plan. It was purchased following the exercise by some beneficiaries of the right to exit the
UMGPS plan against a payment in cash. Vivendi continues to undertake the benefits with regards to the remaining beneficiaries of the
plan. In principle, the benefit obligations are equat to the pian’s assets, and no net pension liability is recorded in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

17.2.4 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2

018, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivendi to retirees are estimated at €44 million in respect cf pensions, of which

€27 million relates to pension funds and €9 million refates to post-retirement benefits.

Estimates of futyre benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi (in nominal value for the following
10 years) are as follows:

. : Post-retirement
Pension benefits

{in miilions of euros) benefits

2019 41 10
2020 58 10
2021 43 9
2022 60 g
2023 59 g
2024-2028 283 1y
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Note18  Share-based compensation plans

18.1  Plans granted by Vivendi

18.1.1  Equity-settled instruments

Transactions relating to cutstanding instruments that occurred in 2017 and 2018 were as follows:

Stock options Performance shares
Number of outstanding Weighted average strike price Number of gutstanding
stock options of outstanding stock options performance shares
{in thousands) {in eurgs) {in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2016 24,620 191 3216
Granted - na 1,548
Exercised / Issued {4811} {a) 176 {342}
Forfeited (6.557) 247 na
Cancelled {50} 202 {119)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 13,202 16.8 4,303
Granted - na 1,636
Exercised / Issued (4,989) (&) 17.9 {771)
Forfeited (968) 20.2 na
Cancelled - na {378) (b}

Balance as of December 31, 2018 7,245 (c) 15.6 4,790 (d)

Acquired / Exercisable as of December 31, 2018 7,245 156 -

Rights acquired as of December 31, 2018 - na a8

na. not applicable.

a

d

In 2018, beneficiaries exercised stock options at the weighted average stock market price of €22.3 (compared to £21.1 for stock options
exercised in 2017),

At its meeting held on February 15, 2018, after a review by the Corporate Gevernance, Nominatiens and Remuneration Committee, the
Supervisory Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives set for the cumulative fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017 for the
performance share plan granted in 2015. It was confirmed that not all the criteria had been met. The final grant of the 2015
performance share plan represented 75% of the initial grant, as adjusted. Consequently, 243,464 rights to performance shares, which
were granted in 2015, were cancelfed and 42,500 of the cancelled rights wera for members of the Management Board. In addition,
134,520 rights were cancetled due to the termingtion of employment ¢f certain beneficiaries.

At the stock market price on December 31, 2018, the cumulated intrinsic value of remaining stock options to be exercised was
estimated at £41 million.

The weighted-average remaining period before deiivering performance shares was 1.7 years.

Please refer to Note 15 for a description of the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the gutstanding stock options and
performance shares.

Outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2018

Range of strike prices Number Weighted average strike Weight!_aq average
price remaining lfe
{in thousands}) {in euras] lin years)
Under €15 1,097 119 33
€15-€16 2,568 15.8 1.3
€16-€17 2,305 16.1 0.3
£17-818 1.315 17.2 23
More than €18 - - -
1245 15.6 1.5
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Performance share plans

On May 17, 2018, Vivendi granted to employees and executive management 1,632 thousand performance shares, of which 175,000 were
granted to members of the Management Board. On February 23, 2017, Vivendi granted to employees and executive management
1,544 thousand performance shares, 200,000 of which were to members of the Management Board.

As of May 17, 2018, the share price was £€23.03 and the expected dividend vield was 1.85% (compared to €16.95 and 2.36% as of
February 23, 2017, respectively). After taking into account the cost associated with the retention period of the shares (described below), the
discount for non-transferability was set at 8.1% of the share price as of May 17, 2018 {compared to 8.4% in 2017). Consequently, the fair
value of each granted performance share was estimated at €1%.85 (compared to €14.37 in 2017, corresponding to an aggregate fair value of
the plan of €32 million {compared to €22 million in 2017).

Subject to satisfaction of the performance criteria, performance shares definitely vest at the end of a three-year period, subject to the
presence of the beneficiaries in the group (vesting period), and the shares must be hetd by the beneficiaries for an additional two-year period
(retention period). The compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The accounting methods that are
applied to estimate and recognize the value of these granted plans are described in Note 1.3.70.

Satisfaction of the objectives that determine the definitive grant of performance shares is assessed over a three-year consecutive period
based on the following performance criteria:
» Internal indicators {with a weighting of 70%!:
- the group’s earnings before interest and income taxes - EBIT {35%); and
- the group’s cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid - CFAIT (35%).
« External indicators (with a weighting of 30%) tied to changes in Vivendi's share price compared to the STOXX® Furope Media index
{Z0%} and to the CAC 40 index (10%).

The granted shares correspond to the same class of common shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, and as a result, at the end of
the three-year vesting period, beneficiaries wilt be entitled to the dividends and vating rights attached to these shares. The compensaticn
cost recogrized corresponds to the estimated value of the equity instruments granted to the beneficiary, and is equal to the difference
between the fair value of the shares to be received and the aggregate discounted value of the dividends that were not received over the
vesting period.

In 2018, the charge recognized with respect to ail performance share plans amcunted to £18 miflion, compared to €18 million in 2017
18.1.2 Emgployee stock purchase and leveraged plans

On July 19, 2018 and July 25, 2017, Vivendi made capital increases through employee stock purchase plans and leveraged plans which gave
the group’s employees and retirees an opportunity to subscribe for Vivendi shares.

These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restrictions during a five-year period, are subscribed to at a discount of up t¢ 15%
on the average opening market price for Vivendi shares during the 20 trading days preceding the date of the Management Board meeting
which set the subscription price for the new shares to be issued. The difference between the subscription price for the shares and the share
price on that date represents the benrefit granted to the beneficiaries. In addition, Vivendi applied a discount for non-transferability during a
five-year period, which is deducted from the benefit granted to the employees. The value of the subscribed shares is estimated and fixed at
the date on which the subscription price for the new shares to be issued is set.

The applied valuation agsumptions were as follows:

2018 2017
Grant date June 18 June 22
Data at grant date.
Share price {in euros) 2157 2058
Expected dividend yield 2.09% 1.94%
Risk-free interest rate 0.11% 021%
5-year interest rate in fine 381% 3.93%
Repo rate 0.36% 0.36%
Discount for non-transferability per share 17 49% 18.44%

Under the employee stock purchase plan (ESPP), 734 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2018 through a company mutual fund {Fonds
Commun de Placement d'Entreprise) at a price of €19.327 per share (compared to 651 thousand shares at a price per share of €16.25 in
2017). In 2018, na charges were recognized, as the benefit granted, which is equal to the positive difference between the subscription price
and the stock price at the end of the subscription period on June 18, 2018 (discount of 10.40%) was lower than the discount for non-
transferability (17.49%). In 2017, the benefit granted (21.00%) was higher than the discount for non-transferability {18.44%) and the charge
recogrized with respect to the ESPP amounted to £1 million.
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Under the leveraged plan, 4,259 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2018 through a company mutual fund at a price of £19.327 per share
{compared to 2,587 thousand shares at a price of £16.25 in 2017). The leveraged plan entitles employees and retirees of Vivendi and its
French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivendi shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining a discounted
subscription price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain (calculated pursuant to the terms and canditions of the plan) equal to 10 shares
for each subscribed share A financial institution mandated by Viverd hedges this transaction. In addition, 193 thousand shares were
subscribed for as part of an empioyee shareholding plan implemented for employees of the group's Japanese subsidiaries {compared to
922 thousand shares as part of a similar plan for employees of the groun’s American subsidiarias in 2017). In 2018, the charge recognized
with respect to the leveraged plan amounted to nearly €1 million, compared to €5 million in 2017.

Transactions carried out in France and foreign countries through company mutual funds {Fonds Commun de Placement d'Entrepriss, employee
stock purchase and leveraged plans) resulted in a capital increase on July 19, 2018 of an aggregate value of €100 millien {including issue
premium}, compared to £68 million on July 25, 2017.

18.2 Restricted and performance share plans granted hy Havas

The restricted and performance share plans were valued based on the stock market price of Havas shares as of the date of the Board of
Directors’ meeting that approved the grant of these shares. Subject to satisfaction of the performance criteria for certain plans, shares
definitely vest at the end of a period of 36 to 51 months, subject to the presence of the beneficiaries in the group.

As of December 31, 2018, Havas's outstanding plans were as follows:

e On January 19, 2015, the Board of Directors granted 2,420 thousand performance shares for the employees and directors of
Havas SA and its subsidiaries in France and abroad.

« 0On March 18, 2015, the Board of Directors granted 70 thousand performance shares to Mr. Yannick Bolloré, Chief Executive Officer
of Havas SA.

e On August 27, 2015, the Board of Directors granted a plan of 120 thousand performance shares to ali employees of French
companies.

» (On May 10, 2016, the Board of Directors granted three plans for a total of 2,784 thousand restricted shares and performance shares
to the group’s senior executives and managers in France and abroad, including 90 thousand shares for Mr. Yannick Belloré.

+ DOnJuly 21, 2016, the Board of Directors granted 148 thousand restricted shares to al! employees in France.

s On February 28, 2017, the Board of Directors granted 1,699 thousand restricted shares to the group’s senior executives in France and
abroad.

In light of both the implementation of the mandatory squeeze-out resulting in the absence of liquidity for Havas shares and the change of
control of Havas to Vivendi, Vivendi's Supervisory Board resolved that the restricted and performance shares granted by Havas would be
replaced by Vivend| shares, on the basis of 0.44 Vivend share for every one Havas share.
In 2018, beneficiaries of Havas restricted or performance shares have been individuatly given the option of being definitively granted the
corresponding shares initially granted to them, subject to having entered into a liquidity contract with Vivend:, which contains:
= aput option, giving such beneficiaries the right to sell their Havas restricted and performance shares tc Vivendi within thirty calendar
days from the first business day following the date of vesting of their Havas restricted and performance shares; and
« 3 call option, giving Vivendi the right to acquire the relevant Havas restricted and performance shares within fifteen calendar days
following the expiry of the exercise period of the abovementicned put option.
The exercise price of these options will be the cash equivalent, for one Havas share, of the market value of 0.44 Vivendi share calculated on
the basis of the average stock market price for Vivendi shares on Euronext Paris, weighted by the daily trading volumes on the regulated
market of Euronext Paris, during the ten trading days preceding the date of vesting of Havas restricted and performance shares.
By way of derogation, given the proximity of the vesting pericd applicable to a plan that had been granted on January 29, 2014 {vested on
April 29, 2018), this exercise price was equal to the tender offer price, i.e., £9.25 per Havas share, for the beneficiaries of this plan.

As of December 31, 2018, 2,297 thousand Havas shares were subject to a liquidity agreement and will therefore be granted to the
beneficiaries subject to their prasence upon maturity of each plan, and then acquired by Vivendi. 3,570 thousand Havas shares will ke
exchanged for approximatively 1,571 thousand Vivendi shares (on the basis of 0.44 Vivendi for every one Havas share).
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Transactiens relating to outstanding shares that have occurred since July 3, 2017 {the date on which Vivendi took contrel of Havas) were as
foliows:

Number of putstanding shares

{in thousands}

Balance as of December 31, 2016 -
Resulting from the business combination 8,275
Forfeited -
Cancelled {342)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 7,933
Forfeited (1,719) ta)
Cancelled {347)

Balance as of December 31, 2018 5,867

a.  With respect to the plan granted on January 29, 2014 and which expired on April 29, 2018, 870 thousand shares were paid in cash by
Vivendi at a price of €9.25 per share and 849 thousand Havas shares were exchanged for 374 thousand Vivendi shares, on the basis of
0.44 Vivendi share for every one Havas share in accordance with the terms and conditions of the plan described above.

In 2018, the charge recognized in respect of all restricted and performance share plans granted by Havas amounted to €10 million, compared
to €4 million in the second half of 2017.

18.3 Restricted share plans granted by Gameloft S.E.

The restricted share plans of Gameloft S.E. (“Gameloft”) were valued on the basis of the stock market price of the Gameloft share as of the
date of the Board of Directors meeting that approved the grant of restricted shares, taking into account the retention period on the shares
following vesting. The definitive grant of shares to beneficiaries is conditional upon the beneficiary's employment contract with the company
being continuously in force throughout the entire vesting period, of two or four years depending on the plan.

Transactions on outstanding restricted shares that occurred in 2017 and 2018 were as follows:

Number of outstanding
restricted shares

{in thousans)

Balance as of December 31, 2016 1333
Issued {553)
Forfeited -
Cancelled (48

Balance as of December 31, 2017 ™
Issued (308)
Farfeited -
Cancelled 87

Balance as of December 31, 2018 31 (s

a. The weighted-average remaining period before delivering restricted shares was .96 year.

In the second half of 2018, the beneficiaries approved the liquidity agreement proposed by Vivendi. The number of shares referred to in this
agresment was 1,606 thousand shares.

18.4 Dailymotign's lang-term incentive plan

In 2015, Vivendi implemented a long-term incentive plan for a five-year period for certain key executives of Vivendi. This plan is tied to the
growth of Dailymotion’s enterprise value compared to its acquisition value, to be measured as of June 30, 2020, based upon an independent
expertise. In the event of an increase in Cailymotion's value, the amount of the compensation with respect to the incentive plan is capped at
a percentage of such increase, depending on the beneficiary. Within the six months following June 30, 2020, the plan will be settled in cash,
if applicable.

In accordance with (FRS 2, a compensation expense must be estimated and accounted for at each reporting date until the payment date. As
of December 31, 2018, no charges were accounted for with respect to this plan, unchanged compared to prior years.
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Note 19  Borrowings and other financial liabilities and financial risk management

December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
{in mitlions of euros) Note Total long-term  Short-term Total Long-term Short-term
Bonds 192 4,050 3.350 700 4150 4,050 100
Short-term marketable securities issued - - - - - -
Bank overdrafts 98 - 98 75 - 75
Accrued interest to be paid 17 - 17 18 - 18
Bank credit facilities (drawn confirmed) 183 - - - - - -
Cumulative effect of amortized cost 18.1 {14) (13} 1 {18) {18) -
Other 65 10 55 14 12 129
Borrowings at amortized cost 4216 337 869 4,366 4,044 322
Commitments to purchase non-contralling interests 114 98 16 144 103 Ly
Derivative financial instruments 1897 5 3 3 33 23 tal 10
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 4,336 3,448 838 4,543 4,170 13

a Inaccordance with IFRS 9, the fair value of the opticns pursuant to which Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay may redeem the bonds
in shares was reclassified as a reduction of financial assets as from January 1, 2018 {piease refer to Notes 12 and 28.2).

19.1  Fair market value of borrowings and cther financial liabilities

December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
o Carrying Fair market Lovel () Carrying Fair market Level (a)
{in millions of euros) valug value value value
Nominal value of borrowings 4,230 4,384
Cumulative effect of amortized cost (14 {(18)
Borrowings at amortized cost 4216 4,291 na 4,366 4,506 na
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 114 114 3 144 144 3
Derivative financial instruments 6 B 2 33 33 i
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 4,336 4411 4,543 4,683
na: not applicable.
a. The three classification levels for the measurement of financial liabilities at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1.
19.2 Bonds
o Ijterest A {%J. Maturity December 31,2018 January 1, 2018
{in millions of auros) nominal effective
Bonds issued by Vivendi SA
€850 million {September 2017 {a) 0.875% 0.99% Sep-24 850 850
€600 million (November 2016) {a) 1.125% 1.18% Nov-23 600 600
€1 hillion {May 2016) (a} 0.750% (0.90% May-21 1,000 1,000
€500 million (May 2G16) {a) 1.875% 1.93% May-25 500 500
€700 million (December 2009) {b) 4 875% 4.%% Dec-19 700 700
Bonds issued by Havas SA
£400 million {December 2015) (a) 1.875% 194% Dec-20 400 400
€100 million {July 2013} {a} 3.125% 3.125% Jul-18 - o 100
Nominal value of bonds 4,050 4,150

2. Bonds listed on the Euronext Paris Stock Exchange.
b.  Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
¢ This bond was fully redeemed at maturity in July 2018.

On Margh 22, 2017, Vivendi set up a €3 billion Euro Medium-Term Ncte (EMTN) program giving Vivendi full flexibitity to issue bords. This
program was renewed on March 23, 2018 and filed with the AMF (Autorité des marchés financiers) under visa n®18-090 for a 12-month
period. Its renewal was approved by the Management Board on January 21, 2019.
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Bends issued by Vivendi SA contain customary pravisions related to events of default, negative pledge and rights of payment {pari-passu
ranking). They also contain an early redemption clause in the event of a change of control’ if, as a result of any such event, the long-term
rating of Vivendi SA is downgraded below investment grads status {Baa3/BBB-).

Bonds issued by Havas contain an early redemption clause in the event of & change of coatrol”,

19.3 Bank credit facilities

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi SA had a €2 billion undrawn syndicated bank credit facility, maturing on October 29, 2021. Taking into
account the absence of short-term marketable securities issued and backed by this bank credit facility, €2 billion of this facility was available
as of December 31, 2018. At the end of each half-year, Vivendi SA was required to comply with a Proportignate Financial Net Debt" to
EBITDA’ financial covenant over a 12-month ralling period, not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loan. Non-compliance with this covenant
could resutt in the early redemgption of the bank credit facility if it were drawn, or its cancellation. As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi SA was
in compliance with its firancial covenant.

On January 16, 2019, Vivendi SA’s syndicated bank credit facility was amended for an amount of €2.Z billion and its maturity was extended
to January 16, 2024 {with two one-year extension options}. In addition, committed bilateral credit facilities granted by feading banks were
signed by Vivendi in January 2019, for an aggregate available amount of €1.2 biltion maturing in January 2024.

All these credit facilities are no longer required to comply with financial covenants but they contain customary provisions relating to events
of default and covenants applicable to Vivendi in terms of negative pledge and merger transactions.

As of February 11, 2019 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018}, €3.3 billion of Vivendi SA's facilities were available, taking into account the short-term marketable securities
issued and backed by these credit facilities for €100 mitlion.

Cn February 11, 2019, Vivendi's Management Board adopted a proposal to increase the maximum amount of Vivendi SA's shon-term
marketable securities program authorized by the Bangue de France to €34 billion. This proposal was presented to, and approved by,
Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 14, 2018

in addition, Havas SA has committed credit facilities, undrawn as of December 31, 2018, granted by leading banks for an aggregate amount
of €510 million, including £330 millicn maturing in 2020, €30 million maturing in 2021 and €150 milticn maturing in 2023. These credit
facilities are required to comply with the following financial covenants at each annual clasing date:

» Adjusted EBITDA® to Net interest expense’ ratio must be higher than 3.5; and

e Adjusted Net Debt™' to Adjusted EBITDA ratic must be tower than 3.

As of February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018}, €3.7 billion of Vivendi group’s (Vivendi SA and Havas SA) facilities were available, taking into account the short-
term marketable securities issued and backed by these credit facilities for €240 million.

* In the bonds issued in May 2016 and November 2018, Bolloré Group was carved out of the change -ofcontrol provision.
* Change of controf 1s defined as the settlement/defivery of a tender offer foflowing which one or more individual(s) or legal entitiefs) which does/de not belong to Bolloré Group
and Vivendi, acting in isolation or in concert, acquirefs) over b(% of Havas SA’s share capital or voting rights.
" Relates to Financial Net Debt as defined by Vivendi, plus derivative financial instruments whose underlying instruments are not financial Net Debt items and commitments to
purchase non-controlling irterests.

Felates to LBITDA as defined by Vivendi plus dividends received from uncansolidated companies.

Cerrasponds, on the basis of Havas's consolidated financial statemants as of December 31 of each year, to income from operations plus intangible and tangible fived asset
depreciation and amortization, stock option charges and other compensation as defined by IFRS 2.
“ Cerresponds, on the basis of Havas’s consolidated financial statements as of December 31 of each year, to the total amount of financial expenses minus interest income,
excluding net provisions on finangial assets and financial expenses in connection with the repurchase or the restructuring of the convertible bond fines.
" This covenant does not apply to the credit facilitios maturing in 2023,

" Corresponds, 2t 3 given date and on the basis of Havas's consolidated finangial statements, 1o convernble bonds and other borrowings and financial liabilities fexcluding
convertible bonds fo be redeemed in shares) minus cash and cash equivalents as recorded in Havas's consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS.
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19.4  Borrowings hy maturity

{in millions ot euros} December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Maturity

<1yearia) 869 21% 322 7%
Between 1 and 2 years 403 9% 703 16%
Between 2 and 3 years 1,003 24% 406 9%
Between 3 and 4 years 1 - 1,001 23%
Between 4 and § years 601 14% - -
> 5 years 1,353 2% 1,957 45%
Nominal value of borrowings 4,230 100% 4,334 100%

a.  Asof December 31, 2018, short-term borrowings (with a maturity period of less than one year) notably included Vivendi's bond maturing
in December 2019 for €700 million, as well as bank overdrafts for €98 million. As of January 1, 2018, they notably included Havas SA's
bond, which expired on July 11, 2018 for £100 miliion, as well as bank overdrafts for €75 million.

The average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, calculated based on the assumption that available medium term credit lines may
be used to redeem the group’s shortest term borrowings, was 5.3 years as of December 31, 2018 (taking into account the new bank financing
signed in January 2019), compared to 5.0 years as of December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2018, the future undiscounted cash flows related to borrowings and other financial liabilities amounted to €4,558 million
(compared to €4,862 million as of January 1, 2018) with a carrying value of £4,336 million (compared to €4,543 million as of January 1, 2018}
and are set out in Note 22.1 in the group’s contractual minimum future payments schedule.

19.5 Interest rate risk management

Vivendi's interest rate risk management seeks to reduce its net exposure to interest rate increases. Therefore, Vivendi uses, if needed, pay-
floating and pay-fixed interest rate swaps. These instruments thus enable the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows
related to interest paymants on borrowings.

As of December 31, 2018, the nominal value of borrowings at fixed interest rate amounted to €4,097 miliion {compared to £4,218 million as
of December 31, 2017) and the nominal value of borrowings at floating interest rate amounted to €133 millicn {compared to €166 million as
of December 31, 2017).

As of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, Vivendi did not subscribe to any pay-floating or pay-fixed interest rate swaps.
19.6 Foreign currency risk management

Breakdown by currency

{in millsons of euros) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Fura - EUR 411 57% 4,788 98%
US dollar - USD 8 - 1 -
Other 11 3% 95 2%
Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 4230 100% 4,334 100%

Currency swaps USD 693 1,334

Other currency swaps {71) 192

Net total of hedging instruments (a) 622 1.526
Euro - EUR 4,733 112% 5,814 133%
US dollar - USD (685} -16% {1.333) 31%
Other 182 4% (97} 2%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 4,230 100% 4,384 100%

a  Notional amounts of hedging instruments translated into euros at the closing rates.
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Foreign currency risk

The group’s foreign currency risk management is centralized by Vivendi SA’s Financing and Treasury Department for all its controlled
subsidiaries, except if, during a transition period, an acquired subsidiary is authorized to pursue, at its level, spot and forward exchange
transactions. This poticy primarily seeks to hedge budget expasures (at an 80% fevel} resulting from manetary flows generated by aperatians
performed in currencies other than the euro as well as from external firm eammitments {at a 100% level), primarily refating to the acquisition
of editorial content (e.q., sports, audiovisual and film rights) and certain capital expenditures {e.g., set-top hoxes), realized in currencies other
than the euro. Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a maturity period of less than one
year. Considering the foreign currency hedging instruments set up, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% against all foreign
currencies in position as of December 31, 2018, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings {around €1 million). In
addition, the group may hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financial assets and liabilities.
Moreover, due to their non-significant nature, net exposures refated to subsidiaries’ net working capital {internal flows of royalties as well as
external purchases] are generally not hedged. The associated risks are settled at the end of each month by translating the amounts into the
functional currency of the relevant operating entities.

The following tables set out the foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group; the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be received and the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered at contractual exchange rates:

December 31, 2018

Notional amounts Fair velug
{in millions of euros) Total Usb PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the eurg (408} (131 {170) 62) {45} - 3
Purchases against the euro 1,727 947 128 133 524 19 i
Other - {235) 100 94 41 5 ]
1,319 576 58 165 520 24 6

Breakdown by accounting category of foreign currency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge

Sales against the euto {33 {1 {16} - {16)

Purchases against the euro 92 45 - - 47 4 -

Other - {23) 14 - 9 - -

59 21 {2) - a0 4 -

Fair Value Hedge

Sales against the eurg {313) {130} {154} - (29} - 3

Purchases against the euro 913 780 - 133 - 13 1

Other - {138) 86 49 1 5 1
600 54 {68) 182 {28) 18 5

Economic Hedging (a)

Sales against the eurp 62) - {62} - - -

Purchases against the euro 72?2 17 128 - 477 ? 1

Other - {76) - 45 N -
660 41 128 7 508 2 1
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January 1, 2018

Notional amounts Fair value

{in mitlicns of 2uros} Total Usb PN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {362) {73} {132} 130) (127 2 3
Purchases against the euro 2,094 1,548 93 193 280 3 6
(ther 68 {95) Vi 25 4

1,732 1543 {134) 165 158 5 3
Breakdown by accounting category of foreign currency hedging instruments
Cash FAlow Hedge
Sales agzinst the euro {79) - (7 i1 (61) 2
Purchases against the euro 50 23 - 2 25
QOther - 16 (16) - - -

(29) k (23} (9) {36} 2 -
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro {281} {731 {125} {19) (64} 3
Purchases against the euro 83 781 - 106 4 1 19
Gther - 86 {79} 2 {9) 3
610 794 (204} 89 (69} 1 25

Economic Hedging ()
Sales against the euro (2) - - - (2} - -
Purchases against the euro 1,153 744 93 85 231 Z 7
Other (34) - 34 - 1

1,151 7o 93 85 263 2 8

a. The econromic hedging instruments relate to derivative financial instruments that are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

IAS 9.

In addition, the depreciation of the British pound {GBP) against the euro, following the referendurn held on June 23, 2016 endorsing the
United Kingdom's exit from the European Union (“Brexit”), mainly impacted Universal Music Group's revenues in 2017. I addition, Vivendi
has thoroughly reviewed the impact of interest and fereign exchange rate changes on the group’s debt and financial assets, as well as on
pensien funds, and a report was submitted to Vivendi's Audit Committee to that effect. As of the date of this report, no significant impact on
Vivendi's consolidated financial position has been recognized. Other potential effects that could impact the group as a result of the 8rexit
will be assessed once the terms of the United Kingdom's departure from the European Union are known.

19.7

Value on the Statement of Financial Position

{in millinns of eurgs)

Interest rate risk management
Foreign currency risk management
Other

Derivative financial instruments

Deduction of current derivative financial instruments
Non-current derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments

December 31, 2018

January 1, 2018

Note Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
195 - - - -
19.6 24 6 5 33
14 - 14 - {a)
38 6 19 3
{7 (3 (4) (10)
N 3 15 23

a.  Inaccordance with IFRS 9, the fair vaiue of the options gursuant to which Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay may redeem the bonds
in shares was reclassified as a reduction of financial assets as from January 1, 2018 (please refer to Notes 12 and 28.2).
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Cash Flow Hedge
; - Net Investment
Interest rate risk Ifore|gn currency Hedge Total

{in millions of euras) management risk management

Balance as of December 31, 2016 2 3 39 a4

Charges and income directly recognized in equity - T 42 35

Items to be reclassified to profit or loss {2) {1} {3)
Tax effect - 1 - 1

Balance as of December 31, 2017 - 4) 81 n

IFRS 9 restatements - 1 - 1

Balance as of January 1, 2018 - (3) 1 78

Charges and income directly recognized in equity - 3 3
[tems to be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Tax effect - - - -
Balance as of December 31, 2018 - - a1 81

198 Creditratings

As of February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year

ended December 31, 2018), Vivendi's credit ratings were as follows:

Rating agency Type of deht Ratings Outlook

Standard & Poor's Long-term corporate debt BBB } Stable
Senior unsecured debt BBB

Moody's Long-term senior unsecured debt Baa? Stable

Note 20 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

20.1 Adjustments

{in millions of euras)

Items rafated to operating activities with no cash impact
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets
Change in provision, net

Other non-cash items from EBIT

Other

Reversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States
Income from equity affiliates - cperational

Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

Adjustments

20.2 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

In 2018, there was no significant investing and financing activities with no cash imgact.

Year ended December 31,

Note M8 207

3 453 461
{25) {31)
4 (6)
23 - {27)
11 7l {146)
7 2

432 253

On July B, 2017, a portion of the “new ORAN 1" issued by Banijay Group Holding was early redeemed in cash for £39 million and converted
into Banijay Group Holding shares, bringing Vivendi's interest in Banijay Group Holding from 26.2% to 31.4% {please refer to Note 11.1}.
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Note21  Related parties

Vivendi's related parties are the corporate officers, who are members of Vivendi’s Supervisory and Management Boards, and other related
parties including:

« companies fully consolidated by Vivendi. The transactions between these companies have been eliminated for the preparation of

Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements;

« comparies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence;

» all companies in which corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights;

= minority shareholders exercising a significant influence over the group’s subsidiaries; and

» Bolloré Group's related parties, as Vivendi has been fully consolidated by Belloré Group since Aprif 26, 2017.

211 Corporate officers

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is currently comprised of 12 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative. It is made up of six women, i.e., a ratio of 55% (in accordance with Law n°2011-103 of January 27, 2011, the employee
representative is not taken into account for the calculation of this percentage). In 2018, the composition of the Supervisory Board has
changed as follows:
= on April 19, 2018, Vivendi's General Sharehalders' Meeting appointed Ms. Michéle Reiser as a member of the Supervisary Board for
a four-year term, and renewed the terms of office of Ms. Aliza Jabés, Ms. Cathia Lawsen-Hail, Ms. Katie Stanton and Mr. Philippe
Bénacin as members of the Supervisery Board for the same period; and
= following the Shareholders' Meeting of April 19, 2018, Vivendi's Superviscry Board unanimousily appeinted Mr. Yannick Baolloré as
Chairman, replacing Mr. Vincent Bolloré, who remains a member of the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board also confirmed
Mr. Philippe Bénacin as Vice-Chairman.

With respect to fiscal year 2018, the gross compensation of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board amounted to £400,000, including
directors’ fees of €60,000, allocated as follows
» the gross compensation of Mr. Vincent Bolloré, as Chairman of the Supervisory Board until Apri! 19, 2018, amounted to £122,376,
including directors’ fees of €20,000; for 2017, the compensation ¢f Mr. Vincent Bolloré as Chairman of the Supervisory Board
amounted to 840C,000, including directors’ fees of €60,000; and
» the gross compensation of Mr. Yannick Bolloré, as Chairman of the Supervisory Board since April 18, 2018, amounted to £277,624,
including directors” fees of £40,000.

In addition, as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Havas, a Vivendi subsidiary, Mr. Yannick 8olloré received a fixed compensation, as
well as benefits in kind, totaling a gross amount of £1,058,993 in 2018 (no variable compensation was paid in 2018 with respect to fiscal
year 2017), compared to €1,408,993 in 2017 {fixed and variable compensation). On May 17, 2018, Mr. Yannick Bolloré benefited from an
ailocation of 18,000 Vivendi's performance shares, subject to the satisfaction of the performance criteria (please refer to Note 18.1.1).

The gross amount of directors’ fees paid to the other members of the Supervisory Board with respect to fiscal year 2018 was an aggregate
gross amount of €1,140,000 {compared to €1,117,500 with respect to fiscal year 2017).

Moreover, on March 26, 2018, the services contract between Mr. Dominique Delport and Vivendi terminated, as did his membership cn the
Cerporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee of Vivendi's Supervisery Board, although he remains a member of the
Board. Under the terms of the services contract, since October 1, 2015, Mr. Dominique Delport had been providing assistance and advice
regarding the creation and use of new digital content as part of the development of Dailymotion. As a result of the termination of this
contract, Mr. Deminigue Delport no longer bensfits from the long-term incentive plan tied to the growth of Cailymotion’s enterprise value
compared to its acquisition value and no longer has any operational responsibilities within the group. Under the services contract,
Mr. Dominique Delport received a gross amount of €75,000 in 2018, compared to €300,000 in 2017.

Finally, as an employee of Havas Media France (subsidiary of Havas SA), Mr. Dominique Delport received a total gross compensation of
£1,775,437 in 2018 {compared to £1,446,312 in 2017).
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Management Board

The Management Board is currently comprised of seven members. At its meeting held en May 17, 2018, the Supervisory Board, upon the
recommendation of the Corporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, unanimously approved the renewal for a four-
year period of the term of office {which expired on June 23, 2018) of each member of the Management Board and its Chairman.

In 2018, the gross compensation paid by the Vivendi group to the Management Board members amounted to £9.6 million {compared to
€8.7 miflion in 2017). This amount included:
= fixed compensation of €5.3 million (compared to €4 9 million in 2017);
« variable compensation of €3.6 million paid in 2618 with respect to fiscal year 2017 {compared to £€3.4 million paid in 2017 with
respect to fiscal year 2016},
« other compensation and directors’ fees paid 9y controlled subsidiaries; and
e benefits in kind.

The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to equity-settled share-based compensation plans granted to the members of the Management
Board amounted to £3.3 million in 2018 (compared to €3.7 million in 2017).

The Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 14, 2019, confirmed that the performance criteria applying to the growth rate of rights
under the graup defined benefit supplementat pension plan had been met with respect to fiscal year 2018. The charge recorded by Vivendi
related to vested rights under pension commitments in favor of Management Board members amgunted to €7.0 million (compared to
£8.7 million in 2017). As of December 31, 2018, the amount of net pension obligations toward the Management Board members amounted to
£44.4 miilion ([compared to £43.0 million as of December 31, 2017).

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr. Arnaud de Puyfontaine waived his employment contract. In accordance with the resolutions
approved by the General Shareholders’ Mesting held on April 17, 2015, he was granted entitlement to severance compensation in the event
of the involuntary termination of his employment, subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions. At its meeting held on February 14,
2019, the Supervisory Board, upan the recommendation of the Corporate Governance, Neminations and Remuneration Committee, decided:
« to increase from 80% to 90% the minimum achievement level of performance objectives conditioning the payment of the severance
compensation; and
+ 1o revoke his right to maintain all rights to performance shares. These rights may be maintained, if appropriate, pro rata to the
duration of his presence within the Group during the vesting period, subject to the satisfaction of the related performance criteria,
At its meetings held on May 17, 2018 and July 30, 2018, after having examined the impact of the termination of his executive duties with
Telecom ftalia on Aprit 24, 2018", the Supervisory Board, upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance, Nominaticns and
Remuneration Committee, decided () to no longer apply a pro rata factor to his reference compensaticn far 2018, (ii] to increase the fixed
part of his reference compensation to €1,400,000 for 2018, the gerformance criteria and thresholds used to determine the variable part
remain unchanged, and (iif) to pay him a single amount of £390,000.
On May 17, 2018, the Chairman of the Management Board received an annual grant of 50,000 performance shares.

The report on corporate governance that will be in chapter 3 of the 2018 Annual Report will contain a detailed description of the
campensation policy, setting out the principles and criteria for determining, distributing and attributing the fixed and variable components of
the overall compensation and the benefits of any kind attributable to Vivendi SA's corporate officers in connection with their term of office.
This chapter will also contain details of the fixed and variable components of their compensation and the benefits of any kind paid or
attributed to the corporate officers with respect to fiscal year 2018,

212  Bolloré Group

On February 16, 2018, Bolloré Group, which held 34.7 million call options on Yivendi shares, anncunced that it had exercised Z1.4 million
options, representing 1.7% of Vivendi's share capital, at an average exercise price of £16.57, which had been previously set in October 2016.
This transaction did not change Bolloré Group's reported interest in Vivendi given the assimilation of these options pursuant to
Article L. 233-91, 4° of the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce).

On March 2, 2018, Bolloré Group acquired 2 million Vivendi shares on the market at a price of €20.425 per share. Since that date, and until
June 25, 2018, Bolloré Group acquired 57.3 million Vivendi shares on the market at an average price of €20.95 per share.

On June 25, 2818, Bolloré Group crossed the 25% threshold of Vivendi's share capital and held 325,133,093 Vivendi shares, representing
415,565,932 voting rights, i.e., 25.01% of the share capital and 29.20% of the gross voting rights. Upon crossing this 25% threshold of
Vivendi's share capital and in accordance with Article L. 233-7, paragraph VIl of the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce) and Article
223-17 of the AMF's General Regulations {Réglement Général, Wr. Vincent Bolloré both for himself and for Compagnie de Comneuaille, which

“ Elimination of the payment by Telscom ltalia of his fived compensation with fespect fo fiscal year 2018 as from that date and non-payment of bis variable compensation with
respect to fiscal year 2017,
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he controls and with whom he is deemed by law to be acting in concert, made the following statement of intent with respect to Vivendi for
the next six months (please refer to AMF notice No. 218C1181, dated July 2, 2018);

* onJune 25, 2018, Compagnie de Carnouaille acquired 1,044,622 additional shares which were financed using its available cash;

« the declarant has not entered into any agreement establishing a concerted action with respect to Vivendi;

¢ the declarant contemplates continuing to purchase Vivendi shares depending primarily on markat opportunities;

» since April 26, 2017, the declarant already meets the criteria for exciusive control in accordance with [FRS 10, but not those set by
Article L.233-3 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce); the declarant wishes to continue strengthenng its control
without launching a public tender offer for Vivendi;

+ theinvestment in Viverdi reflects Bolloré Group's confidence in Vivendi's capacity to develop and its willingness to support Vivend:
in its strategy.

« the declarant does not contemplate any of the transactions referred to in Article 223-17 1, 6 of the AMF's General Regulations
{Reglement Général), subject to the potential transactions regarding Universai Music Group (UMG) recently mentioned by Vivendi,

» the declarant hclds 13,344,830 call options that enable it to acquire 13,344,830 Vivendi shares, at any time until June 25, 2019,
and it plans to exercise them depending, in particular, on market conditions;

« the declarant is party tc @ temporary sale agreement, as borrower, in respect of 34,700,00C Vivendi shares carrying an equal
amount of voting rights; the declarant is not a party to any other temporary sale agreement; and

« the declarant plans to request additional appointments to the company’s Supervisory Board.

Between June 26 and December 27, 2018, Bolloré Group acquired 41.6 million Vivendi shares on the market at an average price of €21.30
per share. On October 18, October 25, and Cecember 21, 2018, Bolloré Group declared that it had early returned a total of 23.5 million
Vivendi shares of the 34.7 million temporarily held. As of December 27, 2018, Bolioré Group declared that it held 343,224,948™ Vivendi
shares representing 395,657,787 voting rights, i.e., 26.28% of Vivendi's share capital and 28.51% of the gross voting rights.

I light of the analysis cenducted by Bolloré Group, following Vivendi's General Shareholders” Meeting held on April 25, 2017, of other facts
and circumstances that indicate its ability to direct the relevant activities of Vivendi, Bolloré Group determined that the conditiens of control
within the meaning of iFRS 10 were fuifilled. The shareholding in Vivendi, which had previously been accounted for using the equity method
since October 7, 2016, was fully consolidated from April 26, 2017.

In addition, on April 24, 2018, as part of the payment of the dividend by Vivendi to its shareholders with respect to fisca! year 2017, Bolloré
Group received a dividend of £134 million (compared tc a dividend with respect to fiscal year 2018 of €92 miltion paid in 2017).

Moreover, on July 3, 2017, Vivend acquired the 59.2% interest in Havas held by Bolloré Group for £2,317 million paid in cash. This
transaction is regulated by the procedure applying to related-party agreements and the price of £9.25 per share was submitted to a third-
party appraisal in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Since July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consolidated Havas and the
transactions between Havas and Vivendi's other subsidiaries are eliminated within the intersegment transactions.

21.3  Other related-party transactions

Vivendi's other related parties are companies over which Vivendi exercises a sigrificant influence {i.e.. primarily Telecom Italia, Banijay
Group Holding and Vevo: please refer to Note 11) and companies in which Vivendi's corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant
voting rights. They notably included Bolloré Group and its subsidiaries, either directly or indirectly controiled by Mr. Vincent Bolloré, a
member of Vivendi's Supervisary Board, and his family. Moreover, s Bolloré Group has fully consolidated Vivendi since April 26, 2017,
Vivendi's related parties also include Bolloré Group's related parties {in particular Medichanca),

In addition, certain Vivendi subsidiaries maintain business relationships, on an arm's-length basis, involving non-material amounts, with
Quinta Communications Group (controlled by Mr. Tarak Ben Ammar, a member of Yivendi's Supervisary Board), Groupe Nuxe {controlled by
Ms. Aliza Jabes, a member of Vivendi's Supervisory Board) and Interparfums {centroiled by Mr. Philippe Bénacin, Vice Chairman of Vivendi's
Supervisory Board),

In addition, the table below also includes the transactions with Havas Group and its subsidiaries {previously 59.2% held by Bolloré Group and
whose Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Yannick Bolloré, Chairman of Vivendi's Supervisory Board} until the consclidation of
Havas in Vivendi's Financial Statements en July 3, 2017.

“Including (i) 11,225,000 Vivendi shares temporarily heid by Compagnie de Comouaille pursuant to a temporary share sale agreement finitially in respect of 34,700,000 Vivendi
shares for its benefit), which may be returned, in wiole or in part, at any time until June 25, 2018, and (i} 13,344,630 Vivendi shares as g result of off market acquisition of
physically-settfed call options that are exercisable at any time until June 25, 2018 and classified as assimilated shares by Compagnie de Cornouaifie pursuant to Article L.233-
91, 4° of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce).
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Assets
Non-current content assets
Non-current financial assets
Of which Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay bonds
Trade accounts receivable and other
Of which Boftord Goup
Telecom ftalia (a)
Banijay Group Holding (b}
Mediobanca fc/
Liabilities
Trade accounts payahle and other
0f which Bofloré Group
Banijay Group Holding (b}

Off-balance sheet contractual obligations, net
Of which Banijay Group Holding (6}

Statement of earnings
Operating income
Of which Bolloré Group
Havas Group (d)
Telecom ltalia (a)
Banjjay Group Holding (B)
Meadiobanca (c)
Quinta Communications fe)
Other {interparfums and Groupe Nuuxe) (7!
Operating expenses
Of which Bolioré Group
Havas Group (d)
Banifay Group Hoiding (b}
Quinta Communications fe/
Other finterparfums and Groupe Nuxe) (f)

Advertising transactions
Of which revenue mada through Havas's agencies (d)

media purchases made through Havas's agencies (d)

na: not applicable.
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December 31, 2018

January 1, 2018

86 103
73 7
60 685
5 4
29 M
z z
3 5
29 21
13 10
10 6
168 183
140 160
Year ended December 31,
2018 2017
236 214
& 5
na 3
24 15
2z Z
h -
2 2
{108) {136)
(24) f12)
na {26)
{52} {60)
na 26
na {36}

a. Certain Vivendi subsidiaries have rendered operating services to Telecom ltalia and its subsidiaries, on an arm's-length basis {mainly
communication services and music sales): operating income of £14.8 million for Havas (€6.8 million for the secand half of 2017),
€4.4 million for Universal Music Group (€6.3 miliion in 2017), 4.2 million for Gameloft (€1.4 million in 2017} and €C.9 million for Vivendi

Content {€0.1 million in 2017).

b Vivendi and its subsidiaries {(mainly Canal+ Group} entered inte production and program purchase agreements with certain Banijay

Group Holding subsidiaries on an arm’s-length basis.

¢ Certain Havas Group subsidiaries have rendered communications services to Mediobanca and its subsidiaries on an arm’s-length basis.

d. Asfram July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consalidated Havas and the transactions between Havas and Vivend''s other subsidiaries have
been eliminated within the intersegment transactions. During the first half of 2017, certain Havas Group subsidiaries have rendered

operating services to Vivendi and its subsidiaries on an arm's-iength basis. Regarding Canal+ Group:

= as part of their advertising campaigns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions with Canal+ Group through media

agencies for an aggregate amount of £25 million for the first half of 2017;

»  as part of the advertising campaigns promoting Canal+, Canalsat and Canalplay, Canal+ Groug purchased media from major media

companies through Havas Group and its media agencies for €34 millicn for the first half of 2017

« media and production services, broadcasting rights and fees were realized by Havas Group and its subsidiaries for €12 million for

the first half of 2017; and
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Havas Group and its subsidiaries designed and developed advertising campaigns promoting Canal+ Group for €5 million for the first
half of 2017,

Canal+ Group sold rights tc Studiocanal catalog movies to Quinta Communications, notably Paddington 2, 1epresenting an operating
income of €1.7 million in 2018 (compared to €1.9 million in 2017 In addition, on October 8, 2015, Studiccanal and Quinta
Communications entered into an agreement to se!l video, TV and Video-on-demand exploitation rights in France and in other French-
speaking territories for 28 movies, for a five-year period. Pursuant to this contract, Canal+ Group recerded an aperating charge of
€0.3 million in 2018 {unchanged compared to 2017},

Certain Vivendi subsidiaries maintained business relationships, on an arm's-length basis, involving non-significant amounts with
interparfums and Groupe Nuxe.

The following constitutes complementary informaticn about certain related-party transactions lof which the amounts are included in the
table above):

CanalClympia (Vivendi Village's subsidiary) and Bolioré Africa Logistics (Bolloré Group’s subsidiary) entered into an agreement to
take over the operations of nine Bluezones and two Bluebus lines of Belloré Africa Logistics, for an eight-year period starting
January 1, 2018, with the aim to develop the CanalQlympia’s venues network in Africa. For the occupancy of land and buildings, and
for the solar energy supply, CanalOlympia payed a rent of €0.5million in 2018, and will pay a rent of €1 million in 2019, and then
£€1.5 million per year from 2020 to 2027. Given that CanalOlympia and Bolloré Africa Logistics have no common directors and
executive managers, this agreement is not regulated by the procedure applying to related-party agreements.

On June 2, 2017, Vivendi SA acquired a 5% interest in the Economic Interest Grouping (GIE - Groupement d'intérét économigus) Fleet
Management Services, a Bolloré Group’s subsidiary dedicated, among other things, to providing air transport operations, for a
consideration of €0.1 million. This acquisition entailed the correfative transfer of the cormesponding share of recipracal receivables
and payables related tc the special depreciation of the GIE's assets, i.e., receivables for €1.8 million and payables for the same
amount as of December 31, 2018 (compared to €1.6 miltion as of December 31, 2017). In addition, Havas acquired a 2% interest in
this GIE. In 2017, the charge recognized with respect to the use of the GIE's services by Vivendi Group amounted to £2.3 million in
2018 {compared to €1.4 million in 2017).
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Note 22  Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivendi's material contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include:

» certain contractual obligations relating to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments [please refer to Note 10.2),
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases, off-
balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts
and purchase or investment commitments;

« commitments related to the group's consclidation scope made under acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or sale
commitments, cantingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition
of shares, commitments under shareholders' agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over Vivendi's assets;

+ commitments related tc the group’s financing: undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as we!l as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and liquidity risks (please rafer to Note 19); and

» contingent assets and liabilities resulting from legal proceedings in which Vivendi and/or its subsidiaries are either plaintiff or
defendant {please refer to Note 23).

22.1  Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2018 Total minimum future
Payments due in payments as of

{in millions of euras) Note Tatal 2019 2020-2023  After 2023 December 31,2017
Borrowings and other financial iabilities 4,558 944 212 1,402 4,867
Content %abilities 10.2 2,948 2817 131 1 2,582
Consolidated statement of financial position items 1,507 3.761 2343 1,403 144
Contractual content commitments 10.2 5,339 2523 2,763 53 5630
Commercial commitments 128 {210} 151 187 {1,204)
Operating leases and subleages 1,453 207 676 570 1,502
Net commitments not recorded in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position 6,920 2,520 3,590 810 5,928
Contractual ebligations and commercial commitments 14427 6281 5933 2213 13372
Off-balance sheet commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as ¢f December 31, 2018 Total minimum future

Dugin payments as of

fin millions of euras) Total 2019 2020-2023  Afier2023  December 31,2017
Satellite transponders 471 77 259 135 390
Investment commitments 179 18 47 16 125
Other 560 755 269 36 772
Given commitments 1,210 448 575 187 1,287
Sateliite transponders {124) {65} {59) - {133)
Other (a) {958) (533) {365] - (2,358
Received commitments {1,082) {658) (424) - (2.491)
Net total 128 210 151 187 {1204}

8. Includes minimum guarantees to be received by the group pursuant to distribution agreements entered into with third parties, notably
Internet Service Providers and other digital platforms.
In addition, Canal+ Group entered into distribution agreements of Canal channels with the telecom cperators Free. Orange and
Bouygues Telecom. The variable amounts of these commitments, which are based on the number of subscribers, cannot be reliably
determined and are not reported in either the Statement of Financial Position or described in the commitments. They are instead
recorded as an expense or income in the period in which they were incurred.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 108



Thursday February 14, 2019

In addition, on March 14, 2017, Boulogne Studios, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vivendi, entered into a bilateral land purchase agreement
with "Val de Seine Aménagement”, the local public urban developer of the Parisian suburb Boulogne-Billancourt, for a construction project
on the Tle Sequin. This purchase agreement is subject to certain conditions precedent, in particular the procurement of a building permit. This
project would consist of building a campus of approximately 150,000 m? which could, in five to seven years, house a group of companies
notably operating in business sectors such as media and content, as well as digital, sports and sustainable development. On that date, to
guarantee the satisfaction of its purchase obligations amounting to a total of approximately €330 million, Vivendi paid a €70 million deposit
that will be returned if the transaction is not completed by Vivendi.

0ff-balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Minimum future leases as of December 31, 2018 Total minimum

Duein future leases as of
{in millions of euros) Total 2019 2020-2023  After 2023 December 31, 2017
Buildings 1,436 208 664 564 1,502
Other 21 3 12 8 9
Leases 1457 m 676 570 1,511
Buildings (&) {4 - - {9}
Subleases {4 {4 - - {9)
Net total 1453 207 676 510 1,502

22.2  Other commitments given or received refating to operations

Given commitments amounted cumulatively to €37 million (compared to €40 million as of Cecember 31, 2017). In acdition, Vivendi and Havas
have granted guarantees in various forms to financial institutions or third parties on behalf of their subsidiaries in the course of their
operations.

Received commitments amounted cumulatively to €10 million {compared to €9 million as of December 31, 2017).

22.3 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets. Vivendi has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
securities:

« Vivendi has given an undertaking to Ubisoft to sell ali the shares it owns by March 7, 2019, the settlement date. In addition, Vivendi
made the commitment to refrain fram purchasing Ubisoft shares for a period of five years (please refer to Note 2.3);

« Vivendi subscribed to bonds redeemable in shares or cash issued by Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay (please refer to
Note 11.1);

e In November and December 2018, Vivendi soid on the market its Telefonica shares, pursuant to its commitment to the Brazilian
Competition Authority {CADE). This commitment remained in force as long as Vivend: simultaneously held shares of Telefonica and
Telecom ltalia, provided that these two companies operated in the Brazilian telecom market; and

e certain liquidity rights relating to the strategic partnership entered into between Canal+ Group, ITI and TVN as described in Note 22.5
below.

In addition, Vivendi and its subsidiaries granted or received put and call options on shares in equity affiliates and unconsolidated
investments.
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Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares

CPI"I!eKt

Sale of GVT (May 2015}

Sale of Maroc Telecom group (May 2014)
Sale of Activision Blizzard {Octobey 2013)

Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels
(September 2012)

Divestiture of PTG shares (Jecember 2010]

Canal+ Group's pay-TV activities in France
{Jaruary 2007-July 2017)

Divestiture of PSG {June 2006}

Divestiture of UMG manufacturing and
distributicn operations {May 2005)

NBC Universal transaction {May 2004 and
subsequent amendments (2005 - 2010)

Sale of real estate assets (June 2002}
pther contingent \iatuhneg ‘

Acguisition of the companies that own and

manage &ll Paddington intellectual property rights,

except for the publishing rights {June 2016}
Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels
[September 70117

Acqu'iskticm of EMI Recorded Music {September

2012)

Acquisition of Kinowelt {April 2008)
Other contingent assets

Characteristics {nature and amount) Expiry

Unlimited specific warranties.

Representations and warranties, limited to specifically identrfied tax matters, capped at

BRL 180 million.

Commitments undertaken in connection wath the sale.

- Unhmited general warranties; and

- Tax warranties capped at $200 million, under certain circumstances.

Commutments undertaken, in connection with the authonzation of the acquisition, with' 2019

- the French Competition Authority; and

- the French Broadcasting Authority

Commitments undertaken to end litigation over the share ownership of PTC:

- Buarantees given to the Law Debenture Trust Company {LOTC), for an amount up to
18.4% for the first €125 million, 46% between €125 million and €288 million, and
50% thereafter, and

- Guarantee given to Poltel Investment’s (E{ektrim) judicial administrator

Approval of the acquisiion of TPS and CanalSatellite subject to compliance with 2019

injunctions ordered by the French Competition Authority.

Unlimited specific warranties 2018
Various commitments for manufacturing and distribution services, expired at the end of 201
January 2017.

- Breaches of tax representations; and

- Obligation to cover the Mest Favored Nation provisions.

Autonomous first demand guarantees given to Nexity, not implemented and expired in 2017
June 2017, capped at €150 million in total {tax and decennial guarantees).

Cumylated amount of €20 rmillion [compared to €27 million as of December 31, 2017) -

2023

General and specific warranties [including tax matters and guarantees related to the

intellectual property).

Warranties capped at €120 million, not implemented and expired as of December 31, 207

2017,

- Commitments relating to full pension obligations in the United Kingdom assumed by -
Citi; and

- Warranties relating to losses stemming from taxes and litigation claims, in particular
those related to pension obligations in the United Kingdom.

Specific warranties, notably on film rights granted by the sellers.

Cumulated amount of €30 million icompared to €43 million as of December 31, 2017).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabilities described above,

a.
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The main terms of the Maroc Telecom group sale were as follows:

Vivendi gave certain customary representations and warranties to Etisalat relating to SPT (the holding company of Maroc Telecom
group), Maroc Telecom and its subsidiaries. Vivendi also gave a number of specific warranties;

the indemnity amount payable by Vivendi in respect of indemnifiable losses incurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its subsidiaries
was determined in proportion to the percentage of ownership held indirectly by Vivendi in the relevant company on the closing date
(i.e., 3% for Maroc Telecom);

Vivendi's overall indemnification chligation was capped at 50% of the initial sale price, such threshold being increased to 100% in
respect of claims related to SPT;

Vivendi's indemnification obligations in respect of these warranties, other than those related to taxes and SPT, effective for a
24-manth period, expired in May 2616. Claims for tax-related indemnities could be made until January 15, 2618. The indemnity in
respect of SPT remained in effect until the end of a four-year period following the closing date {i.e., May 14, 2018}, and

to guarantee the payment of any specific indemnity amounts referenced above, Vivendi delivered a bank guarantee to Etisalat in
the amount of €247 million, which expired on February 15, 2018. This amount had been reduced to €9 million,

Vivendi had agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that could be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in
relation to the sale of its interest in Maroc Telecom:

-

with respect to the sale agreement entered into with Etisalat, this commitment expired upon termination of Etisalat's right to make
a claim against Vivendi and $FR, 1.e., May 14, 2018; and
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+ this commitment, which also covered any amount that SFR could be required to pay to any third party other than Etisafat, has
expired in the absence of any request from Numericable Group within the applicable statutes of {imitations.

b Inconnection with the sale of 88% of Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on Octeber 11, 2013 (the “Clasing
Date”), Vivendi, ASAC i LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction {i.e.,
representations, warranties and covenants). Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard undertook to indemnify each other against any
losses stemming from any breach of ther respective commitments. Such indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount.

In addition, Vivendi has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other liabilities of Amber Holding
Subsidiary Co. {"Amber”). the Vivendi subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relating to periods preceding the Closing Date. Such
indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount. Tax attributes {(mainly net operating ioss) held by Amber and assumed by Activision
Blizzard were estimated at more than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax berefit of approximately $245 million. Vivendi
agreed te indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject to a cap of
$200 million limited to fiscal years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

As a reminder, in connection with the creation of Activision Blizzard in July 2008, Activision and Yivend: entered into customary
agreements for this type of transaction, including tax sharing and indemnity agreements.

¢ As part of the French Competition Authority’s approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed C8 and
CStar, respectively) granted on July 23, 2012 and renewed on April 2, 2014, Vivendi and Canal+ Group gave certain cormmitments for a
five-year period, renewable once.
On Jung 22, 2017, the French Competition Authority decided to keep, lift or revise certain commitments.
These commitments grovide for restrictions on the acquisition of rights to American movies and television series from certain American
studios (Canal+ Group can henceforth enter into output deals bundling free-to-air and pay-TV rights with two American studios) and for
French movies (the joint purchase of toth free-to-air and pay-TV rights for more than 20 original French-language films per year is
prohibited), the separate negotiation of pay-TV and free-to-air rights for certain recent movies and television series, limitations on the
acquisition by C8 and CStar of French catalog movies from Studiocanal (limited to 50% of the total number and total value of French
catalog movies purchased annually by each of these channels).
These commitments are operative until December 31, 2019. If market conditions change significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to
request that these commitments be lifted or partially or totally revised. An independent trustee, who was proposed by Canal+ Group
and approved by the French Competition Authority on August 30, 2017, is responsible for monitering the implementation of the
commitments.
In addition, on September 18, 2012, the French Broadcasting Authority (Conseil Supérieur de Audiovisuel approved the acquisition of
the Direct 8 and Lirect Star channels (renamed C8 and CStar, respectively), subject to compliance with certain commitments relating to
broadcasting, investment obfigations and transfer rights.

d  On August 3C, 2008, the merger between Canal+ Group's pay-TV operations in France and TPS was authorized, in accordance with the
merger control regulations, pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and
Canal+ Group complying with certain undertakings for a maximum period of six years, with the exception of those commitments
concerning the availability of channels and Video-on-demand (VOD), which could not exceed five years,

On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enguiry regarding compliance with certain undertakings given by
Canai+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS.
On July 23, 2012, the merger was ence again cleared by the French Competition Authority, subiect to compliance with 33 injunctions.
These injunctions were issued for a five-year period, renewable once.
On June 72, 2017, following the reexamination of such injunctions, the French Competition Authority decided to maintain, lift or revise
certain of these injunctions.
These injunctions, which have been impiemented by Canal+ Group since June 22, 2017, consist of the following main components:
» Acquisition of movie rights:
prohibition on entering into output deals for French films except if another pay-TV producer were to enter into an putput deal
with any of the five main French producers/coproducers; and
disposal by the Canal+ Group of its interest in Orange Cinema Series — OCS SNC or, failing this, adoption of measures that can
“neutralize” Canal+ Group’s impact on Orange Cinema Series — OCS SNC,
« Distribution of pay-TV special-interest channels:

- distribution of a minimum number of independent channels, distribution of any channel hoiding premium rights, exclusive or
not, and preparation of a reference offer relating to taking over independent channels included in the Canalsat offer including,
amaong other things, the assumptions and methods to calculate minimal compensation for these independent channels.

« Video-cn-demand (VOD) and subscription video-on-demand (SYODY):
prohibition on purchasing VOD and SYOD exclusive broadcasting rights to eriginal French-language films awned by French right
holders and combining these rights with the purchases of rights for linear broadcast on pay-TV;
fimitation on the exclusive transfer of VOO and SVOD rights to Canal+ Group from Studiocanai's French film cataiog; and
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prohibition on entering into exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet
Service Provider platforms,
These injunctions are operative until December 31, 2019, If market conditicns change significantly, Canal+ Group will be abfe to request
that these injunctions be lifted cr partially or totally revised. An independent trustee, who wags proposed by Canal+ Group and approved
by the French Competition Authority an August 30, 2017, is responsible for manitaring the implementation of the injunctions.

e Incaonnection with the sale of real estate assets to Nexity in June 2002, Vivendi granted two autonomous first demand guarantees, one
for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several subsidiaries of Nexity {SAS Nexim 1 to B). The guarantees were not implemented
and expired on June 30, 2017.

Several guarantees given during prior years in connection with assst acquisitions or disposals have expired. However, the time periods or
statute of limitations of certain guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabilities, in consideration of
share ownership, or given notably in connection with the winding-up of certain businesses or the dissalution of entities are still in effect. To
the best of Vivendi's knowledge, no material claims for indemnification against such liabilities have been made to date.

In addition, when settling disputes and litigation, Vivendi reqularly delivers commitments for damages to third parties, which ase custornary
for transactions of this type.

Earn-out commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition of shares

Vivendi and its subsidiaries entered into agreements with certain minority shareholders providing for earn-cut payments. They notably
included capped earn-outs payable in 2020 and 2022 under the agreement entered into in June 2016 for the acquisition of 100% of the
companies that cwn and manage ail Paddington intellectual property rights, except for the publishing rights.

225 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors’ agreemants (primarily those relating to nc+), Vivendi holds certain rights (e.g., pre-emptive rights
and rights of first offer} that give it control over the capital structure of its consolidated companies having minority shareholders. Canversely,
Vivendi has granted similar rights to these other sharehalders in the event that it sefls its interests to third parties.

Moreover, pursuant to other sharenolders’ agreements or the bylaws of other consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsofidated
interests, Vivend! ar its subsidiaries have given or received certain rights (pre-emptive and other rights) entitling them to maintain their rights
as shareholder.

In addition, in compliance with Article L. 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, it is hereby stated that certain rights and obligations of
Vivend; under existing shareholders’ agreements may be amended or terminated in the event of a change of control of Vivendi ur & lender
offer for Vivendi's shares. These shareholders” agreements are subject to confidentiatity provisions.

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group. ITl and TVN

Certain liguidity rights were given at the level of nc+ under the strategic partnership formed in November 2012 in relation to television
services in Poland. Given that Canal+ Group did not exercise its call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in nc+ at market value, TVN now
has liguidity rights in the form of an initial public offering of its interest in nc+.

226 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, no material asset in Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mortgage for
the benefit of third parties.
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Note23 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi is subject to varicus lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or ather
proceedings (collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”™).

The costs which may result from these Legal Proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision reprasents Vivendi's best estimate of the
risk and is based on a case-by-case assessment of the risk level, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such risk if evants occur
during such proceedings. As of Decerber 31, 2018, provisions recorded by Vivendi for all claims and litigation were £247 million, compared
to €260 million as of December 31, 2017 (please refer to Note 16).

To the company’s knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature {including any pending or threatened
proceedings in which it is a defendant), which may have or have had in the previous 12 months & material effect on the company and on its
group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein.

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder is described as of February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi's Management Beard meeting that
approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

LBBW et al. against Vivendi

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxembourg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivendi with the Paris Commercial Court seeking tc obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002. Subsequently, on April 5 and
April 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivendi: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of Idaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors. Lastly, on August 8, 2017, the British Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed & complaint against Vivendi based on the same grounds. On January 7, 2015, the Paris Commercial Court
appointed a "third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation pravided by them to
evidence their alleged holding of the securities. The latter filed his final reports during the first half of 2018. The first hearings on the merits
were held in the second half of 2018.

Calitornia State Teachers Retirement System et al. against Vivendi

On April 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint ag